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About the Institute

Our mission

Our vision

Our values

Mastery of disease through discovery

To be an innovative medical research institute that 

enriches society through discovery and education 

and improves health outcomes through translation

Pursuit of excellence

Integrity and mutual respect

Collaboration and teamwork

Creativity

Accountability

Contribution to society

•�

•�

•�

•�

•�

•�
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President’s report 
Te p�st ye�r w�s � l�nd��rk ye�r �or the Institute, with donors, whose enthusi�s�, co��it�ent �nd support �re 
gre�t progress in our rese�rch �s well �s in initi�tives �n inspir�tion to everyone �ssoci�ted with the Institute. 
th�t will underpin our �uture rese�rch by providing the You c�n re�d �ore �bout the i�p�ct o� our donors 
necess�ry in�r�structure �nd �n�nci�l st�bility. throughout this report.

Te Institute ch�rted new territory in the Austr�li�n Te Institute �osters � very i�port�nt connection between 
�edic�l rese�rch l�ndsc�pe with the negoti�tion o� the our rese�rchers �nd consu�ers – p p eo le who h�ve been 
p�rti�l s�le o� roy�lty rights to the �nti-c�ncer �edic�tion, i�p�cted by � dise�se. T�nks �lso to these consu�ers �or 
venetocl�x (see p�ge 7). Tis h�s provided unique their v�lu�ble guid�nce �nd input into our rese�rch, �nd 
opportunities �or growth �nd prudent invest�ent, while to our Consu�er Advisory P�nel, ch�ired by Dr Judith 
�lso helping us ��n�ge the risks �ssoci�ted with longer- Sloco�be am, �or overseeing their involve�ent.
ter� vol�tility in the ph�r��ceutic�l ��rketpl�ce.

Fin�lly, I express �y sincere gr�titude to �ll bo�rd 
A signi�c�nt portion o� this inco�e w�s invested in the �e�bers �or their co��it�ent to the Institute. In 
Institute’s endow�ent to support the long-ter� �n�nci�l p�rticul�r, I o�er �y th�nks �nd best wishes to Pro�essor 
st�bility needed �or �und��ent�l �nd tr�nsl�tion�l Ingrid Winship �nd Pro�essor Ru�us Bl�ck, who both 
rese�rch. Te Institute h�s �lso invested in initi�tives th�t retired �ro� the bo�rd in 2017 �fer ��ny ye�rs o� 
will �ore i��edi�tely enh�nce our rese�rch c�p�bilities, service to the Institute. I �lso �cknowledge the signi�c�nt 
n��ely the �cquisition o� st�te-o�-the-�rt dyn��ic contributions being ��de by Pro�essor Christine 
i��ging technology (see p�ge 44); the est�blish�ent Kilp�trick �nd Pro�essor Shitij K�pur �s inco�ing 
o� the new Drug Discovery Centre to �cceler�te the bo�rd �e�bers.
discovery �nd tr�nsl�tion o� new �edicines (see p�ge 
43); �nd the co�pletion o� our on-site E�rly Childhood 
Educ�tion �nd C�re centre to open in �id-2018 �s p�rt 
o� our co��it�ent to supporting Institute st�� �nd their 
���ilies (see p�ge 50). P�rti�l roy�lty rights in venetocl�x 
were �lso ret�ined by the Institute, until glob�l p�tents 
expire, to preserve potenti�l �uture inco�e opportunities.

Phil�nthropy re��ins � critic�l source o� support in 
sever�l key �re�s: �unding �or e�rly-c�reer rese�rchers �nd 
their bold rese�rch ide�s, �nd invest�ents in equip�ent 
�nd technology. I extend �y he�rt�elt th�nks to �ll our 

Mr Christopher To��s am 

President, W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute o� Medic�l Rese�rch
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Direct�r’s rep�rt
Collaboration, a longstanding Institute value, was key to Tis role will be held by the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute 
our achievements in 2017. director, and I am proud to be the inaugural Galli 

Chair, made possible through a generous donation by 
Many o� our notable research discoveries were truly 

philanthropist and �riend Mrs Pamela Galli. 
collaborative e�orts: laboratory researchers and 
bioin�ormaticians joined �orces to unravel breast cancer Te Australian and Victorian governments provided a 
biology; partnerships with Royal Melbourne Hospital positive environment �or the medical research sector 
clinicians revealed new treatments �or infammatory in 2017. Nationally, the Medical Research Future Fund 
diseases; and international collaborations spanning began disbursing �unding to priority research areas. A 
parasitology and chemistry discovered new vulnerabilities restructure o� the National Health and Medical Research 
in the malaria parasite. Council �unding schemes was also announced, which 

I am con�dent will enhance how Australian research 
Te landmark approval o� anti-cancer agent venetoclax to 

is �unded. We are also grate�ul �or support �rom the 
treat patients in Australia was another achievement that 

Victorian Government, with a substantial �unding 
arose �rom longstanding collaborations between Institute 

increase to the state’s independent medical research 
scientists, clinicians and industry partners. Our links to 

institutes, plus support �or the Walter and Eliza Hall 
hospitals within the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer 

Institute to develop a business case �or a National Drug 
Centre were at the heart o� this achievement, and I 

Discovery Centre (see page 43).
am con�dent that many other important discoveries 
will bene�t patients in the near �uture through In 2017 we lost three valued members o� the Institute 
our partnerships. community: Dr Colin Ward, an associate research �ellow 

in our Structural Biology division; Mrs Avis McPhee, a 
Our close ties with the University o� Melbourne are 

pioneer o� consumer advocacy and a generous donor; and 
another important aspect o� our research. In particular, 

Mrs Jo Metcal�, the wi�e o� our late colleague Pro�essor 
our ability to train the next generation o� exceptional 

Don Metcal� and a dear �riend to many as well as a 
medical researchers depends on our connections to 

supporter o� our research. Valete Colin, Avis and Jo.
the university, along with links with several leading 
universities in China. You can read about many o� our 
students’ achievements in the �ollowing pages.

Our links to the University o� Melbourne were 
strengthened in 2017 by the establishment o� the Lorenzo 
and Pamela Galli Chair in Medical Biology at the Walter 
and Eliza Hall Institute and the University o� Melbourne. 

Pr�fess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao 
Director, Walter and Eliza Hall Institute o� Medical Research

Ab�ut the Institute
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About the Institute 
The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute is Australia’s 

oldest medical research institute. It was 

a trust established by Eliza Hall, following the 

death of her husband Walter. The vision was 

for an institute that ‘will be the birthplace of 

discoveries rendering signal service to mankind 

in the prevention and removal of disease and the 

founded�in�1915�with��nancial�support�from�

mitigation�of�su�ering’.�

Tree nationally and globally signi�cant areas o� health 
have been long-term, central interests o� our research:

• cancer – understanding the basic processes that are 
disrupted to generate cancer cells and how these can 
be targeted to treat disease;

• immune disorders – discovering how the body �ghts 
in�ection, and how errors in the immune system lead 
to disease; and

• in�ectious diseases – with a �ocus on globally 
signi�cant pathogens, especially malaria and chronic 

Troughout the Institute’s history its researchers have 
in�ections.

�ocused on understanding the �undamental principles 
o� medical biology and using this knowledge to We take a multidisciplinary approach to addressing major 
mitigate disease. research questions, integrating expertise in bioin�ormatics, 

clinical translation, computational biology, epidemiology, 
Our current researchers and students continue to work on 

genomics, medicinal chemistry, personalised medicine, 
solving basic science questions through curiosity-driven 

proteomics, structural biology and systems biology.
research. We are committed to innovative science that 
expands and improves our understanding o� basic human Te Institute o�ers postgraduate training as the 
biology and the disruptions to systems that cause disease. Department o� Medical Biology o� the University 
Our scientists also undertake blue-sky research that o� Melbourne, and is afliated with the University 
creates and explores new areas o� biology. o� Melbourne and Te Royal Melbourne Hospital.

Below: In 2017 signi� cant progress was made in the 
construction o�  the � ve-storey Early Childhood Education 
and Care centre (� ar lef ) on the Institute’s Parkville campus. 
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Our Institute in 2017
With the support of our community, we are improving health outcomes.

About the Institute

1169
staff and 
students

$11.1M
royalty  
income

142 
patents
granted  

$280M 
net revenue 

from partial sale 
of venetoclax 

royalties

40+
medically 

trained 
researchers

95
publications 

in top journals
(impact  

factor >10)

100+
clinical trials 
based on our 

research 30M+ 
patients have 

benefitted 
from our 
research424

publications

50+ 
diseases 

impacted by 
our research

$45.1M
Australian

Government
funding

$12.7M
Victorian

Government
funding

$19.1M
raised in 

philanthropic
gifts 

93% of
philanthropic 

funding  
supports 
research 

32 
consumer - 
researcher 

buddy pairs
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Health impacts
The�Institute�is�committed�to�making�fundamental�scienti�c�discoveries�that�

can�be�translated�to�better�treatments,�bringing�real�bene�ts�to�people�on�a�

in�ammatory�agents;�and�trials�of�a�new�class�of�anti-cancer�drugs,�called�

global scale. Clinical trials based on discoveries made at the Institute include 

trials of vaccines for coeliac disease, diabetes and malaria; trials of new anti-

BH3-mimetics, for treating people with leukaemia and other cancers.

Cancer Immune disorders Infectious disease

•� •� •�

•� •� •�

•� •�Autoin�ammatory� •�

•� •�

•�
•� •�

•� In�ammatory�bowel�
•� •� In�uenza

•� •�
•�

•� •�
•�

•� •�
•�

•�de�ciencies
•�

•�•�
•�

•�•�
•�

•� •�

•� •�

•�

Bowel cancer Allergy Ascariasis 

Brain cancer Asthma Filariasis

Breast cancer Giardiasis
diseases

Leukaemia Hepatitis B
Coeliac disease

Lung cancer HIV

Lymphoma
disease

Melanoma Leishmaniasis
Lupus

Myeloma Listeriosis 
Multiple sclerosis

Myeloproliferative Malaria
Primary immune 

disease
Scabies

Ovarian cancer
ToxoplasmosisPsoriasis

Pancreatic cancer
TuberculosisRheumatic fever and 

Prostate cancer rheumatic heart disease

Rare cancers Rheumatoid arthritis

Stomach cancer Sepsis

Type 1 and type 2 
diabetes
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New anti-cancer treatment reaches 
leukaemia patients
In 2017 Australians with certain forms of leukaemia gained access to a potent 

new anti-cancer drug that was co-developed and trialled in Australia.

Venetoclax was the result o� a research collaboration 
between the Institute and the companies AbbVie and 
Genentech, a member o� the Roche Group. Te drug 
was based on a discovery made at the Institute in the late 
1980s that a protein called BCL-2 helps cancer cells to 
survive inde�nitely.

Clinical trials o� venetoclax showed remission in some 
patients with an advanced �orm o� chronic lymphocytic 
leukaemia, �or whom conventional treatment options had 
been exhausted. In 2017 venetoclax was approved �or use 
by the Australian Terapeutic Goods Administration and 
made available to Australian patients, �ollowing similar 
approvals in Europe and North America.

Institute director Pro�essor Doug Hilton AO said the 
Institute’s commitment to scienti�c excellence, innovation 
and its collaborative culture underpinned the success�ul 
translation o� venetoclax.

“We are very proud o� the Institute’s ongoing 
contributions to the realisation o� this anti-cancer 
treatment and its potential to improve the lives o� many 
patients around the world.

“Venetoclax demonstrates why investment in basic 
research is so important �or �uture drug discovery and 
development,” Pro�essor Hilton said.

In July 2017 Federal Minister �or Health the Hon. Greg 
Hunt MP and Victorian Minister �or Health the Hon. Jill 
Hennessy MP announced that the Walter and Eliza Hall 
Institute had made a landmark deal worth up to US$325 
million �rom the partial sale o� royalty rights in venetoclax.

CPPIB Credit Europe S.à r.l., a wholly owned subsidiary 
o� Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, acquired 
rights to a portion o� �uture venetoclax royalties owned 
by the Institute. Te Institute retained partial royalties in 
the treatment.

A portion o� the income was invested in the Institute’s 
endowment, ensuring the long-term �nancial stability 
needed to continue the Institute’s �ocus on �undamental to being a clinical and commercial success, alongside our 
and translational research. Te �unding will also support partners. “Tis need not be a one-time event. Venetoclax 
enhancing and accelerating the discovery and translation is proo� that Australian institutions can be key p yla ers in 
o� new medicines (see page 43), acquisition o� state-o�- globally signi�cant translation.
the art dynamic imaging technology (see page 44), and 

“Te Institute’s mission is to make discoveries �or 
construction o� the on-site Early Childhood Education 

humanity and this income will help us deliver on that. 
and Care centre, as part o� the Institute’s commitment to 

It will enhance and accelerate our ability to make 
supporting staf and their �amilies (see page 50).

�undamental discoveries that can be translated into better 
Pro�essor Hilton said the deal demonstrated that the treatments, bringing real bene�ts to patients on a global 
Institute has both the scienti�c determination and scale, as well as bene�ting the Australian economy,” 
entrepreneurial acumen to take basic research all the way Pro�essor Hilton said.

Institute secures landmark deal

Further trials of venetoclax

Venetoclax was demonstrated through clinical trials to 

be a treatment for certain advanced forms of chronic 

lymphocytic leukaemia (CLL). It is now being trialled for 

for use in combination with other cancer drugs.

Professor Andrew Roberts, head of Clinical Translation 

at the Institute, led clinical trials of venetoclax in 

Australia for treating some types of CLL and lymphoma. 

He and Peter Mac haematologist Professor John 

Seymour recently reported an international phase Ib 

clinical trial that looked at combining venetoclax with 

another anti-cancer drug, rituximab, for people with 

relapsed CLL.

Professor Roberts said more than half of the trial 

participants showed a dramatic reduction in leukaemia 

cells in their body, and that many of these patients 

show no sign of leukaemia recurrence several years 

later. “This trial established that venetoclax and 

rituximab can be safely combined,” he said. “Its 

has prompted further trials of this approach to be 

undertaken.

“This was one of more than 50 clinical trials underway 

to test whether venetoclax could be used to treat a 

variety of blood cancers, as well as solid tumours such 

as breast cancer.” 

Professor Roberts is a clinician-scientist at the 

Institute and the University of Melbourne and a clinical 

haematologist at The Royal Melbourne Hospital and 

the Peter Mac. This and other venetoclax trials were 

conducted at the Peter Mac and The Royal Melbourne 

Hospital, the Institute’s Victorian Comprehensive 

Cancer Centre partners.

its�e�ectiveness�in�treating�other�types�of�cancer,�and�

potential�as�an�e�ective�new�combination�therapy�

About the Institute
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Philanthropist provides boost for medical biology
Medical biology – the study of how our body works and what goes wrong when diseases 

occur, and how we can treat these diseases – is the cornerstone of modern healthcare and 

diagnostics, and is the focus of our Institute’s research.

Phil�nthr�pist Mrs P�mel� G�lli pr�vided � $5 milli�n �nd his very re�l resp�nsibility ��r the leg��y �r�m his 
b��st t� medi��l bi�l�gy with the est�blishment in 2017 prede�ess�rs. I �m �ls� inspired by his �dv����y ��r 
�� the L�renz� �nd P�mel� G�lli Ch�ir in Medi��l Bi�l�gy gender equ�lity �nd his en��ur�gement �� �utst�nding 
�t the W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute �nd the University y�ung rese�r�hers, whi�h ��n be seen thr�ugh initi�tives 
�� Melb�urne. su�h �s the Institute’s new E�rly Childh��d Edu��ti�n �nd 

C�re �entre, ” Mrs G�lli s�id.
Te G�lli Ch�ir is held by the Institute’s dire�t�r, Pr��ess�r 
D�ug Hilt�n ao, wh�se rese�r�h ���uses �n bl��d �ells. 
Pr��ess�r Hilt�n s�id the gener�sity �� Mrs G�lli w�s �n 

Te G�lli Ch�ir is the third �h�ir �re�ted by Mrs G�lli inspir�ti�n t� rese�r�hers in the P�rkville pre�in�t.
�t the University �� Melb�urne �nd �ne �� its p�rtner 

“Mrs G�lli h�s put her trust in us t� impr�ve he�lth, in rese�r�h instituti�ns. Mrs G�lli h�s �ls� supp�rted �ther 
h�n�ur �� her l�te husb�nd,” Pr��ess�r Hilt�n s�id. “Her rese�r�h �ell�wships in the P�rkville Bi�medi��l Pre�in�t, 
supp�rt �ll�ws us t� ���us �n ��ntinuing �ur missi�n in�luding the L�renz� �nd P�mel� G�lli Centen�ry 
�� tr�nsl�ting dis��veries in medi��l bi�l�gy int� better Fell�wship �t the W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute.
he�lth �ut��mes ��r  p�tients.”

University �� Melb�urne vi�e-�h�n�ell�r Pr��ess�r Glyn 
D�vis ac s�id Mrs G�lli’s ��mmitment t� supp�rting 
rese�r�h w�s extr��rdin�ry.

Mrs G�lli s�id her m�tiv�ti�n ��r �unding medi��l 
rese�r�h w�s b�th “pers�n�l �nd �ltruisti�”. Afer l�sing “Mrs G�lli’s gif �� three pr��ess�ri�l �h�irs is rem�rk�ble 
her husb�nd t� skin ��n�er, Mrs G�lli �elt str�ngly in the Austr�li�n university �nd medi��l rese�r�h 
��mpelled t� supp�rt �nd �dv�n�e medi��l rese�r�h. se�t�r,” Pr��ess�r D�vis s�id. “She h�s underpinned the 

��ntinued su��ess�ul p�rtnership between the University 
“It seemed �pp pr� ri�te t� me th�t I sh�uld en��ur�ge 

�� Melb�urne �nd the W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute 
medi��l rese�r�h int� dise�se �fer ��n�er t��k the li�e 

�nd we will w�rk �l�sely t�gether t� h�n�ur her h�pe ��r 
�� my de�r husb�nd L�renz�,” Mrs G�lli s�id. “I �m 

the �uture.”
��nvin�ed th�t the b�si� rese�r�h �nd tr�nsl�ti�n d�ne 
�t the W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute �re the b��kb�ne �� 
�uture medi��l bre�kthr�ughs.

“I �m impressed by wh�t I �bserve �� Pr��ess�r Hilt�n’s 
rese�r�h int� bl��d �ells, his le�dership �� the Institute 

Supporting research leaders

Supporting Australian medical research

Above: A generous g if  � rom philanthrop ist Mrs Pamela Galli 
(lef ) has allowed the establishment o�  the Lorenzo and Pamela 
Galli Chair in Medical Biology, which will be held by Institute 
director Pro� essor Doug Hilton.



Annual Report 2017   9

Increasing community support 
for our medical research 
We are very grateful to the growing number of donors who 

have chosen to support research at the Institute. 

In 2017 the number o� individuals supporting the it is government grants paid by your taxes or private 
Institute doubled, and many new donors came to us as a donations �rom individuals and �amilies.
result o� reading or hearing about our recent discoveries 

We want to make sure that you – our donors – are 
in the media. It is evident that Australians want to support 

in�ormed about our research and engaged with the 
smart scientists to make bold discoveries.

Institute in a way that best refects your needs and 
We also know that �or most o� our donors the motivation interests. In 2017 we commissioned an independent 
to support medical research is very personal and o�en donor satis�action survey to make sure that the Institute 
the result o� a �amily tragedy. Over the past year, we have is responding to donors respect�ully, promptly and 
received gi�s �rom donors who have survived cancer app pro riately. 
and donors who have lost loved ones to cancer. We have 

More than 84 per cent o� respondents told us that they 
received gi�s �rom alumni and �amily members o� our 

were very satis�ed with the way the Institute’s researchers 
scientists. We have also received gi�s �rom past and 

and sta� engaged with them. Our donors said that 
present board members. 

they particularly appreciated the way the Institute 
recognised donor support, provided in�ormation on how 
donations were spent, and o�ered choice when it came to 
communication. 

Our donors also told us that they enjoyed participating in 
Institute events, with double the number o� respondents 

Every donation comes with a personal story and o�ers attending donor events in 2017 compared with 2015. We 
not just support but inspiration to our researchers. We hope to meet even more o� our supporters at our events 
want to thank you all �or generously sharing your stories in 2018. We encourage you to take the opportunity to 
and generously supporting the Institute’s research. In 2017 meet the Institute’s researchers, hear about our research 
donors contributed more than $19.1 million to support discoveries and tell us about your hopes �or the �uture.
our early-career scientists, �und innovative research 

Together we can tackle some o� the most signi�cant projects and purchase essential technology. 
health issues con�ronting humanity.

We are very aware o� the trust the community places in 
us to make the very best use o� public money, whether 

Every donation comes with a personal 

story and of ers not j ust support but 

insp iration to our researchers.

About the Institute
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Our supporters
The supporters who make our discoveries possible 

Te �dv�n�es in �edi��l s�ien�e �t the W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute �re ��de p�ssible by �ur gener�us supp�rters. 
We �re pr�ud t� ��kn�wledge these gifs, gr�nts �nd bequests re�eived �r�� 1 J�nu�ry t� 31 De�e�ber 2017. Gifs �� 
$1000 �r ��re �re ��kn�wledged, unless �therwise requested by �ur d�n�rs.

Te Institute �ls� ��kn�wledges the supp�rt �� the Austr�li�n G�vern�ent thr�ugh s�he�es in�luding the N�ti�n�l 
He�lth �nd Medi��l Rese�r�h C�un�il �nd the Austr�li�n Rese�r�h C�un�il, �nd the Vi�t�ri�n G�vern�ent.

Centenary Donors

Individual and family 

philanthropy

Gifs up to $50,000 Gifs up to $5000

Founding centenary donors

Gifs up to $20,000

Leadership centenary donors

Gifs up to $10,000

Trans�ormational gifs

Gifs up to $2000Gifs up to $200,000

Mr J�e Bendr�r An�ny��us (8)

Mrs Yv�nne Butter�eld 6A F�und�ti�n
Mr M�l��l� Br���he�d

Bri�n M D�vis Ch�rit�ble F�und�ti�n Mr Angel� Bl�deni
CSL Ltd

Mr R�bert Ev�ns �nd Mrs June Cl�pt�n
L.E.W. C�rty Ch�rit�ble Fund

Mrs Meredith Ev�ns Ms K�ye Cle�ry
Te Dys�n Bequest

Mr Mi�h�el H�rris �nd Mr J�hn Edw�rd D�vies
Te Al�red Felt�n Bequest Ms Kelli G�rris�n De��k �i�ber �nd H�rdw�re
Te St���rd F�x Medi��l Rese�r�h Mr Sh�ne Quinn �nd Ms K�y Ehrenberg �nd F�und�ti�n Ms Elin J�h�nss�n Mr S��tt Herne
Te W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll �rust Mrs He�ther Russell Mr Cyril Ev�ns �nd 
Mrs J�ne He�strit�h Mrs Mel�nie R�e �nd Mr Neil R�e Mrs P�uline Ev�ns
Tw�ites Gut�h �rust �� R�bMeree F�und�ti�n Mr Gr�h�� Gilpin

Or��nd C�llege
Te Green F��ily

Te University �� Melb�urne
Te J�hns�n F��ily F�und�ti�nAn�ny��us (3)

Mr J�hn Gr�ty �nd Mr D�n�ld K�y �nd Mrs C�ryl K�y
An�ny��us (1) Mrs B�rb�r� Gr�ty Ms Helen Kenn�n
Te Est�te �� Peter �nd Julie Alst�n Mrs Ren�te H�rding Ms Andre� L�pidge �nd 
DHB F�und�ti�n Mr D�vid ShultisMrs Eliz�beth Le�hy �nd 
Mr Mi�h�el Fitzp�tri�k �nd Mr Philip Le�hy Mr Bri�n Little

Ms Helen Sykes Mr Sh�ne Murphy Dr D�rren L��kie
L�renz� �nd P��el� G�lli Ms M�rie M�D�n�ld Mr Brend�n M�dig�n

Ch�rit�ble �rust
Mr B�b Munr� Mrs Christine M�C�nnell �nd 

Melb�urne W�ter Mr Denis M�C�nnellTe N�ss�l F��ily �rust
Te Met��l� F��ily Ms Cl�ire Murr�yMrs M�rg�ret R�ss am
J�hn � Reid Ch�rit�ble �rusts Pr��ess�r D�vid Peningt�n acVint� Invest�ent M�n�ge�ent 
G�rd�n K S�yth Pty Ltd Mrs Olivi� Quinn
D�vid Winst�n �urner Ms C�therine W�lter am �nd Ms C�r�line Ri�h�rds�n

End�w�ent Fund Mr J�hn W�lter Mrs B�rb�r� Ruse �nd Mr Peter Ruse, 
Mr Adri�n Ruse, Mr Christ�pher 
Ruse, Ms N�n� Ruse, Ms Me�gh�n 

An�ny��us (5)
Herit�ge

Ms Sue Clif�n
Mrs Penny St�tt

Dr Anne C�l��n �nd 
Ms Jenny Str�ngw�rdAn�ny��us (1) Pr��ess�r Peter C�l��n ac
Mr Dun��n �u�kBend�t F��ily F�und�ti�n Pty Ltd Te Shirley Cu� C�n�er Rese�r�h 

F�und�ti�n

Dr Andrew Cuthberts�n ao An�ny��us (15)An�ny��us (2)
De�ern� Pty Ltd Ms Eliz�beth Abb�ttBe�k F��ily F�und�ti�n
Mr Ge�� G�wers �nd Dr Peter Ad��s �nd Te Is�bel & J�hn Gilberts�n 

Ch�rit�ble �rust Mrs Andre� G�wers Dr Sheryl L�ws�n

Te B�rb�r� Luree P�rker Mr J�hn Alls�p �nd Te J��n M�rsh�ll Bre�st C�n�er 
F�und�ti�n Ltd Mrs Helene Alls�pRese�r�h Fund

Cr�ig Perkins C�n�er Rese�r�h Pr��ess�r E�eritus R�bin Anders Mr C�lin N�rth oam �nd 
F�und�ti�nDr Sus�n Alberti ac �nd Dr M�rg�t Anders

Mr D�vid Re�burn Te J��n El�ine B�rry Ms Jenny ��t�hell
Me��ri�l FundMr D�vid Willi��s�nMr Edw�rd Vell���tt �nd 

Mrs M�rn� Vell���tt Mrs Je�n Willi��s�n
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Mrs He�ther Be�nl�nd �nd Mr J�hn W�lker qc �nd Est�te �� M�xwell G�rdiner Help��n
Pr��ess�r D�vid Be�nl�nd Mrs Angel� W�lker Te J�k�b Frenkiel Ch�rit�ble �rust

C�n �nd �rish B�ekel �nd F��ily Ms He�ther White Est�te �� Je�n M�rg�ret Willi��s
Dr M�rg�ret Bru�by am �nd Ms M�rj�rie Wilks Te H�zel & Pip Appel Fund

Mr I�n Bru�by Mrs He�ther Winneke Est�te �� J��n Terese M�tis�n
Mr Leigh Bull �nd Mrs Sue Bull Est�te �� M�rg�ret C��per H�l�es
Mr Bru�e C��hr�ne �nd Te M�rg�ret Stew�rds�n 

Mrs Helen C��hr�ne Austr�li�n R�t�ry He�lth Ch�rit�ble �rust
Ass��i�te Pr��ess�r P�ul C��per �nd Berwi�k Opp�rtunity Sh�p Frederi�k �nd Wini�red Gr�ssi�k 

Mrs J���ui C��per C��l�h L�dy G�l�ers Me��ri�l Fund
Mr Bill Cr�pley �nd P�t�h n Pe��e Irene & R�n�ld M��D�n�ld 

Mrs El�ine Cr�pley F�und�ti�nR�t�ry Club �� Elth��
Mr M�rk Devlin �nd R�t�ry Club �� Melb�urne Est�te �� Ele�n�r M�rgrethe Albist�n 

Mrs Eliz�beth Devlin (Te St�ng Be�uest)R�t�ry Club �� P�int Gellibr�nd
Mrs M�yd� Devlin Est�te J�net M�ry L�nig�nR�t�ry Distri�t 9810
Dr J�ni�e Dudley Est�te �� Ethel M�ry Dru���nd��rneit Skies Resident Ass��i�ti�n In�
Ms Sus�n E�st�n-B�nd Est�te M�ri�n A I H M Spen�e�win ��wns Servi�es C���unity 
Te Din� & R�n G�lds�hl�ger F��ily F�und�ti�n Li�ited Est�te �� Je�n St��ker

Ch�rit�ble F�und�ti�n
Y�rr� Y�rr� G�l� Club Est�te �� Fl�ren�e M�ry Y�ung

Mrs Suz�nne G�w Te B�ldy �rust Fund
Dr Si��n H�user Agnes M�ude Reilly Ch�rit�ble �rust
Mrs M�rg�ret H�yes

Ms ��sh Edw�rds Est�te �� Lydi� R�berts�n
Mr Gr�h�� J��ks�n �nd Mrs B�rb�r� 

Ms Meliss� B�wyer Est�te �� M�ry Is�belle B�ll �nd 
J��ks�n

Ms Bev Br�d��rd J�hn Mendip B�ll
Mrs C�r�line J�hnst�n Est�te D�r�thy M�ry Br�undMs G�il D�ws�n
H & K J�hnst�n F��ily F�und�ti�n Te C.H. B�den Me��ri�l �rustMs V�ness� Dup�nd
Mrs M�rg�ret J�hns�n Rigg Me��ri�l �rustMs S�ndr� G�tt
Mrs M�rg�t Kil�ullen �nd G� & L P�tter Ch�rit�ble �rustTe L���nd H�telMr R�b Kil�ullen

Est�te �� E�ily Ver� WinderPink H�peMr Ge�rge Ki�ss�gl�u �nd 
Est�te �� Evelyn ElderYLC Vi� ��r �ype 1 Di�betes rese�r�hMrs Glend� Ki�ss�gl�u
M�rg�ret Lewis Reilly 

Pr��ess�r V�nd� Lenn�n
Ch�rit�ble �rust

Mr J�hn M�R�e
J�hn Frederi�k Br�nsden A�eri��n Universities Intern�ti�n�l Mrs Ann N�yl�r Ch�rit�ble �rustPr�gr��s

Dr Myles Neri �nd Ms K�trin� N�ss�l Est�te �� Rit� Vi�let Sutherl�ndAMP F�und�ti�n
Ms C�r�lyn O’Byrne Te Fr�nk Br��dhurst Me��ri�l Austr�li�n Chin� Edu��ti�n 
Mr I�n O’Gillin Ch�rit�ble FundF�und�ti�n
Ms Deb�r�h Rei�h Est�te �� the l�te D�reen Merle ��yl�rAustr�li�-Chin� C�un�il
Mrs J�net Ri�h�rds �nd T���s, Annie & D�ris Burgess D�n�ld C�nt W�tts C�rke

Mr Keith Ri�h�rds Ch�rity �rustG�ld��n S��hs M�t�hing Gif 
Mr Dieter Rinke �nd 

Pr�gr��
Mrs M�xine Rinke

Skyse� Pty Ltd
Mr Mi�h�el R�bins�n ao �nd 

Mrs Judith R�bins�n

Ms C�therine R�bs�n �nd 
Mr P�ul R�bs�n

An�ny��us (2)
Mr Keith S�tterley

Est�te �� Al�n G L Sh�w
Dr D R S�ith

Est�te �� P�uline Speedy
Mr R�bert Stephens�n �nd 

Est�te �� Shirley June R�h�n
Mrs R�byn Stephens�n

Est�te �� Ellen C�rin
Mrs K�y Sz�nert

Est�te �� Stephen S�l� Beer��n
Mrs Olive Turlby

Albert H M�ggs Ch�rit�ble �rust
Mr Chris T���s am �nd 

Est�te J�hn Edw�rd UrenMrs Cheryl T���s
Est�te �� J�net M��Le�dMr J�hn T�rnt�n �nd Mrs Gwynedd 
Est�te �� Vivienne P�ulT�rnt�n
Est�te �� Sheil� M�ry Help��nMr R�bert V�n�e �nd 

Mrs Cl�ire V�n�e Est�te P��el� J B�r�l�y

Community organisations

Community fundraisers

Companies and institutions

Gifts in wills  
(Listed by bequest amount)
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International grants  Trustee companies

Metcalf Scholarship Fund

Australian grants  

(Listed by grant amount)

(Listed by grant amount)

Grants o� more than $500,000

Founding gifsGrants o� up to $500,000

Tribute gifs 2017

John Teissen Children’s Found�tion

H�rold �nd P�� Hol�es Austr�li�n Exe�utor �rustees
Ch�rit�ble �rust

Equity �rustees
FSH Glob�l Rese�r�h Found�tion

Leuke�i� & Ly�pho�� So�iety, US Perpetu�l �rustees
ANZUP C�n�er �ri�ls Group

Te Bill & Melind� G�tes Found�tion, St�te �rustees
Te Collie Found�tion

US
Snowdo�e Found�tion

Te M�r�us Found�tion In�., US 
Austr�li�n C�n�er Rese�r�h 

Ludwig C�n�er Rese�r�h, US
Found�tion

Joe White Bequest
Mr Chris To��s am �nd Glob�l He�lth Innov�tive �e�hnology AUSiMED

Fund, J�p�n Mrs Cheryl To��s
Bethlehe� Grifths Rese�r�h 

How�rd Hughes Medi��l Institute, US CSL Li�itedFound�tion  
Hu��n Frontier S�ien�e Progr��, Pro�essor D�vid Ge�ring �nd Dr�kensberg �rust

Fr�n�e Mrs Julie Ge�ring
N�n�y E Penderg�st Ch�rit�ble �rust

Worldwide C�n�er Rese�r�h, UK Austr�li�n Centre �or HIV �nd 
H�rry J. Lloyd Ch�rit�ble �rust, US Hep�titis Virology Rese�r�h Anony�ous (1)
C�n�er Rese�r�h Institute, US Austr�l�si�n G�stro-Intestin�l Dr Mi�h�el Alpers
HJL Ch�rit�ble �rust �ri�ls Group Pro�essor Suz�nne Cory ac �nd 
Mel�no�� Rese�r�h Alli�n�e, US Te S�obie �nd Cl�ire M��kinnon Pro�essor Jerry Ad��s

�rust Ms Roz Ed�ond

Found�tion �or Innov�tion New Te Fin�n�i�l M�rkets Found�tion Ms Sh�ron Giblett
�or ChildrenDi�gnosti�s, Switzerl�nd Ms Alison Neu��ier

Shirley Brundrett P�n�re�ti� C�n�er JDRF, US Mr Geo�rey Wr�tten
Rese�r�h Gr�nt Coeli�� UK Ms Jenny Ye�ts

Kidney He�lth Austr�li� Well�o�e �rust, UK Ms Sh�yz Yuen
Te To��s Willi�� Fr�n�is & Violet N�tion�l Institutes o� He�lth – 

Coles �rustN�tion�l Institute o� Allergy & 
In�e�tious Dise�ses, US Arthritis Austr�li�

L�dy ��t� Me�ori�l �rust, UK CASS Found�tion 

Roy�l College o� P�thologists o� 
Austr�l�si� Found�tion

Lung Found�tion Austr�li�
C�n�er Coun�il Vi�tori� H�e�ophili� Found�tion Austr�li�
Viertel Ch�rit�ble Found�tion Te HMA Found�tion
N�tion�l Bre�st C�n�er Found�tion Te Medi��l Adv�n�es Without 
JDRF Austr�li� (through University Ani��ls �rust (MAWA)

o� South Austr�li�) Pr�der Willi Rese�r�h Found�tion 
Leuke�i� Found�tion Austr�li� Austr�li�

C�rrie’s Be�nies 4 Br�in C�n�er Te Her�on Sl�de Found�tion

Te J��k Bro�kho� Found�tion A�eli� Eliz� Holl�nd �rust

Cure Br�in C�n�er Found�tion R�e Found�tion

C�n�er Austr�li� & Cure C�n�er Bell Ch�rit�ble Fund
Austr�li� Collier Ch�rit�ble �rust

Coeli�� Austr�li� Te Roy�l Austr�l�si�n College 
Di�betes Austr�li� o� Physi�i�ns

Roy�l Melbourne Hospit�l Di�betes V����ine Develop�ent 
Found�tion Centre

DHB Found�tion Te Eirene Lu��s Found�tion

Mel�no�� Rese�r�h Alli�n�e Nell & Her�on Sl�de �rust
Found�tion Te Willi�� Angliss (Vi�tori�) 

Te Phyllis Connor Me�ori�l �rust Ch�rit�ble Fund

Motor Neurone Dise�se Rese�r�h S.�.A.F – Rupert, Ethel & Ron�ld 
Institute o� Austr�li� Fr�ser & Ruby To��s

Te I�n Potter Found�tion Te J Elliston Endow�ent

Te H�rry Se�o�b Found�tion

Grants o� up to $100,000
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Exceptional science and people

Below: Clinician-scientist and Mathison Centenary Fellow 
Dr Maryam Rashidi is searching � or new ways to treat 
inf ammatory diseases such as lup us and psoriasis.
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Bringing new therapy hope to brain cancer
Brain cancer is responsible for more deaths in people under the age of 40 than any other 

cancer, and more deaths in Australian children than any other disease. Our researchers 

are hoping to improve the treatments available for people with this devastating disease.

The immune system fights back

Immunotherapies – treatments that harness the “Our goal is to tailor immunotherapies to the brain in 
body’s own immune system to �ght their cancer – order to kill tumour cells without provoking harm�ul 
have shown signi�cant promise �or treating several infammation and side-e�ects in the healthy parts o� the 
cancers, in particular melanoma and lung cancers. brain,” Dr Jenkins said.
Dr Misty Jenkins leads a research team investigating Dr Jenkins and colleague Dr Ryan Cross are investigating a 
whether immunotherapy could have the same impact type o� immunotherapy in which a patient’s immune cells 
in brain cancer. are isolated, genetically modi�ed to become ‘super killer 

cells’, and given back to the patient to �ght their cancer.

Dr Cross said an exciting aspect o� the research was 
that it aimed to initiate clinical trials. “Tese will test 
whether the cancer-�ghting immune cells we generate 
are an e�ective treatment �or brain cancer when given to 

Brain cancer has had no new therapies in decades, Dr patients,” he said.
Jenkins said. “Brain cancer o�en becomes resistant to Dr Jenkins’ laboratory and its exciting research have 
conventional treatments or, due to the in�ltrative nature bene�ted �rom much-needed community support, 
o� the disease, cannot be surgically removed,” she said. including Carrie’s Beanies 4 Brain Cancer Foundation, Cure 
“Brain cancer is exactly the type o� disease that could Brain Cancer Foundation, Financial Markets Foundation 
potentially bene�t �rom immunotherapy”. �or Children and the Robert Connor Dawes Foundation. 
However using immunotherapy is a challenge in “Ultimately, we’d like to contribute our innovation to an 
brain cancer, as the brain is particularly vulnerable to area that could have the biggest impact – bene�ting sick  
infammatory side-e�ects associated with it. people and their �amilies,” Dr Jenkins said.

“Brain cancer is exactly the type 

o�  disease that could potentially 

benef t � rom immunotherapy.”



Annual Report 2017   15

New drugs for brain cancer

Dr Ruth Mitchell, a clinician PhD student at the 

Institute and trainee neurosurgeon at The Royal 

Children’s Hospital Melbourne, is combining her 

clinical and research skills to improve the outlook 

for people with brain cancer.

Brain cancer had a devastating impact on the lives 

of patients and their families, Dr Mitchell said.

“I’ve watched my colleagues working with other 

changed the future for their patients,” she said. 

“I want that for my patients.”

Dr Mitchell’s PhD studies, supported by the Royal 

Australasian College of Surgeons, investigated 

EGFR, a protein that is often overactive and 

mutated in brain cancer, and its role in causing 

cancers to grow.

“In the past decade new medicines that block 

EGFR have shown great promise for treating certain 

types of cancer. I am hopeful that we could one day 

see a similar impact for people with brain cancer,” 

Dr Mitchell said.

cancers�fnd�new�drugs�and�approaches�that�have�

Switching on cell death machinery

Medulloblastoma is a �ast-growing brain cancer that 
primarily afects young children.

Pro�essor Andreas Strasser, Associate Pro�essor Anne 
Voss, Dr Francine Ke and Dr Kerstin Brinkmann 
are investigating whether ‘switching on’ the cell 
death machinery could be efective in treating 
medulloblastoma.

Pro�essor Strasser said he hoped emerging drugs that 
switch on cell death machinery – called BH3-mimetics – 
would prove efective �or medulloblastoma.

BH3-mimetics block the cells’ in-built survival systems 
and have shown promise in other cancers, particularly 
leukaemia.

“Te only current therapies �or children with 
medulloblastoma are highly invasive with very 
signi�cant and permanent side-efects on motor, sensory 
and cognitive �unction,” Pro�essor Strasser said.

“Our team is developing novel strategies to treat patients 
with brain cancer in a more efective and less invasive 
way with BH3-mimetics. Our hope is that we could 
achieve complete regression o� the tumour and prolong 
survival without detrimental side-efects.”

Above: Brain cancer researcher Dr Misty Jenkins (right) with 
Ms Carrie Bickmore, whose Carrie’s Beanies 4 Brain Cancer 
Foundation is supporting Dr Jenkins’ research into new brain 
cancer treatments.

In the past 30 years the prognosis 
f or people with brain cancer has not 

improved, desp ite improvements in the 
outcomes f or many other cancer types.

Only one in f ve p eop le 

diag nosed with brain cancer 

will survive f ve years.

Exceptional science and people
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Australians frst in the world to 
trial new anti-cancer agent
A research partnership between the Institute, The Alfred Hospital and industry partner 

Servier�has�led�to�the��rst-in-human�trials�of�a�potential�new�anti-cancer�agent.

Te evasion o� the normal process o� cell death can lead collaborations underpinned this exciting advance. It was 
to the development o� cancer, and also renders cancer wonder�ul that Australian patients were among the �rst in 
cells resistant to anti-cancer treatments. the world to access this potential anti-cancer agent,” he said.

It has been 30 years since Institute researchers made these Associate Pro�essor Andrew Wei, the international 
discoveries. Intense worldwide eforts have subsequently clinical coordinator at Te Al�red Hospital, said a pivotal 
�ocused on developing anti-cancer agents that restore milestone had been achieved. “We are now entering an 
cancer cells’ susceptibility to cell death. exciting research phase, learning how best to use this new 

drug in patients with blood cancers and other human A signi�cant �ocus has been on MCL-1, a pro-survival 
malignancies,” he said.protein that is known to help more than a quarter o� all 

cancers avoid cell death.

Could MCL-1 inhibitors potentially be tested sa�ely in 
combination with other anti-cancer agents? Pro�essor Institute research teams collaborated with Servier on 
Andreas Strasser is leading a research team investigating the development and testing o� a new agent that inhibits 
the sa�ety o� such combination treatments.MCL-1. In 2017 Servier’s MCL-1 inhibitor entered clinical 

trials at Melbourne’s Al�red Hospital. MCL-1 inhibitors may be able to enhance the sensitivity 
o� cancer cells to conventional chemotherapy, Pro�essor 
Strasser said. “However, i� this was likely to cause damage 
to normal healthy tissues it would not be a sa�e approach 
to pursue in the clinic,” he said.

“Studies in laboratory models by Dr Kerstin Brinkmann 
Te treatment, which Servier is developing in have suggested that MCL-1 inhibitors may be sa�ely tested 
collaboration with pharmaceutical company Novartis, is in combination with a wide range o� chemotherapeutic 
being trialled in patients with acute myeloid leukaemia, agents. Tis will open avenues �or testing many exciting 
lymphoma and myeloma. combination treatments with the new MCL-1 inhibitor in 

Associate Pro�essor Guillaume Lessene said he was patients with diverse cancers,” Pro�essor Strasser said.

delighted to see the MCL-1 inhibitor enter clinical 
trials. “Te Institute’s three decades o� expertise in cell 
death research and commitment to translational research 

Future combination therapies

Clinical trials begin for blood cancers

“It was wonder� ul that Australian patients 
were among the f rst in the world to 

access this potential anti-cancer agent.” 

Below: Dr Kerstin Brinkmann is part o�  a team o�  researchers 
investigating MCL-1 inhibitors as new treatments � or cancer.

Te new anti-cancer 

agent targets a p rotein 

that sustains g rowth 

of  up to one quarter 

of  all cancers.
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Bowel cancer researcher Associate Pro�essor Oliver Sieber “I have gained a good insight into the exact research that 
is contributing to new ways to diagnose and treat this Oliver’s team is undertaking. I� I can help Oliver in his 
disease. Be�ore he put his name �orward �or the Consumer research then that is great, i� I can assist in his gaining 
Buddy Program, Associate Pro�essor Sieber said analysing grants that is even better.
patients’ samples and data was the closest he got to the 
people he hoped his research would help.

“As a bench researcher you are generally removed �rom 
the actual patient – you rarely have the opportunity to 
speak to the people who might bene�t �rom the research,” 
he said. “It is also great to let others know about bowel cancer 
Associate Pro�essor Sieber was matched with bowel research that is underway – g it ives them hope. It is really 
cancer survivor Ms Elaine Duxbury, with whom he heartening to be involved in this science, which will make 
regularly meets. Ms Duxbury helps review lay summaries a diference to bowel cancer in the �uture,” Ms Duxbury 
as part o� �unding applications, and has been included as said.
an associate investigator �or ongoing projects.

Having Ms Duxbury as a buddy had given him a new 
perspective on his research, he said.

“Te buddy program has been a unique opportunity 
�or a deeper relationship. Te personal stories o� people 
afected by cancer give me added motivation and �ocus. I 
think that’s very important because it’s easy to get lost in 
what you’re doing in the lab and lose sight o� the human 
aspect,” Associate Pro�essor Sieber said.

Ms Duxbury said she had experienced the worst efects o� 
bowel cancer, having lost several close �amily members as 
well surviving the disease hersel�.

“Tis has given me a unique perspective o� the world o� 
cancer and thus gave me a reason to get involved with 
cancer advocacy,” she said.

A unique perspective

“It is really heartening to be involved in 

this science, which will make a dif erence 

to bowel cancer in the � uture.” 

Consumer buddies enhance research
The�Institute’s�Consumer�Buddy�Program�connects�our�researchers�with�people�afected�by�disease.�

This is help gin  scientists and impacting the way research is being carried out at the Institute.

Above: Bowel cancer survivor Ms Elaine Duxbury contributes to 
our research through the Institute’s Consumer Buddy Program.

Te Institute supp orted 32 

consumer-scientist buddy 

p airs in 2017.

Exceptional science and people
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Spotlight on breast cancer
Breast�cancer�is�the�most�common�cancer�afecting�Australian�women,�

with one in eight women being diagnosed with it by the age of 85. Our 

researchers are determined to improve the way breast cancer is diagnosed 

and treated, and to prevent this cancer before it develops.

New insights into cancer development

In the 20 years since Pro�essor Jane Visvader and “We were able to app yl  our expertise in bioin�ormatics 
Pro�essor Geo� Lindeman established the Institute’s to distinguish the diverse populations o� cells in the 
breast cancer laboratory, their research has unravelled breast, revealing striking changes in the gene expression 
the poorly understood biology o� normal breast cells to programs that contribute to breast development,” he said.
understand how and why they become cancerous.

Pro�essor Visvader said the same approach could be 
Te breast cancer laboratory collaborates closely applied to understanding which cells go awry in women 
with colleagues across the Institute, including at increased risk o� developing breast cancer. “It provides 
bioin�ormaticians who use their mathematical and a new way o� investigating the di�erent types o� breast 
computer modelling expertise to uncover the secrets o� cancer in much greater depth, and has important 
breast cancers. implications �or understanding how breast cancer arises,” 

she said.
In 2017 a collaboration jointly led by Pro�essor Visvader, 
Pro�essor Lindeman and bioin�ormatician Pro�essor 
Gordon Smyth revealed new insights into the molecular 
changes that drive breast development.

Pro�essor Smyth said the team �ocused on changes in 
breast cells be�ore, during and afer puberty, comparing 
which genes were expressed by the cells – their 
‘transcriptome’.

Above: Breast cancer researchers Pro� essor Jane Visvader (right) 
and Pro� essor Geof  Lindeman won the 2017 Victoria Prize � or 
Science and Innovation in the Li� e Sciences.
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Breakthroughs lead to cancer trials

�ranslating research discoveries to health outcomes is an 
important �ocus o� our breast cancer research, and several 
current clinical trials have their origins in our research.

One trial has arisen �rom research into how breast cancer 
could potentially be prevented in women with inherited 
mutations in the  gene, who have a 70 per cent 
li�etime risk o� developing breast cancer.

Te BRCA-P randomised phase 3 clinical trial, run 
in Australia by Breast Cancer �rials, will test whether 
denosumab could sa�ely and efectively reduce the 
incidence o� breast cancer in high-risk women with a 
�aulty  gene. In 2017 the National Health and 
Medical Research Council (NHMRC) awarded almost 
$2.6 million to Pro�essor Lindeman, who is also a medical 
oncologist at Te Royal Melbourne Hospital and Peter 
Mac, and his team �or this international study.

Te trial is based on a study by our researchers in 2016, 
which showed that denosumab could switch of cell growth 
in breast tissue �rom women with a �aulty  gene and 
curtailed breast cancer development in laboratory models.

In 2017 our researchers also revealed a potential new way 
to use immunotherapy to treat aggressive triple negative 
breast cancers, around 15 per cent o� which arise in 
women with  mutations.

Te study was jointly led by Pro�essor Lindeman, Associate 
Pro�essor Daniel Gray and Pro�essor Visvader, with 
Pro�essor Sherene Loi and Associate Pro�essor Phil Darcy 
�rom Peter Mac.

Associate Pro�essor Gray said the immunotherapy 
unleashed critical immune cells, enabling them to attack 
tumours. “We showed that combining anti-PD1 and anti-
C�LA4 immunotherapies with chemotherapy halted the 
growth o� the BRCA1-related tumours and signi�cantly 
improved survival in laboratory models,” he said. 

Te �ndings provide compelling evidence that clinical 
trials o� combined immunotherapy should be considered 
in women with these breast cancers.

Pro�essor Loi, who is also a medical oncologist, said 
plans were underway to progress a clinical trial o� anti-
PD1 and anti-C�LA4 immunotherapies, together with 
chemotherapy, in women with triple negative breast cancers.

“Tis is a great example o� how collaborations within the 
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre support stronger 
links between the laboratory and the clinic,” she said.

Te CHARIO� trial, led by Peter Mac and run by Breast 
Cancer �rials Australia, will start soon at Peter Mac 
and the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre in 
Melbourne, and six other sites around Australia.

BRCA1

BRCA1

BRCA1

BRCA1

“It is exciting that we are now seeing 

our research benef t women in 

Victoria through clinical trials.” 

Women with a f aulty 

gene have a 70 p er cent 

lif etime risk of  develop ing 

breast cancer.

BRCA1 

The power of support

Community support has been vital for our breast 

cancer research. 

In 2017 this support included funding from the 

Australian Cancer Research Foundation, The Collie 

Foundation, Cure Cancer Australia, the Lomond 

Hotel, Joan Marshall Breast Cancer Research Fund, 

National Breast Cancer Foundation, Pink Hope, The 

Qualtrough Cancer Research Fund, Rotary Club of 

Point Gellibrand, 6A Foundation and the Victorian 

and Australian Governments.

Professor Visvader said breast cancer impacted 

many people in the Australian community. “As 

the most common form of cancer diagnosed in 

women, most people know someone who has had 

this disease,” she said. “Our long-term vision has 

always been to improve therapies for the prevention 

and treatment of breast cancer. It is exciting that 

Victoria through clinical trials.”

we�are�now�seeing�our�research�beneft�women�in�

Our breast cancer research has 
contributed to two clinical trials 
aiming to prevent or treat breast 

cancer in these women.

Exceptional science and people
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Deploying immune cells against cancer Charting new cancer treatments

Immune cells detect in�ected or cancerous cells using Te structure o� a protein involved in the development 
receptors made up o� clusters o� proteins on the cell and spread o� aggressive breast, colon and pancreatic 
sur�ace. cancers could guide the development o� new cancer 

treatments.Working with collaborators in Spain and the US, 
Associate Pro�essor Matthew Call and Dr Melissa Call Dr Onisha Patel and Dr Isabelle Lucet used the Australian 
discovered an important step in how these immune Synchrotron in Melbourne to generate the �rst map o� the 
receptors are assembled. protein SgK223. Tis protein acts as a ‘molecular sca�old’, 

�acilitating the assembly o� vital signalling molecules, Dr Di�erent combinations o� proteins in the receptor 
Lucet said. “Tese molecules control the normal �unctions complex infuence how an immune cell responds when 
o� a cell, such as cell shape and migration. High levels o� it makes contact with an in�ected or cancerous cell, said 
SgK223 can jeopardise the normal �unctions o� a cell and Associate Pro�essor Matthew Call. “Our team identi�ed 
contribute to changes that lead to cancer,” Dr Lucet said.the �eatures o� the proteins that allow these pieces to 

assemble in speci�c combinations,” he said. Te unprecedented view o� the structure o� SgK223 
revealed to the research team how the protein �unctions 
within cancer cells, Dr Patel said. “Our �uture research 
will �ocus on whether medicines targeting SgK223 could 
be developed as a potential new approach to treating 
cancers,” she said.

Understanding how immune receptors assemble 
could pave the way �or �uture improvements in cancer 
immunotherapy, said Dr Melissa Call. “We �ocus on 
receptors that are important �or immune cells to detect 
cancer cells,” she said. “We hope our discovery could 
underpin improvements in engineering immune cells to 
attack cancer.”

“We hope our discovery could 

underp in improvements in eng ineering 

immune cells to attack cancer.”

Above: A 3D view of  the protein SgK223 is providing clues to 
understanding this protein’s f unctions in cancer cells.

Molecule mapp g gin  uides new cancer treatments
A�signi�cant�focus�of� Institute�research�is�discovering�new�medicines�and�therapies�based�

on a deep understanding of the molecules involved in disease. Understanding the structures 

of proteins is a valuable way to investigate their function, and to develop potential new 

structure-guided therapies. 

What is 
structural biology?

Structural biology enables 

our scientists to visualise 

the three-dimensional (3D) 

structures of molecules 

involved in cancers, immune 

disorders and infectious 

diseases. 

By mapping these 

molecules, scientists can 

explain how they function, 

how dysfunctional molecules 

cause disease, and engineer 

structure of ‘target’ proteins 

that drive diseases such 

conditions.

new�medicines�to��t�the�

as�cancer�or�in�ammatory�



Accolade for scienti�c leader 

Professor Peter Colman  was appointed 

a Companion of the Order of Australia, 

Australia’s highest civilian honour, in the 2017 

Queen’s Birthday Honours List.

Professor Colman joined the Institute from 

CSIRO in 2001 to establish the Structural 

Biology division, which also included the 

physics in Adelaide, Professor Colman has 

championed the use of X-ray crystallography 

to reveal the three-dimensional structures 

of proteins. 

During his career, Professor Colman’s 

research has underpinned the discovery of 

which were designed to precisely bind 

critical proteins implicated in these diseases. 

the award recognised Professor Colman’s 

to improve treatment options for patients, 

and his mentorship of younger researchers.

Professor Colman led the Institute’s 

Structural Biology division until his retirement 

as division head in 2017. He continues to 

lead a laboratory in the division.

ac

Institute’s�frst�medicinal�chemists.�Trained�in�

new�medicines�to�treat�in�uenza�and�cancer,�

In�addition�to�his�scientifc�achievements,�

leadership�in�translating�scientifc�discoveries�

Exceptional science and people
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Improving therapies for testicular cancer Scholarship supports myeloma research

�esticular cancer is the second most common cancer Myeloma is an incurable blood cancer that develops �rom 
in young men aged 18-39, however clinical studies o� antibody-producing immune cells called plasma cells. 
testicular cancer in Australia have been hampered by Current treatments can only slow the growth o� myeloma 
its relative rarity statistically, and when compared with and, with an average li�e expectancy o� �our years a�er 
other cancers. diagnosis, new therapies are urgently needed.

Dr Ben �ran is developing a new online database, , 
to collate and analyse in�ormation about Australians with 
testicular cancer.

 will be a valuable resource �or researchers in “
Australia to improve the treatments available �or men 

A Leukaemia Foundation Clinical PhD Scholarship with testicular cancer,” Dr �ran said.
has supported haematologist Dr Pasquale Fedele’s 

Dr �ran, a clinician-scientist at the Institute and medical investigations o� how myeloma cells respond to recently 
oncologist at the Peter Mac, said many clinicians rely on developed classes o� drugs. 
overseas studies to in�orm their treatment decisions.

Dr Fedele’s PhD research discovered that 
“It is challenging �or one hospital to enrol sufcient immunomodulatory drugs (IMiDs) exploit a molecular 
Australian patients with testicular cancer to conduct a pathway to make myeloma cells more susceptible to 
clinical trial, or �or researchers to access enough tissue immune attack. “Tis revealed a potential �or combining 
samples to undertake meaning�ul studies,” he said. IMiDs with another new class o� anti-myeloma drugs,” 

A grant �rom the Below the Belt Research Fund, an he said.

initiative o� the Australia and New Zealand Urological Dr Fedele said it was exciting to be at the �ore�ront o� 
and Prostate Cancer Clinical �rials group (ANZUP), investigating new treatments �or myeloma. “As a clinician, 
is enabling Dr �ran to establish a user-�riendly, I hope my research will lead to better outcomes �or people 
multidisciplinary database that will record current with myeloma.”
treatment practices and availability o� clinical samples, 
increasing the possibility o� recruiting Australian patients 
�or clinical trials. 

“As a clinician, I hope my research 

will lead to better outcomes 

f or peop le with myeloma.”

Enhancing research translation for better health
Clinician-scientists�enhance�medical�research�at�the�Institute�through�their�frst-hand�

experience of medical practice and the needs of patients, as well as supporting valuable 

links between the laboratory and the clinic.

iTestis

iTestis

Above: Clinician PhD student Dr Pasquale Fedele’s research aims 
to improve the treatments available f or myeloma, an incurable 
blood cancer.

More than 40 

medically trained 

researchers work at 

the Institute.
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Dr Moghaddas is a PhD student at the Institute and “Being able to put a label on the disorder is a really 
clinical registrar at Te Royal Melbourne Hospital. As part important way �or patients and their �amilies to start to 
o� her PhD she has established a national registry that deal with this condition.”
she hopes will improve the lives o� people su�ering �rom 
autoin�ammatory diseases.

Te registry o�ers genetic sequencing to people who have Te Australian Autoin�ammatory Diseases Registry will 
tested negative �or all the known genetic changes. Finding provide clinicians and researchers with in�ormation about 
a genetic cause can match people to more targeted disease incidence and management, and help identi�y the 
treatments, improve prognosis, help with �amily pgenetic causes o� autoin�ammatory diseases. lanning 
and �nally give a name to the disease.

Autoin�ammatory diseases, or periodic �ever syndromes, 
are a group o� rare diseases caused by changes in genes 
that regulate the immune system.

People with autoin�ammatory diseases su�er seemingly 
unprovoked episodes o� �ever, rashes, joint swelling and During her PhD, supervised by Associate Pro�essor Seth 
other in�ammatory symptoms, which can lead to long- Masters, Dr Moghaddas also investigated how novel 
term damage o� vital organs. genetic changes in people with autoin�ammatory diseases 

lead to activation o� the innate immune system.While the genetic changes responsible �or some 
autoin�ammatory diseases are already known, there are But, even when she is in the laboratory, Dr Moghaddas’ 
still many patients who do not have a change in any o� the patients are always the priority. 
known disease-causing genes. “I �eel as committed to the people I recruit to the registry 
Dr Moghaddas said not having an ofcial diagnosis o�en as I do to patients that I physically see in clinic,” she said.
led to great stress and uncertainty.

“Many o� these �amilies have seen multiple doctors, had 
a child who has been unwell �or long periods o� time 
and has missed large amounts o� school and still can’t 
get a de�nitive answer or diagnosis,” Dr Moghaddas said. 

Patients are the priority

Tracking down the cause
“Being able to p ut a label on the disorder is 

a really important way � or patients and their 

� amilies to start to deal with this condition.” 

Improving the lives of people with rare diseases
For PhD student and clinician Dr Fiona Moghaddas, improving the lives of her patients 

with�autoinfammatory�diseases�is�always�the�priority.

Below: Clinician PhD student Dr Fiona Moghaddas 
is investigating the gene changes that cause rare 
autoinf ammatory diseases.

Exceptional science and people
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Researchers win top  
Institute award 

The Institute’s highest honour, the Burnet Prize, was 

awarded to cell death researchers Dr Gemma Kelly 

(right) and Associate Professor James Murphy in 2017.

Dr Kelly’s research showed the protein MCL-1 is critical 

for the survival of many cancer cells. She is contributing 

leukaemias and other cancers (see page 16).

Associate Professor Murphy discovered the mechanism 

by which the protein MLKL drives necroptosis, a 

development of drugs that target necroptosis for 

treating diseases including stroke, neurodegenerative 

diseases and cancer.

to�the�translation�of�this��nding�as�a�new�treatment�for�

type�of�in�ammatory�cell�death.�He�is�now�leading�
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Improving outcomes for people with type 1 diabetes
Type 1 diabetes is an incurable immune disorder that destroys the pancreas’ ability to produce insulin, 

a hormone essential to processing and storing sugar from our food. Our researchers are investigating 

the causes of type 1 diabetes, focusing on early detection and intervention. 

Early detection key to preventing diabetes

Funding support for early intervention

“In 2017 we completed a trial that �rst screened more 
than 10,000 relatives o� people with type 1 diabetes, to 

Identi�ying risk �actors �or developing type 1 diabetes is identi�y children at high risk. Tis has allowed us to test 
an important way our researchers are improving the early the e�ects o� a nasal insulin immune therapy that may 
detection and treatment o� people with this disease. prevent type 1 diabetes �rom developing.”

Institute scientist Pro�essor Len Harrison, who is also a 
clinician at Te Royal Melbourne Hospital, led a team 
that developed immune screening tests �or children and Diabetes research led by Pro�essor Harrison and Pro�essor 

adolescents at risk o� developing type 1 diabetes. Te Andrew Lew, with collaborators at St Vincent’s Institute o� 

tests can identi�y more than 80 per cent o� children and Medical Research and Te Westmead Institute �or Medical 

adolescents who will go on to develop type 1 diabetes, and Research, received a �ve-year, $9.5 million National 

are now in use in paediatric health centres in Australia. Health and Medical Research Council (NHMRC) 
Program Grant to investigate new therapies �or people in 
early stages o� type 1 diabetes.

Diabetes Australia and YLC Victoria are �unding Dr 
John Wentworth’s investigations into a potential new 
treatment to delay or halt disease progression in people 
with early-stage typPro�essor Harrison said testing and identi�ying children e 1 diabetes. Dr Wentworth, who is 
also a clinician at Te Royal Melbourne Hospital, said the with preclinical diabetes almost completely eliminated 
support would allow his team to complete studies using children presenting with acute, li�e-threatening disease at 
a drug called empaglifozin in people who have just been diagnosis. “Early diagnosis and subsequent monitoring 
diagnosed with type 1 diabetes to see whether it could have allowed children to avoid acute, li�e-threatening 
preserve their pancreas �unction.complications o� diabetes. Te tests have also allowed us 

to identi�y children who are candidates �or clinical trials 
to prevent type 1 diabetes,” Pro�essor Harrison said. 

“Early diagnosis and subsequent monitoring 

have allowed children to avoid acute, lif e-

threatening complications of  diabetes.”
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More than 130,000 

Australians have  

typ e 1 diabetes

Eating to prevent diabetes How does our environment contribute?

Te right diet may protect against type 1 diabetes, For many years it has been thought that environmental 
according to collaborative research involving Institute �actors – such as diet or exposure to certain in�ections – 
scientists. infuence a person’s risk o� developing type 1 diabetes.

Te study showed that eating a diet high in the short- Pro�essor Harrison and Dr Wentworth are lead 
chain �atty acids acetate and butyrate, or a high-�bre diet investigators in the Environmental Determinants o� 
that enhanced production o� these short-chain �atty acids Islet Autoimmunity (ENDIA) Study, the only study in 
by gut bacteria, could prevent the development o� type 1 the world that �ollows mothers �rom early pregnancy, 
diabetes in a laboratory model. and their o�spring at genetic risk o� type 1 diabetes, to 

understand how environment and genes interact to cause 
Pro�essor Harrison, who contributed to the research, said 

type 1 diabetes. 
changes in the Western diet had led to our gut bacteria 
becoming much less complex and diverse, and less able to More than 1000 mother-in�ant pairs have now been 
protect against infammatory diseases like type 1 diabetes. recruited to the trial, Pro�essor Harrison said. “We have 

observed signi�cant changes in the ‘gut microbiome’ 
“Tis approach o� �eeding short-chain �atty acids to 

– the total diversity o� bacteria living in the intestine – 
mimic a super high-�bre diet is directly translatable to 

that are connected to developing type 1 diabetes. We are 
humans, and we plan to test this through a clinical trial in 

now investigating how the gut microbiome infuences 
humans with type 1 diabetes,” Pro�essor Harrison said.

metabolism and the activity o� genes regulating immune 
Te study involved researchers �rom the Walter and �unction,” he said.
Eliza Hall Institute, Monash University’s Biomedicine 

ENDIA is �unded by the NHMRC, JDRF Australia and an 
Discovery Institute and CSIRO, with national and 

anonymous international donor.
international collaborators.

Above: Diabetes researchers Pro� essor Len Harrison (lef ) and  
Pro� essor Andrew Lew are leading collaborative research to 
develop early intervention therap ies � or type 1 diabetes.

Preventing pancreas destruction

Type 1 diabetes is caused by T cells destroying 

insulin-secreting cells in our pancreas. Institute 

research into how T cells attack the body’s own 

tissues, led by Dr Robyn Sutherland and Professor 

Andrew Lew, may reveal new strategies to curb 

this destruction.

Dr Sutherland said the team had discovered how 

T cells were stimulated in organs such as the 

pancreas. “It was a mystery how the potency of 

the immune response was being enhanced in 

these organs,” she said. “We have now revealed 

a previously unrecognised process that drives T 

be stopped, it might lead to early interventions 

that prevent the immune-mediated destruction of 

tissues in diseases such as type 1 diabetes.”

cells�within�in�amed�organs.�If�this�process�can�

Institute researchers have developed 
screening tests that can identif y more 

than 80 per cent of  children who 
will develop type 1 diabetes, and 

which are now in use in paediatric 
health centres in Australia.

Exceptional science and people



28   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

Regulating immune function for good health
Our�immune�system�is�vital�for��ghting�infections�in�our�bodies,�but�misdirected�

or overactive immune responses can harm our own tissues. Our researchers are 

uncovering the intricate controls that determine whether or not an immune response is 

launched, and how immune cells are constrained to prevent unwanted damage.

Crucial link found for protective immunity Keeping immune responses in check

A longstanding mystery o� how viruses trigger protective Regulatory � cells (�-reg cells) control the strength o� an 
immunity was solved by Institute research. immune response depending on the level o� ‘threat’ �rom 

minor in�ections to aggressive diseases.
Dr �an Nguyen, Dr Ken Pang and collaborators at the 
Institute, Hudson Institute o� Medical Research and Without this regulatory infuence, the immune system 
Harvard University, US, discovered a protein called SID�2 is at risk o� overreacting to a minor threat, potentially 
was essential �or cells to respond to viral components. contributing to the development o� infammatory diseases 

such as arthritis. 
During a viral in�ection, RNA – a genetic material similar 
to DNA – is released into the environment around the 
in�ected cells. Viral RNA is detected by human cells as a 
warning sign o� an active viral in�ection, Dr Nguyen said. 

“Viral RNA is an important trigger �or cells to establish an 
Dr Sheila Dias and Pro�essor Stephen Nutt, in 

immune response to �ght the virus,” he said. “We showed 
collaboration with a team o� immunologists and 

�or the �rst time that SID�2 was crucial �or transporting 
bioin�ormaticians, discovered that the protein Myb gives 

viral RNA within the cell, allowing it to trigger antiviral 
�-reg cells the ‘authority’ to control the strength o� the 

immunity.”
immune response.

Viruses have many strategies to evade immune detection, 
Dr Dias said Myb was vital �or proper immune �unction. 

Dr Pang said. “Intriguingly, we discovered SID�2 enables 
“Without Myb, �-reg cells could not control immune 

unin�ected ‘bystander’ cells to detect viral RNA in their 
responses, resulting in severe infammation. Tis provides 

environment,” he said. “Tis means bystanders can 
a new insight into how our immune system works, and 

trigger protective immunity be�ore they are in�ected 
could give new clues �or treating harm�ul infammatory 

by the virus.”
diseases,” Dr Dias said. 

In recognition o� his scienti�c achievements, Dr Nguyen 
was honoured as a joint recipient o� a 2018 Victorian 
Premier’s Award �or Science and Medical Research.

“Tis… could g ive new clues � or treating 

harm� ul inf ammatory diseases.” 

Above: Dr �an Nguyen (le� ) and Dr Ken Pang led research 
that discovered a critical step in how invading viruses trigger 
immune responses.
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Soothing inflammatory skin conditions Testosterone may reveal asthma treatment

Many in�ammatory skin conditions, including eczema One in nine Australians – around 2.5 million people – has 
and psoriasis, can be triggered by the death o� cells in the asthma, an in�ammatory airway condition that makes it 
outer layer o� the skin. difcult to breathe. 

Skin in�ammation relies on a protein called RIPK1, An international research collaboration has discovered 
according to research led by PhD student Ms Holly that the hormone testosterone protects against developing 
Anderton, Dr Najoua Lalaoui and Pro�essor John Silke, asthma by suppressing the production o� a type o� 
in collaboration with Pro�essor George Varigos, a Royal immune cell that triggers asthma.
Melbourne Hospital dermatologist. Pro�essor Gabrielle Belz and Dr Cyril Seillet led the  

collaboration, with colleagues at the Institute and 
in France.

Pro�essor Belz said the discovery helped to explain why 
�emales were two times more likely to develop asthma 
than males a�er puberty.

Te team investigated how to switch o� skin “We identi�ed that testosterone is a potent inhibitor o� 
in�ammation by inhibiting cell death, Ms Anderton said. innate lymphoid cells, a newly described immune cell 
“Our work relied on a new laboratory model that has that has been associated with the initiation o� asthma,” 
many similarities to a rare but �atal �orm o� extreme skin Pro�essor Belz said.
in�ammation triggered by certain viral in�ections or drug 

“Tis discovery provides us with a potential new way 
reactions,” she said. 

to treat asthma, by targeting the cells that are directly 
Dr Lalaoui said the team discovered that depleting contributing to its development. While more research 
RIPK1 prevented the skin in�ammation. “Tis is exciting needs to be done, it does open up the possibility o� 
because medications that inhibit RIPK1 are already mimicking the e�ects o� testosterone to treat or prevent 
in clinical trials �or other in�ammatory conditions asthma,” she said.
including psoriasis,” Dr Lalaoui said. “We hope that these 
drugs could o�er relie� to people with in�ammatory 
skin conditions.”

“We hope that these drugs 

could o� er relie�  to peop le with 

inf ammatory skin conditions.”

Targeting the causes o� infammatory diseases
In�ammation�is�an�early�defence�that�protects�our�body�from�infection,�but�many�

diseases�are�caused�by�ongoing�or�misdirected�in�ammation.�Our�research�seeks�to�

understand�how�in�ammation�is�controlled,�with�a�goal�of�developing�new�treatments�

for�in�ammatory�diseases.

Below: A link between cell death and inf ammatory 
skin conditions was revealed by a research collaboration 
between PhD student Ms Holly Anderton (centre), 
Dr Naj oua Lalaoui (right) and Pro� essor George Varigos.

Exceptional science and people



30   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

Bioinformatics: decoding medical research 
Predicting cancer spread Incurable eye disease genes discovered

Most cancer deaths are caused by tumours that have Macular telangiectasia type 2 (Mac�el) is an incurable eye 
spread, a process called metastasis. disease that can lead to blindness, mainly a�ecting people 

�rom the age o� 40 on.PhD student Ms Momeneh Foroutan and Dr Melissa 
Davis have investigated how cancer metastasis is driven Pro�essor Melanie Bahlo, Dr Tomas Scerri and PhD 
by a protein called �GF-β. Using bioin�ormatics they student Ms Anna Quaglieri led an international team that 
pinpointed a gene ‘signature’ associated with �GF-β discovered the �rst evidence o� genes that cause this rare 
signalling and analysed thousands o� cancer samples and complex disease.
to reveal which tumours showed this signature, Pro�essor Bahlo said the team analysed more than six 
Ms Foroutan said. million genetic markers and identi�ed �ve genetic regions 
“We discovered that tumours with this �GF-β gene that had similar patterns in people with the disease.
signature had poor survival outcomes and ofen 
responded poorly to treatment,” she said.

Dr Davis said predicting patients at risk o� metastasis 
could enable proactive treatment to prevent their cancers 
spreading. 

“Tere are already medicines available that block �GF-β 
signalling, so identi�ying cancers with this gene signature “Tese �ve genetic risk loci are our ‘treasure map’, telling 
could be use�ul to assess whether patients might bene�t us where to keep digg gin  in order to discover the speci�c 
�rom these cancer drugs,” she said. genes implicated in Mac�el,” Pro�essor Bahlo said.
“Excitingly our research also identi�ed other treatments “We also discovered an exciting clue about the link 
that appear to be e�ective against cancers with active between metabolic abnormalities and the onset o� disease, 
�GF-β  signalling. Ultimately, our hope is that our which we are curious to explore �urther.”
research will be translated to the clinic to improve 

Te �nding will enable researchers to better understand 
treatments �or people with cancer.”

Mac�el and look �or ways to slow or stop its progression.
Te research earnt Ms Foroutan the award �or the 
best PhD publication in 2017 across the University o� 
Melbourne Medical School’s Department o� Surgery.

“Tese � ve genetic risk loci are our 

‘treasure map’, telling us where to 

keep digg gin  in order to discover the 

speci� c genes implicated in Mac�el.” 

Above: Bioin� ormatics PhD student Ms Momeneh Foroutan 
(lef ) and Dr Melissa Davis have uncovered a gene ‘signature’ in 
tumours that may lead to better outcomes � or cancer patients.

What is 
bioinformatics?

Bioinformatics applies 

mathematics, statistics and 

computer science to analyse 

complex biological data and 

to solve medical research 

questions.

Our bioinformatics 

researchers collaborate 

widely across the Institute, 

using their expertise to 

design and make sense 

of complex experiments. 

They also develop new and 

innovative mathematical 

approaches to solve 

research questions.
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Fellowship supports 
career development 

Dr Kelan Chen – a recent PhD graduate 

at the Institute – revealed how a gene 

mutation contributes to the onset of a 

severe form of muscular dystrophy. The 

discovery could lead to new treatments 

for this devastating disease.

In 2017 Dr Chen won a National 

Health and Medical Research Council 

Early Career Fellowship to undertake 

postdoctoral research at the Lunenfeld-

Tanenbaum Research Institute, Canada. 

The fellowship will support her to 

develop skills in structural biology and 

drug development.

Exceptional science and people
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Making progress in eliminating malaria
Malaria infects more than 200 million people worldwide each year and kills 

more than 400,000 people, predominantly pregnant women and children. 

Our researchers are working towards developing improved malaria vaccines 

and�treatments�in�an�efort�to�eradicate�this�disease.

Carbohydrates key for combatting malaria Reviving an old drug

Te only malaria vaccine approved �or use in humans has Current drug treatments �or malaria have serious side-
marginal efcacy that wanes over time. Our research into e�ects and drug resistance means there is an urgent need 
the biology o� the malaria parasite is revealing potential �or new treatments. 
new approaches �or controlling malaria in the �uture.

Te antimalarial drug me�oquine has been used �or more 
Associate Pro�essor Justin Boddey, Dr Ethan Goddard- than 40 years, but exactly how the drug killed malaria 
Borger and colleagues have shown �or the �rst time that parasites was unknown. Te drug has also been associated 
carbohydrates on the sur�ace o� malaria parasites play a with serious side-e�ects, including neurological 
critical role in the spread o� malaria between mosquitoes symptoms.
and humans.

Dr Wilson Wong, Dr Brad Sleebs and colleagues 
produced the �rst atomic map explaining one o� the ways 
me�oquine works. Te map revealed how the structure 
o� me�oquine could be tweaked to make it both sa�er and 
more e�ective in killing malaria parasites.

Te team used cryo-electron microscopy to visualise, in 
intricate detail, exactly how and where the drug binds the 
malaria parasite, Dr Wong said. Associate Pro�essor Boddey said the team had shown the 

malaria parasite ‘tags’ its proteins with carbohydrates in “We discovered that me�oquine attacks the ribosome 
order to stabilise and transport them, and that this process – the molecular machinery that manu�actures proteins 
was crucial to the parasite completing its li�ecycle, moving required �or malaria parasite survival,” he said.
�rom mosquitoes to humans and back again.

Te atomic map showed the �t between me�oquine and 
“Inter�ering with the parasite’s ability to attach these the ribosome was not per�ect, suggesting the drug could 
carbohydrates to its protein weakens the parasite to the be redesigned to be more targeted and better di�erentiate 
point that it cannot survive in the mosquito or human between malaria and human ribosomes, Dr Sleebs said. 
host,” Associate Pro�essor Boddey said.

Dr Goddard-Borger said the �nding has implications �or 
improving malaria vaccine design.

Te �rst malaria vaccine approved �or human use – 
R�S,S/AS01 – has not been as success�ul as hoped.

“Te protein used in the R�S,S vaccine mimics one o� the 
“I� we could create a drug that targets this particular proteins we’ve been studying on the sur�ace o� the malaria 
mode o� action, it could be more e�ective at treating parasite that is readily recognised by the immune system”,  
malaria,” Dr Sleebs said. said Dr Goddard-Borger.

“Improving the action o� me�oquine could lead to “With this study, we’ve shown that the parasite protein 
signi�cant health bene�ts in a cheaper, �aster way than is tagged with carbohydrates, making it slightly di�erent 
developing an entirely new drug. With resistance to to the vaccine, so the antibodies produced may not be 

optimal �or recognising target parasites. �rontline antimalarial drugs already growing, this is an 
important consideration.”

“It may be that a version o� the R�S,S malaria vaccine 
with added carbohydrates will per�orm better than the 
current vaccine,” Dr Goddard-Borger said.

“It may be that a version o�  the 

RTS,S malaria vaccine with added 

carbohydrates will per� orm better 

than the current vaccine.”

“Improving the action o�  mef oquine 

could lead to signi� cant health 

bene� ts in a cheaper, � aster way than 

develop ing an entirely new drug.” 
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Above: Te Institute’s insectary, managed by Dr Sara Erickson 
(lef ), enables researchers including Associate Pro� essor Justin 
Boddey (right) to study the earliest stages o�  malaria in� ection.

Nearly half  of  the world’s 

p op ulation is at risk of  

contracting malaria.

Parasite resistance to antimalarial 
medicines has been documented 

in three o�  the � ve malaria species 
known to af ect humans.

Insectary accelerates discovery

Dr Sara Erickson manages the Institute’s insectary, 

a facility that houses thousands of mosquitoes 

and enables Institute researchers to study all the 

developmental stages of human malaria parasites.

In the past, it was impossible to examine the earliest 

stages of human infection by malaria parasites 

at the Institute, Dr Erickson said. “The insectary 

with the parasites that initiate human infection,” she 

potential targets for antimalarial vaccines or drugs.”

Since its establishment in 2012, our insectary has 

been critical to several discoveries at the Institute. 

proteins that are key to how the parasite infects 

essential for the parasite’s life cycle.

enables�us,�for�the��rst�time,�to�speci�cally�work�

said.�“We�hope�this�will�fast-track�identi�cation�of�

This�includes�the�identi�cation�of��ve�parasite�

human�cells,�and�the��nding�that�carbohydrates�are�

Exceptional science and people
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Barracking for science

Passion for supporting the next generation

Dr Ethan Goddard-Borger as bene�ciaries o� Pauline’s 
wish to support the next generation o� scientists.

Pauline’s li�e was entwined with the Institute. She and 
Associate Pro�essor Tam, the inaugural Pauline Speedy partner Ms Jenny �atchell began supporting the Institute 
Innovation Grant recipient in 2016, said the early-career many years ago, and became �amiliar �aces at Institute 
�unding helped her gather the preliminary data needed events, ever eager to learn about the latest research.
to leverage a highly competitive US$650,000 Howard 

Pauline liked to say that, in sports-mad Melbourne, she 
Hughes Medical Institute–Wellcome �rust award.

and Jenny had decided to “barrack �or science”.

Pauline’s interest in medical research took a personal turn 
when, like her mother and sister, she developed breast 
cancer. Pauline survived the disease afer undergoing 
surgery, radiotherapy and chemotherapy.

She also bene�ted �rom treatment with a drug made 
“Te Speedy Innovation Grant was pivotal �or me to 

possible by an Institute discovery. Called CSFs (colony 
propel my discoveries to the point that I could compete 

stimulating �actors) the drugs boost the immune system 
on the international stage,” Associate Pro�essor Tam said.

afer it has been weakened by cancer therapy. More than 
“Pauline’s legacy will be seen through research 20 million cancer patients have been treated with CSFs, 
achievements at the Institute �or many years to come.”researched over �ve decades by Pro�essor Don Metcal�. 

Indeed, Pauline had the opportunity to meet Pro�essor Pauline’s bequest also established the Speedy PhD 

Metcal� to tell him how grate�ul she was �or the discovery. Scholarship Fund, which �rom 2018 will support 
promising PhD student Ms Rachel Joyce and her Pauline, a dear �riend to the Institute and valued 
breast cancer research. Pauline’s generous bequest also supporter, passed away suddenly in 2016. However, thanks 
contributed to the Institute’s Early Childhood Education to a bequest, her legacy at the Institute continues.
and Care centre, opening in 2018.

Pauline was passionate about supporting young scientists 
at the Institute. In 2018 Dr Vanessa Bryant will receive 
the Pauline Speedy Innovation Grant, joining previous 
recipients Associate Pro�essor Wai-Hong Tam and 

“Pauline’s legacy will be seen through 

research achievements at the Institute 

� or many years to come.”

A champion of the Institute remembered
Feisty, p assionate, direct and engaging, Ms Pauline Speedy touched many 

people during her lifetime; in death her legacy continues.

Below: Malaria researcher Associate Pro� essor Wai-Hong Tam 
(lef ) was the � rst bene� ciary o�  a Speedy Innovation Grant, 
made possible by the late Ms Pauline Speedy (right).
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Honours student tackles a neglected disease
Ms Joy Liu was the winner of the Institute’s 2017 Colman Speed Medal, awarded to the 

top Honours student each year. Her Honours project enhanced our understanding of a 

neglected parasitic disease, potentially informing the development of future therapies.

A problem affecting billions

Translating imaging skills to cancer
Chemical ‘sensing’

More than one billion people worldwide are in�ected with to visualise structures within the worm’s head. “I hope this 
parasitic  worms. Most in�ected people are not will enable �uture high-resolution images o� the neurons 
aware they carry this parasite, which is transmitted by used �or chemosensory perception,” Ms Liu said.
�aecal contamination o� soil. However people with a heavy 
in�estation – p es ecially children – can be malnourished, 
develop intestinal blockages and other organ damage, and 
may even experience permanent physical and cognitive 
stunting.

Te current options �or preventing and treating  “Our bioin�ormatics studies showed  lacks many o� 
in�ections are limited, Ms Liu said. “Tere are also the key chemosensory molecules �ound in . We 
concerns  worms could become resistant to the concluded has potentially evolved unique ways 
available drugs,” she said. “New drugs to treat  to detect chemicals – and these may be excellent drug 
or, ideally, a vaccine to provide li�elong immunity are targets,” Ms Liu said.
desperately needed.”

In 2018 Ms Liu will extend her imaging skills through 
Ms Liu, supervised by Associate Pro�essor Aaron Jex and PhD studies at the Institute, using microscopy to track the 
Dr Kelly Rogers, investigated how  sense chemicals growth o� cancer.
in their environment – an ability called ‘chemosensory 

“During my Honours year I was amazed by how rapidly perception’ – which enables the parasites to communicate,  
the feld o� imaging is advancing. It is breathtaking to detect �ood and locate new hosts.
visualise biology in real-time and in intricate detail. 

“We took two approaches to studying chemosensory Tere is nothing more power�ul, nor more convincing, 
perception,” Ms Liu said. “We used imaging to visualise than being able to observe a biological phenomenon as it 
chemosensory structures, and bioin�ormatics to discover occurs,” she said.
whether  worms have similar chemosensory 
systems to a well-studied laboratory model worm 

”

Working with Dr Rogers, who heads the Institute’s Centre 
�or Dynamic Imaging, Ms Liu developed a new technique 

Ascaris

Ascaris Ascaris
C. elegans

Ascaris Ascaris  
Ascaris

Ascaris

Ascaris

C. elegans.

“It is breathtaking to visualise biology 

in real-time and in intricate detail. 

Tere is nothing more power� ul.”

Above: Honours student Ms Joy Liu (lef ) and her supervisor 
Associate Pro� essor Aaron Jex have investigated potential drug 
targets � or a parasite that in� ects one billion peop le worldwide.

Exceptional science and people
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Connecting diseases with cell development
Cells�are�the�building�blocks�of�our�body,�and�faults�within�di�erent�cells�can�lead�to�distinct�

diseases.�Our�researchers�are�discovering�how�di�erent�cell�types�develop�from�‘parents’�

called stem cells, and how errors in this process cause diseases including cancer.

Institute joins world-first Bone marrow crosstalk may  
Human Cell Atlas effort impact lymphoma formation

Te Human Cell Atlas is a bold e�ort to map every single Immune B cells and platelets are two types o� blood cells 
cell in the human body �or a �reely accessible database, that are �ormed in the bone marrow, via two distinct 
a resource that could revolutionise how diseases are and well-de�ned pathways. Dr Emma Jose�sson and her 
understood, diagnosed and treated. Te Institute and 13 colleagues have revealed that there may be previously 
other Australian centres are �ounding collaborators in unrecognised ‘crosstalk’ between these processes, which 
an Australian consortium �ormed to contribute to the could infuence blood cancer �ormation. 
Human Cell Atlas. Dr Jose�sson’s research centered on the hormone 

thrombopoietin (�PO), which tightly regulates platelet 
production, and whether it could also impact B cell 
development.

Varying the levels o� �PO in model systems altered 
the production o� early B cell precursors, Dr Jose�sson 
said. “We also revealed that modulating �PO indirectly 
impacts the development o� lymphoma, a cancer o� Institute cell biologist Dr Shalin Naik, who is a member 
B cell precursors. We are now �ocusing our research o� the Human Cell Atlas organising committee, said the 
on understanding interactions between platelets and project is a sequel to the Human Genome Project. 
lymphoma cells,” she said.

“Te Human Genome Project catalogued the �rst �ull 
human DNA sequence, and led to many medical success 
stories. I believe the Human Cell Atlas has the potential to 
�urther propel translational discoveries and drive a new 
era o� medicine,” Dr Naik said.

“I believe the Human Cell Atlas 

has the potential to f urther propel 

translational discoveries and 

drive a new era of  medicine.”

Below: Dr Shalin Naik is leading Australia’s contribution to the 
g lobal Human Cell Atlas proj ect.
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Protein’s link to leukaemia 

revealed 

Many diseases can be attributed to 

abnormalities in proteins that control 

normal processes within our body.

During her PhD studies, Ms Helen McRae 

examined a protein associated with some 

types of leukaemia, as well as a rare 

intellectual disability syndrome.

Ms McRae discovered the protein played 

an important role in controlling stem cells 

that sustain blood cell production. She 

also demonstrated that loss of this protein 

accelerated the rate of development of 

leukaemia, in particular when combined 

with mutations in other genes.

Above: Ms Helen McRae (right) with PhD 
supervisors Associate Pro� essor Anne Voss 
(lef ) and Associate Pro� essor �im Tomas. 

Exceptional science and people



38   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

2017 Graduates
Congratulations to the following students who  

successfully completed their studies this year.

Doctor of Philosophy,  

The University of Melbourne

Dr Lyndal Henden Dr Samar Ojaimi

Dr Raed Alserihi

Dr Valerie Heong Dr Shereen Oon

Dr Chow Hiang Alex Ang

Dr Ashleigh Poh
Dr Charlie Jennison

Dr Brandon Aubrey

Dr Antonia Policheni
Dr Alex Kennedy

Dr Daniel Cameron

Dr Michael Roy

Dr Logesvaran Krshnan
Dr Bianca Capaldo

Dr Sophie Lee

Dr Simon Chat�eld Dr �om Sidwell

Dr Chunyan Ma

Dr Cyrus �an

Dr Hui San Chin

Dr Danushka Marapana

Dr Maria �anzer

Dr Chris Chiu

Dr Kate McArthur

Dr Emma Watson

Dr Stephanie Conos

Dr Nisha Narayan

Dr Clare Weeden
Dr Angus Cowan

Dr Paul Nguyen

Dr Camila Franca
Dr Annie Yang

Dr �an Nguyen

Dr Emma Nolan

Dr Ivan Fung

Identi�y by descent analysis with applications Pro-apoptotic therapies �or the treatment 

to epilepsy studies and  causing o�  disease and 
human malaria latent in�ection

Collaborating events in Lmo2-driven �-cell 

leukaemia 

�argeted approaches to C5 high-grade serous Il-3Ra as a novel therapeutic target in systemic 
ovarian cancer through novel patient-derived lupus erythematosus
xenografs

Role o� nucleophosmin (NPM1) in normal 

haematopoiesis and acute myeloid leukaemia
Investigation o� the role o� haematopoetic cell 

Population and molecular level studies o� kinase in gastrointestinal cancer
malaria transmission

Investigating the role o� mutant p53 in the 

development and sustained growth o� c-Myc-

driven lymphoma Identi�ying driver mutations in p53-de�cient 
Complement evasion mechanisms o� the lymphomas
important human pathogen 

Improving the detection o� genomic 

rearrangements in short-read sequencing data

�owards novel BH3-mimetics – structure-

guided development o� small molecule 
Mapping subunit organisations within the inhibitors targeting pro-survival BCL-2 Investigation o� luminal lineage regulation 
� cell receptor-CD3 complex �amily proteinsusing an RNAi screening strategy and human  

breast-derived iPSC lines

Te role o� Klk1 in haematopoiesis, malignancy 

and angiogenesis
Neutrophil extracellular trap-associated Te transcription �actor Bach2 in the activation 
cell death – role in gout and relationship to and di�erentiation o� CD4 � cells
alternated �orms o� cell death

Te role o� necroptosis in acute myeloid 

leukaemia development and treatment

Intra-membrane substrate recognition by 

membrane-associated E3 ligases
Nuances and complexities o� cell death control 

Dissection o� early events that govern protein 

export in malaria-in�ected erythrocytes Investigation o� cell death pathways in response 

to �NF and IFNDe�ning the antigenic targets o� naturally 

acquired immunity to 

Apoptotic caspases: silencing the mitochondrial 

danger within Te role o� BCL-2 �amily proteins in apoptosis 

regulation during angiogenesisTe role o� cell death in interleukin-1beta 

activation and secretion

Te role o� micro RNAs miR-155 and miR-211 

in myeloid malignancies

Understanding the �ormation and treatment o� 
Structural investigations into the control o� Bax

lung squamous cell carcinoma

How do cytokines promote gastrointestinal 

cancer?

Naturally acquired humoral responses to 
Molecular mechanisms o� cell traversal by 

 and : 

identi�cation o� antigenic targets to in�orm Investigating the physiological roles o� the 

mammalian SID-1 orthologues Sidt1 and Sidt2rational biomarker and vaccine development

Te identi�cation o� novel strategies �or the 

Investigating the role o� IL-21 in the early stages prevention and treatment o� breast cancer in 

o� a �-dependent B cell response BRCA1-mutation carriers

Pro�essor Melanie Bahlo, Pro�essor �erry Speed Pro�essor Marc Pellegrini, Pro�essor Gabrielle Belz

Dr Matthew McCormack,  

Pro�essor Warren Alexander

Pro�essor Ian Wicks, Dr Nicholas Wilson

Pro�essor Clare Scott, Pro�essor Geof Lindeman

Pro�essor Paul Ekert, Pro�essor Warren Alexander

Pro�essor Robert O’Donohue, Dr �racy Putoczki, 

Associate Pro�essor Justin Boddey,  Pro�essor Matthias Ernst

Pro�essor Alan Cowman 

Dr Gemma Kelly, Pro�essor Andreas Strasser

Associate Pro�essor Daniel Gray,  

Pro�essor Andreas Strasser

Associate Pro�essor Wai-Hong Tam,  
Pro�essor Alan Cowman

Pro�essor �ony Papen�uss, Pro�essor �erry Speed

Associate Pro�essor Matthew Call, Dr Melissa Call Associate Pro�essor Guillaume Lessene,  

Associate Pro�essor Peter Czabotar,  
Pro�essor Jane Visvader, Pro�essor Geof Lindeman Pro�essor Peter Colman

Pro�essor Andrew Roberts, Dr Ashley Ng

Pro�essor Axel Kallies, Pro�essor Gabrielle Belz
Pro�essor Ian Wicks,  

Associate Pro�essor James Murphy

Pro�essor John Silke, Dr Gabriela Brumatti, 
Pro�essor Paul Ekert

Associate Pro�essor Matthew Call, Dr Melissa Call
Dr Mark van Del�, Dr Seong Lin Khaw, 

Pro�essor David Huang

Pro�essor Alan Cowman,  
Associate Pro�essor Justin Boddey

Pro�essor John Silke, Pro�essor David Vaux,  

Dr Andrew Webb, Dr Jarrod Sandow
Dr Diana Hansen, Pro�essor Alan Cowan,  

Pro�essor Ivo Mueller

Associate Pro�essor Guillaume Lessene,  
Dr Mark van Del�, Pro�essor Ben Kile

Dr Leigh Coultas,  

Associate Pro�essor Grant Dewson,  
Pro�essor John Silke, Dr James Vince,  Pro�essor David Vaux
Dr Lisa Lindqvist

Pro�essor Paul Ekert, Dr Anissa Jabbour

Pro�essor Peter Colman,  
Dr Marie-Liesse Asselin-Labat,  

Associate Pro�essor Peter Czabotar
Pro�essor Geof Lindeman

Dr �racy Putoczki, Pro�essor Matthias Ernst

Associate Pro�essor Justin Boddey,  

Pro�essor Alan Cowman
Pro�essor Ivo Mueller, Pro�essor Louis Scho�eld, Dr Ken Pang, Associate Pro�essor Seth Masters

Dr Diana Hansen

Pro�essor David �arlinton, Pro�essor Phil Hodgkin Pro�essor Jane Visvader, Pro�essor Geof Lindeman

Plasmodium Mycobacterium tuberculosis

Plasmodium 

f alciparum

Plasmodium f alciparum

Plasmodium vivax Plasmodium f alciparum
Plasmodium f alciparum

γ
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Master of Research,  

The University of Melbourne

Bachelor of Science 

(Honours) or Bachelor of 

Biomedicine (Honours), 

The University of Melbourne

Mr Aaron Harrison Mr Mark Rowland

Ms Yuan Yao Mr Kaiseal Sarson-Lawrence

Ms Terese Hoang

Ms Kun Yang
Ms Kristen Scicluna

Ms Hannah Hughes-Parry
Mr Yisheng Zhang

Mr Ray Shen

Ms Hamdi Jama

Mr Daniel Simpson

Ms Narelle Keating

Ms Gemma van Duijneveldt

Mr Abdullah Alazawi

Mr Victor Volynski

Ms Elizabeth Kyran

Ms Katherine Balka

Mr Michael Zhan

Mr Richard Bestel de Lezongard Ms Joy Liu

Ms Michelle Zheng

Mr Ignatius Bourke Ms Kylie Luong

Mr Dale Calleja Ms Emi McRae

Mr Jordan Michael
Ms Sheryl Ding

Ms Halina Pietrzak
Ms Meg Elliott

Ms Sonia Poetrodjojo
Ms Cindy Evelyn

Characterising di�erential signalling through Structural analysis o�  motility

CXCR3 in CD8 � cells

Overcoming therapeutic barriers in multiple Te mechanisms o� malaria parasite invasion 
myeloma by targeting the pathway to apoptosis into reticulocytes

Investigating the role o� HBO1 in regulating 

the chromatin landscape during cellular 

reprogramming and di�erentiation
�argeting e�ector and memory � cell 

di�erentiation Elucidating the structure and �unction o� 

BCL-RAMBO

Te generation and characterisation o� GRP78 
De�ning and developing novel host targeted CAR � cells �or glioma
therapies to eliminate chronic human in�ections

Circadian regulation o� innate lymphoid cells

Immune mechanisms o� vascular disease

A novel role �or mind bomb-2 (MIB2) in cell 

death and infammation

Investigating the importance o� ARAP2 �or 

CIS-regulation o� IL-15 signalling in natural 
Characterising the role o� interleukin 11 in 

killer cells
initiation and progression o� pancreatic cancer

Intracellular delivery o� an anti-Bak antibody to 

trigger apoptosis

Understanding how malaria parasites sabotage 

Characterising a rare, drug-resistant ovarian acquisition o� immunity

Investigating mechanisms o� innate immune carcinosarcoma derived �rom a genetically 

activation engineered mouse model

Deciphering the threshold �or apoptosis 

induction

Optimisation o� the P2 region o� Investigating the morphology and �unction 

peptidomimetic inhibitors o� plasmepsin V o� chemosensory neurons in the parasitic 

roundworm How the voltage dependent anion channel 2 

interacts with Bak and Bax

Structural studies o� invasion processes during Hunting down serial killers: investigating the 
malaria in�ection role o� phosphatidylserine exposure on CD8+� 

lymphocytes as an indicator o� serial killing

Revisiting the SOCS SH2 domain as a Te role o� cAMP signalling in  
therapeutic target in�ection

Single cell RNA-seq �or biomarker discovery 
Interrogating the consequences o� Keap1 loss in 

and immune status assessment
KrasG12D-induced lung adenocarcinoma

Understanding the role o� IgM+ memory B 
Pathogenic phenotypes o� somatic caspase 3 

cells in immunity to malaria using a mouse 
deletions in human colorectal cancer

model o� in�ection

Synthesis o� 2-C-mannosyl indoles
Quantitative analysis o� calcium fux and 

membrane lipid order o� red blood cells during 

malaria parasite invasion

Associate Pro�essor Chris �onkin, Dr Melissa Call

Dr Joanna Groom, Dr Fanny La�ouresse,  

Pro�essor Stephen Nutt

Pro�essor Andrew Roberts, Pro�essor David Huang Associate Pro�essor Wai-Hong Tam,  

Pro�essor Alan Cowman

Dr Natasha Zamudio,  

Associate Pro�essor �im Tomas
Pro�essor Axel Kallies

Associate Pro�essor Grant Dewson,  

Associate Pro�essor Peter Czabotar

Dr Misty Jenkins, Dr Ryan Cross
Pro�essor Marc Pellegrini

Pro�essor Gabrielle Belz, Dr Cyril Seillet

Pro�essor Ian Wicks, Dr Angus Stock,  

Associate Pro�essor Sandra Nicholson

Dr Rebecca Feltham, Dr James Vince

Associate Pro�essor Sandra Nicholson,  
Dr �racy Putoczki, Dr Ka Yee FungDr Fernando Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes,  

Dr Edmond Linossi

Dr Ruth Kluck, Dr Sweta Iyer

Dr Diana Hansen, Dr Lisa Ioannidis

Dr Dominic De Nardo,  Pro�essor Clare Scott, Dr Holly Barker,  

Associate Pro�essor Seth Masters Dr Matthew Wakefeld

Pro�essor David Huang, Pro�essor Phil Hodgkin, 

Dr Zhen Xu

Pro�essor Alan Cowman, Dr Brad Sleebs,  

Associate Pro�essor Justin Boddey Associate Pro�essor Aaron Jex, Dr Kelly Rogers

Associate Pro�essor Peter Czabotar, Dr Boris Reljic, 

Associate Pro�essor Grant Dewson

Dr Wilson Wong, Dr �ony Hodder,  

Pro�essor Alan Cowman Dr Misty Jenkins, Dr Susanne Heinzel

Associate Pro�essor Sandra Nicholson,  Associate Pro�essor Chris �onkin, Dr Kelly Rogers
Dr Edmond Linossi 

Dr Shalin Naik, Dr �om Weber
Dr Kate Sutherland, Dr Sarah Best

Associate Pro�essor Oliver Sieber,  
Dr Diana Hansen, Dr Lisa Ioannidis

Dr Anuratha Sakthianandeswaren

Dr Ethan Goddard-Borger

Dr Kelly Rogers, Pro�essor Alan Cowman,  

Dr Lachlan Whitehead

Toxoplasma

Ascaris suum

Toxoplasma
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Patents granted in 2017
Alpha-helical mimetics Methods and compositions for treating and 

preventing malaria (2)

Apoptosis-inducing agents for the treatment of 

cancer and immune and autoimmune diseases Methods and compositions for treating and 

preventing malaria using an invasion ligand 

directed to a protease-resistant receptor

Method of treating cancer

Novel anti-cancer agentsApoptosis-inducing agents for the treatment of 

cancer and immune and autoimmune diseases

Protein kinase inhibitors and methods of treatment

Soluble mediator

Barley with low levels of hordeins

Soluble mediator

Compounds and methods of use

Tetrahydroisoquinoline derivatives and their uses 

to treat cancers and autoimmune disorders

Dendritic cell marker and uses thereof

Treatment and prevention of malaria

Heterocyclic compounds and methods of use

Inventors: J Baell, G Lessene
Inventors: J Beeson, A Cowman, S Lopaticki, A Maier, 
K Persson, J Richards

Inventors: M Bruncko, Y Dai, H Ding, G Doherty, 
S Elmore, L Hasvold, L Hexamer, A Kunzer, R Mantei, 
W McClellan, C Park, A Petros, X Song, A Souers, Inventors: J Baum, L Chen, A Cowman
G Sullivan, Z Tao, G Wang, L Wang, X Wang, M Wendt, 
P Czabotar, G Lessene, P Colman

Inventors: N Lalaoui, J Silke, D Vaux

Inventors: T Burgess, G Lessene, K Watson, H Witchard, 
F WalkerInventors: M Bruncko, H Ding, G Doherty, S Elmore, 

T Hansen, L Hasvold, L Hexamer, A Kunzer, R Mantei, 
S Xiaohong, A Souers, G Sullivan, Z Tao, L Wang, X Wang, 
G Wang, M Wendt

Inventors: J Baell, T Burgess, G Lessene, M Hiroshi

Inventors: L Harrison, E Bandala Sanchez, J Dromey, 
M Rashidi (only in Australia), Y Zhang

Inventors: C Howitt, G Tanner

Inventors: L Harrison, M Rashidi, Y Zhang

Inventors: J Baell, C Bui, P Colman, P Czabotar, 
D Danette, S Elmore, W Fairbrother, J Flygare, G Lessene, 
C Ndubaku, G Nikolaopoulos, A Petros, C Rye, B Smith, 

Inventors: J Baell, C Bui, P Colman, P Czabotar, A Souers, K Watson
D Danette, S Elmore, W Fairbrother, J Flygare, L Hasvold, 
G Lessene, C Ndubaku, G Nikolaopoulos, A Petros, C Rye, 
B Smith, A Souers, Z Tao, L Wang, X Wang, K Watson

Inventors: I Caminschi, M Lahoud, A Lew, K Shortman, 
A Proietto, M Wright, L Wu

Inventors: A Cowman, L Chen, T Triglia

Inventors: J Baell, C Bui, P Colman, P Czabotar, 
D Danette, S Elmore, W Fairbrother, J Flygare, G Lessene, 
C Ndubaku, G Nikolaopoulos, A Petros, C Rye, B Smith, 
A Souers, K Watson

France, Germany, Ireland, Switzerland, Netherlands, UK, Sweden, 

Belg ium

Canada

South Korea

Chile, China, Colombia, Cyprus, Denmark, Singapore, South Korea 

(x2), Taiwan (x2), US, Japan (x2), Australia, Indonesia, India, 

Spain, Russia, Germany, Ireland, Switzerland, UK, Belg ium, France, 
USHungary

Italy, Spain, Czech Republic, Belg ium, France, Germany, UK, 

Hungary, Ireland, Slovakia, Sweden, Switzerland, Poland, Japan, 

Singapore

Italy (x2), Luxembourg (x2), Latvia, Slovenia (x2), Australia (x2), 

China (x2), Japan (x2), South Korea (x2), Russia (x3), Singapore 

(x2), Taiwan (x2), Colombia, Israel, Mexico, New Zealand, Peru, 

Ukraine, South Af rica, Vietnam, Panama, Hong Kong, Malta, France, Germany, Ireland, Switzerland, Netherlands, UK, Sweden, 
France, Austria, Sweden, Turkey, Spain, Portugal, Slovakia, Belg ium
Croatia, Romania, Belg ium, Albania, Greece, Latvia, Norway, 

Finland, Denmark, UK, Cyprus, Ireland, Czech Republic, Iceland, 

Netherlands, Estonia, Hungary, Monaco, France, Germany, 

Switzerland, Bulgaria, San Marino

Australia, US

Mexico

Singapore, US

Canada

Canada

Israel, Japan, France, Germany, Ireland, Sweden, Switzerland/

Lichtenstein, Netherlands, UK, Belg ium
Australia, US

South Korea
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Below: Koorie artist Mr Robert Young (right) led a sunset smoking 
ceremony at the Institute during National Reconciliation Week.
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Technology enabling discoveries

Responsible research stewardship

Building financial sustainability

Reinforcing a great culture

with its prominent position on the Institute’s �orecourt, 
will open in 2018, �urther enriching our culture and 

Modern medical research relies on access to a range o� 
the opportunities it afords Institute parents. Tis has 

technologies. Several years ago we identi�ed that our 
also provided a unique opportunity �or the Institute to 

research would be enhanced by investment in the rapidly 
strengthen its connections with local Aboriginal culture, 

advancing �eld o� biological imaging. Guided by our 
with a Victorian Aboriginal �amily being commissioned to 

Imaging Strategy, the Institute’s new Centre �or Dynamic 
contribute to the interior design o� the centre.

Imaging houses world-leading microscope technology, 
operated by imaging experts (see page 44). Excitingly, 
we are already seeing research achievements never 

Te Institute’s pro�essional services teams collaborate be�ore possible.
closely with our researchers, enhancing the Institute’s 

A by-product o� modern research technologies – science by providing high-quality stewardship and service 
including imaging – is the need to store and analyse delivery across a range o� areas. Several new systems were 
massive datasets in volumes that would have been implemented in 2017, including the bespoke Animal 
unimaginable a decade ago. Ongoing investment and Management System, a database that enhances data 
expansion o� our research computing in�rastructure is collection and collaboration between laboratories and 
ensuring our researchers can continue to make world- our bioservices �acilities. Work has also continued in the 
leading discoveries. area o� responsible governance, with a �ocus on signi�cant 

policies and strategies that ensure the Institute continues 
to be both a scienti�c leader as well as a great place to 

A highlight o� 2017 was the success�ul negotiation o� the work. Important updates were made to policies related to 
partial sale o� rights in anti-cancer medicine venetoclax. parental leave and app pro riate workplace behaviour.
Te outcome o� this Australian-�rst deal has yielded 
many bene�ts �or current and �uture research at the 
Institute (see page 7), supporting �nancial sustainability 
while preserving some �uture rights associated with this 
new drug.

Te expertise o� our pro�essional services teams was also 
Deputy Director, Strategy and Operations

crucial �or the development o� a new investment strategy 
�or the Institute’s endowment, which was boosted through 
additional income �rom our venetoclax deal. Tis work 
has ensured that the Institute’s endowment provides 
an optimal balance between income and long-term 
�nancial security.

Te Institute’s �rst Diversity and Inclusion Strategy was 
launched in 2017, providing a �ramework to ensure 
support �or all our staf and students (see page 46). As 
part o� our commitment to providing an outstanding 
workplace and building a positive culture, Institute 
staf and students were encouraged to participate in a 
range o� activities to raise awareness o� diversity, gender 
equity and mental health. In 2017, in the context o� the 
national discourse about changing Australia’s marriage 
laws, the Institute was proud to state its support �or 
marriage equality.

Work has also continued on an audit o� the Institute’s 
gender equity policies and practices, as part o� our 
2018 application �or a SAGE Athena SWAN Bronze 
Institutional Award (see page 47). We also saw great 
progress in the construction o� our new Early Childhood 
Education and Care centre (see page 50). Te centre, 

Ms Samantha Ludolf 

Operational overview
The Institute has seen considerable progress in many areas of strategy and 

and helped to consolidate our outstanding workplace culture. 

operations�in�2017,�which�have�underpinned�our�scientifc�achievements�
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Turning discoveries into treatments

Potential for expansion

Institute scientists have made many discoveries showing 
how diseases develop at the molecular level. Tis research 
o�en reveals molecular ‘targets’ – molecules that are 
pivotal to disease development or progression.

New medicines that precisely bind to or interact with 
these ‘targets’ are changing how we can treat or cure 
disease, including cancers, immune disorders and 
infammatory conditions.

For more than a decade the Institute has been committed 
to drug discovery, investing in critical technologies and 
disciplines including medicinal chemistry, structural 
biology and high-throughput screening.

Te new Drug Discovery Centre will bring together 
and enhance our expertise in these areas, supporting 
researchers to more rapidly translate basic biology to 
early-stage drug discovery, and accelerating the design 
and validation o� potential new medicines. 

Aiding in the establishment o� the Drug Discovery Centre 
was a $1 million Centenary gi� �rom �ormer Institute 
board member Mr Mike Fitzpatrick and his wi�e Ms 
Helen Sykes.

Mr Fitzpatrick said the Institute had made many exciting 
discoveries in medical biology. “Helen and I are thrilled 
to be supporting the translation o� scienti�c discoveries 
at the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute into better health 
outcomes �or the community,” he said.

In Australia, there is a shortage o� early-stage drug 
discovery in�rastructure at a national level, limiting the 
ability o� Australian researchers to develop new medicines 
�rom their discoveries.

In recognition o� this gap, the Victorian Government 
Department o� Health and Human Services in 2017 
committed $1 million to develop a business case �or the 
establishment o� a National Drug Discovery Centre at 
the Institute.

Institute director Pro�essor Doug Hilton said the centre 
would potentially allow more Australian research 
discoveries to be translated into new medicines.

“Tis would o�er many bene�ts �or Victoria and Australia, 
strengthening our reputation �or medical research, 
generating jobs and enhancing commercial returns,” 
he said.

Right: Associate Pro� essor Guillaume Lessene leads a medicinal 
chemistry team with expertise in the design, sy nthesis and 
modif cation o�  new drugs.

Accelerating drug development
The new Drug Discovery Centre, opening in 2018, will allow our scientists to accelerate the 

development of new medicines to treat disease and improve health outcomes.

Breakthrough recipe for 
reproducing ‘natural’ medicines

Naturally occurring substances are a valuable source 

of potential new medicines. However a major barrier is 

harvesting the chemicals in large enough quantities to 

investigate or develop as medicines.

A 10-year project led by Institute scientists has 

discovered how to synthesise an antimicrobial 

molecule found in marine sponges. Called 

spiroleucettadine, the molecule has been speculated 

to have potential in treating infections and cancer. 

Associate Professor Guillaume Lessene collaborated 

with colleagues at the University of Otago, New 

‘recipe’ for making spiroleucettadine.

“Spiroleucettadine is found in vanishingly small 

quantities in sponges, so it is not practical to harvest it 

directly to properly investigate its medicinal potential,” 

Associate Professor Lessene said. “However, its 

unprecedented chemical structure has posed a barrier 

“We are excited that it will now be possible to properly 

examine whether this molecule is a suitable candidate 

for the development of new medicines,” he said. 

“This project is a fantastic demonstration of the depth 

of expertise in chemistry at the Institute.”

Zealand,�to�develop�the�world’s�frst�step-by-step�

to�making�an�artifcial�version�in�the�lab.

A remarkable place
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Building a world-class facility New views of biology

Since 2016 the Institute has made signi�cant investment Visualising biological mechanisms and behaviours can 
in its Centre �or Dynamic Imaging. Tis advanced give researchers insights into how diseases develop, spread 
imaging �acility enables scientists at the Institute and and respond to treatment.
around Australia to access state-o�-the-art microscopy 

Dr Rogers said technological advances in microscopy 
and expert advice to advance their discoveries. 

have given researchers the power to watch biology un�old 
Te centre is run by Dr Kelly Rogers, an expert in in exquisite detail. 
advanced microscopy, who leads a multidisciplinary 

“Increasingly we have the ability to look at biology in �our 
team with expertise in biology, physics, engineering 

dimensions (4D) – that’s getting up close and personal 
and mathematics. 

with biology in its natural environment, at all scales and 
in real time. It’s an exciting time to be working at the 
�eld’s cutting edge,” she said.

Microscopes such as the new 4D lattice light sheet 
microscope enable researchers to capture spectacular 
images �rom sub-cellular levels right through to whole 
organs. 

“Light sheet based technology will cause a signi�cant shi� 
in how we can visualise and investigate cancers, in�ectious 
diseases and infammation in the body, and answer 
questions that have – until now – been beyond our grasp,” 
Dr Rogers said. 

Advancing research through imaging 
Growing the Institute’s imaging capabilities will keep our researchers at 
the forefront of discovery in health and disease. 

In 2017 the Institute’s world-class imaging facility – the Centre for 
Dynamic Imaging – received a funding boost of almost $3 million 
from the Alan G L Shaw estate, allowing expansion of the facility.

Science and art collide

The wonders of biology are highlighted by the 

beautiful images and movies captured at the Centre 

for Dynamic Imaging.

In 2017 the best of these images and movies were 

showcased in the Institute’s Art of Science exhibition, 

at Melbourne’s Federation Square.

One of the movies in the competition, titled 

, was captured by Dr Stephen Mieruszynski 

and Dr Leigh Coultas. This still image from the movie 

shows the network of blood vessels that nourish the 

eye during development. Once the eye has developed, 

these vessels will undergo a controlled cell death and 

scavenger cells – the green dots – will eat the leftovers. 

The intricate structure of vessels was visualised in 

in imaging technology. Understanding this process 

helps to inform new treatments for eye diseases.

Eye of the 

beholder

three�dimensions�for�the��rst�time�thanks�to�advances�
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Imaging in action 

In 2017 head of the Centre for Dynamic 

Imaging Dr Kelly Rogers (centre) and 

her team, Dr Niall Geoghegan (left) 

and Dr Lachlan Whitehead (right) , 

build a lattice light sheet microscope. 

This highly advanced instrument 

enables our researchers to capture 

unprecedented and dynamic four-

dimensional images of living cells. The 

team is shown with images captured 

on the lattice light sheet microscope, 

that demonstrate the intricate details 

of immune cells.

were�the�frst�in�Australia�to�custom-
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Valuing diversity and inclusion Institute director Pro�essor Doug Hilton said the strategy 
recognised that, although the Institute had taken action to 

We recognise our work�orce has diverse and ofen 
redress gender inequality, a broader approach to diversity 

intersecting identities based on their gender, sexual 
and inclusion was needed.

orientation, ethnicity or cultural background, religion, 
�amily or disability.  “By �ocusing on inclusion, we want to create a culture 

where we accentuate and celebrate our similarities as 
In 2017 we launched our �rst Diversity and Inclusion 

much as those things that make us di�erent,” Pro�essor 
Strategy, which provides a �ramework to support, 

Hilton said.
guide and coordinate our activities in this area. We 
also celebrated our �rst Diversity and Inclusion “Having a diverse work�orce and �ostering a spirit o� 

Week, which showcased our diversity and inclusion inclusiveness will produce more innovative and creative 

implementation plan. collective thinking at the Institute. Embedding diversity 
and inclusion in all Institute activities will in turn increase 

Te Institute’s Diversity and Inclusion Strategy identi�es 
our ability to make signi�cant medical discoveries and 

�ve principles that are �oci �or our attention and activities:
continue our tradition o� excellence in medical research.”

•  articulating the ‘why’ o� diversity and inclusion �or 
the Institute;

• establishing measurement, accountability and 
transparency o� data-driven decision-making;

• developing sustainable diversity and inclusion 
leadership;

• �ocusing on inclusion to capitalise on diversity; and

• building diversity and inclusion into everyday 
processes.

Embedding diversity and inclusion at the Institute
The Institute is focused on solving complex health problems that impact a broad cross-section 

of our community.

To achieve our vision, we must ensure diversity and inclusion are part of everything we do as 

part of our commitment to a free, fair and equitable society.

Below: In 2017 the Institute was proud to publicly state its 
support � or marriage equality, in response to the national 
postal survey on the change to Australian marriage laws.  
Our position ref ected our commitment to diversity and 
inclusion, and the rights o�  all peop le to live in a society that 
is � ree, � air and equitable.



Annual Report 2017   47

A remarkable place

Progress towards accreditation Championing change

Partnership for local progress

Understanding our current progress toward gender equity, Te Male Champions o� Change is a coalition o� male 
how this is perceived by our sta� and students, and the leaders across Australia, including Institute director 
barriers to progress are key to implementing e�ective Pro�essor Doug Hilton, committed to achieving gender 
gender equity initiatives. equity and accelerating the advancement o� women into 

leadership positions.
In 2017 a considerable body o� work examined sta� 
attitudes and experiences, plus our policies and data. Tis Male Champions o� Change assess and identi�y how 
provided many important insights that are guiding our member organisations implement progressive, high-
�uture actions towards gender equity. impact actions that support sustainable gender equality 

in workplaces.
Te Institute is in the �rst cohort o� Australian 
organisations working towards accreditation under the In 2017 the coalition �ocused on eliminating everyday 
Australian Academy o� Science’s Science in Australia sexism, and understanding and closing the gender pay 
Gender Equity (SAGE) Athena SWAN pilot. gap. Tese initiatives have allowed the Institute to refect 

on its own journey towards gender equity, and to learn 
Tis program, which aims to improve the promotion and 

�rom other organisations.
retention o� women and gender minorities in science, 
requires a detailed process o� sel�-assessment, data 
collection and analysis to examine our policies, practices 

Te Institute is a member o� the Women in Science and workplace culture relevant to gender equity and 
Parkville Precinct (WiSPP) initiative, joining with diversity. Extensive consultation was undertaken through 
�our other medical research organisations to boost the �ocus groups, surveys and workshops. 
representation o� women in science leadership.

Trough this process, the Institute has developed an 
In 2017 WiSPP completed a key data-collection activity action plan that identi�es relevant key issues, gaps and 
through a multi-purpose gender equity survey run by all opportunities, in particular �ocusing on enhancing 
member organisations to create a robust evidence base to our policies around recruitment and retention o� sta�, 
drive �uture work. enhanced career development opportunities, and 

encouraging the uptake o� fexible work options �or sta�. 
Te inaugural SAGE Athena SWAN Bronze awardee 
organisations will be announced in late 2018.

Promoting gender equity
The Institute has made a long-term commitment to achieving gender equity, 

as one aspect of our dedication to the values of diversity and inclusion. 

Above: By ensuring diversity and inclusion are part of  every thing 
we do, we enable all our peop le to achieve their f ull potential.



48   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

Working together for reconciliation
We aim to make meaningful contributions to improving health 

outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples, 

through an Institute-wide commitment to reconciliation. 

Our  (RAP) has guided the Institute’s reconciliation 
journey in 2017. Important aspects o� our  are: 

• solidi�ying relationships between the Institute and Aboriginal and �orres Strait 
Islander stakeholders;

• building respect �or Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander peoples;

• providing opportunities �or Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander peoples through 
study and employment; and

• targeted support o� local businesses and organisations working to improve 
outcomes �or Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander peoples.

Deepening our cultural knowledge and respect, strengthening relationships and 
involving Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander peoples in the Institute are key parts o� 
our reconciliation journey In 2017 Institute sta� and students were o�ered a range o� 
opportunities to learn about and celebrate Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander history, 
culture and achievements. 

Tese activities included hosting a National Reconciliation Week art exhibition and 
cultural learning programs provided by the Young �amily, a Koorie �amily who have 
made signi�cant contributions to our reconciliation process  We were honoured that 
the Young �amily strongly contributed to the internal design concept �or our new Early 
Childhood Education and Care centre, providing a holistic and meaning�ul integration 
o� Aboriginal culture and history into this new part o� the Institute. 

In NAIDOC Week the Institute proudly unveiled a permanent Welcome to Country 
that stands at the beginning o� the historic timeline installation in our Parkville 
campus. It acknowledges and honours the Wurundjeri  people’s culture and history, 
which signi�cantly predate the Institute, and their connection to the land on which the 
Institute stands. 

�o refect the NAIDOC Week theme ‘Our Languages Matter’, everyday items around the 
Institute were translated into Woi Wurrung, the language o� the local Wurundjeri people.

Dr Jason Brouwer, co-chair o� the Institute’s Reconciliation Committee said language 
provided important connections with culture. “By understanding the diversity 
o� languages in this country, we can gain new insights into the importance they 
hold �or embracing and preserving Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander culture,” 
Dr Brouwer said.

Te Institute is committed to providing early career opportunities to Aboriginal and 
�orres Strait Islander peoples with an interest in science. In 2017 we o�ered training 
to �ve Aboriginal and �orres Strait Islander interns through our partnership with the 
Career�rackers Indigenous Internship Program. We also built awareness o� medical 
research career paths through our involvement with the University o� Melbourne and 
G�AC Residential Indigenous Science Experience. 

Our membership o� Supply Nation, an Indigenous supplier diversity organisation, has 
also enabled the Institute to create social impact by supporting Aboriginal and �orres 
Strait Islander businesses.

Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan
Innovate RAP

. 

.

Building relationships and respect

Creating opportunities

Deepening our cultural knowledge and respect, streng thening 

relationships and involving Aborig inal and Torres Strait Islander 

peop les in the Institute are key parts of  our reconciliation j ourney.
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Acknowledging 
Wurundjeri culture

The Institute’s Reconciliation Committee 

was co-chaired in 2017 by Internal 

Communications Manager Ms 

Merrin Fabre (left) and postdoctoral 

researcher Dr Jason Brouwer (centre 

left) . Together with external committee 

members Dr Ngaree Blow (centre 

right) and Dr Lyndon Ormond-Parker 

(right) they championed the installation 

of a prominent and permanent 

Welcome to Country in the Institute’s 

Parkville campus.
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Considerable progress was made in 2017 towards the In late 2017 the Institute announced FROEBEL had been 
completion o� the Institute’s new Early Childhood appointed to operate the Early Childhood Education 
Education and Care centre, a �rst �or an Australian and Care centre. FROEBEL is a not-�or p- ro�t provider 
independent medical research institute. Te �ve-storey, o� high-quality early education and care services, with a 
100-place centre, located on the Institute’s Parkville strong �ocus on bilingual education and inquiry based, 
campus �orecourt, will ofer support to staf in the early S�EM learning.
precinct with �amily responsibilities.

Te Parkville precinct is Australia’s largest health and 
In early 2017 Institute staf and �amilies, along with medical research hub and there is high demand �or 
Victorian Minister �or Families and Children the Hon. childcare �rom its research and healthcare pro�essionals. 
Jenny Mikakos MP, donors and other supporters, Te centre will bring vital services and opportunities to 
celebrated the ceremonial ‘turning o� the sod’ be�ore precinct parents dedicating their working lives to the 
the Early Childhood Education and Care centre’s health and wellbeing o� our communities. Te Institute 
construction. By the end o� 2017 the building’s outer has received support �rom the Victorian Government 
structure had been completed and internal �t-out as well as more than $2 million in donations �rom the 
and playground works had commenced. Te centre is philanthropic community.
scheduled to open in mid-2018.

In line with our commitment to reconciliation, the 
Young �amily, a Koorie �amily who have worked closely 
with the Institute on many aspects o� our reconciliation 
journey, have been working with the Institute to integrate 
recognition o� Indigenous history and culture into the 
centre and its curriculum. 

Support from our community
Rapid progress

On-site childcare to provide 
vital support for parents
The Institute is committed to attracting, developing and retaining the 

best and brightest workforce in order to deliver positive health outcomes 

to our community. Access to adequate childcare is one of the most 

signi�cant�barriers�to�ongoing�career�advancement�for�our�workforce.

Below: Institute f amilies celebrated the ceremonial ‘turning of  the 
sod’ f or our new Early Childhood Education and Care centre.
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Below: Hundreds of  peop le were able to tour the Institute 
as part of  Open House Melbourne.
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W�lter �nd Eliz� H�ll Institute Bo�rd
The directors of the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research Board 

31 December 2017

Mr Christopher W To��s am

Mrs J�ne He�stritch

Mr Robert Wylie

BCom (Hons) MBA  FAICD 

BSc (Hons)  FICAEW FICAA FAICD 

FCA FAICD 

Melbourne

London University

Appointed: Febru�ry 2001 

Appointed president: Febru�ry 2013

Appointed: October 2013 

Appointed vice president: July 2016

Appointed: April 2014 

Appointed honor�ry tre�surer: April 2014

Mr Tomas joined executive search �rm Egon Zehnder International in 1979 and was managing 
partner o� the Melbourne ofce (1986-2003). He was also leader o� the �rm’s global Board 
Consulting Practice Group (1998-2006) and chaired the �rm’s twice-yearly international partners’ 
meetings (1997-2007).

Mr Tomas is a �ellow o� the Australian Institute o� Company Directors, and is currently a member 
o� the National Gallery o� Victoria’s Remuneration and Nomination Committee. He has served 
on the board o� the Corps o� Commissionaires (Victoria) and the Council o� the Australian Film, 
�elevision and Radio School. He was chairman o� the Heide Museum o� Modern Art, chairman o� 
the Victorian Community Foundation and president o� the Melbourne Business School Alumni.

Mrs Hemstritch was managing director Asia Paci�c �or Accenture Limited �rom 2004 until her 
retirement in February 2007. In this role, Mrs Hemstritch was a member o� Accenture’s global 
executive leadership team and oversaw the management o� Accenture’s business port�olio in Asia 
Paci�c.

She holds a Bachelor o� Science with Honours in biochemistry and physiology and has pro�essional 
expertise in technology, communications, change management and accounting.

Mrs Hemstritch is a member o� the Council o� Te National Library o� Australia, the Global Council 
o� Herbert Smith Freehills, the Council o� Governing Members o� Te Smith Family and Chie� 
Executive Women. She is an independent non-executive director o� �elstra Corporation Ltd, Lend 
Lease Corporation Limited, and Victorian Opera Company Ltd (chairman �rom February 2013).

Mr Wylie is a �ellow o� the Australian Institute o� Company Directors, a �ellow and past president 
o� the Institute o� Chartered Accountants in Australia and a member o� the Institute o� Chartered 
Accountants in Scotland. He is a non-executive director o� Maxitrans Industries Limited. 

Mr Wylie joined Deloitte in 1973 in the United Kingdom, trans�erring to Australia in 1976. He was 
national chairman o� Deloitte Australia �rom 1993 to 2001. He was deputy managing Partner Asia 
Paci�c �rom 2001 be�ore joining Deloitte & �ouche USA as a senior executive partner in 2002 until 
2006. He was also a member o� Te Deloitte Global Board and Global Governance Committee as 
well as Te Deloitte Consulting Global Board.
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Mr Malcolm Broomhead 

Mr John Dyson

Professor Shitij Kapur

BE (Civil), MBA , FIE (Aus), FAusIMM, FAIM, MICE (UK), FAICD 

BSc  Grad Dip Fin Inv SIA MBA  

MBBS  PhD  FRCPC FMedSci 

UQ

Monash RMIT

AIIMS Toronto

Appointed: July 2014

Appointed: May 2016

Appointed: May 2017

Mr Broomhead is a pro�essional non-executive director. His directorships include BHP Billiton 
Limited and Orica Limited (chairman).

Mr Broomhead was �ormerly managing director and CEO o� Orica Limited �rom 2001 until 
September 2005. Prior to Orica, he was managing director and CEO o� the global diversifed 
resources company North Limited.

He has had extensive experience in the resources industry, as well as in fnance, investment and 
construction activities. He has worked in management positions with Halcrow (UK), MIM 
Holdings, Peko Wallsend and Industrial Equity.

Mr Dyson has been an active participant in the venture capital industry �or two decades. He is one 
o� the �ounders o� Starfsh Ventures, a venture capital company established in Melbourne in 2001; 
and is chair o� Swinburne Ventures Pty Ltd, the entity responsible �or the commercialisation o� 
technology �or Swinburne University o� Technology.

From 1997 to 2002 he was a director o� the Australian Venture Capital Association Limited, 
including deputy chairman in 1998 and chairman in 1999. He is currently a director o� technology 
companies Atmail, Audinate and Myriax. Be�ore moving into venture capital Mr Dyson worked in 
the investment banking and stockbroking industries �or Schroders, Nomura Securities, KPMG and 
ANZ McCaughan.

Mr Dyson is a passionate alpine skier and is a �ormer chairman o� the Mount Buller and Mount 
Stirling Alpine Resort Management Board, which oversees the management o� Victoria’s largest 
alpine resort. He is also a co-trustee o� the Dyson Bequest, a $15 million charitable �oundation that 
provides grants to a range o� social wel�are, education and environmental causes.

Pro�essor Shitij Kapur is the dean, Faculty o� Medicine, Dentistry and Health Sciences and assistant 
vice-chancellor (Health), University o� Melbourne.

Pro�essor Kapur is a clinician-scientist with expertise in psychiatry, neuroscience and brain imaging. 
He trained as a psychiatrist at the University o� Pittsburgh, and undertook a PhD and �ellowship at 
the University o� Toronto. He is a diplomate o� the American Board o� Psychiatry and Neurology, is 
board certifed in Canada and has a specialist medical licence in the United Kingdom. 

He is a Distinguished Fellow o� the American Psychiatric Association, �ellow o� the Academy 
o� Medical Sciences, UK, and Fellow o� King’s College London, UK. He also led NEWMEDS, a 
European Union-wide innovative medicines initiative and STRATA, a UK-wide program to enhance 
stratifed medicine strategies in psychiatry.

Organisation and governance
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Pr�fess�r Christine Kilp�trick

Pr�fess�r Jim McCluskey

Ms M�rie McD�n�ld

Dr Gr�h�m Mitchell ao

MBBS MBA MD DMedSci (Hon) FRACP FRACMA FAICD FAHMS  

BMedSc MB BS MD  FRACP FRCPA FAA FAHMS 

BSc (Hons) LLB (Hons) 

RDA BVSc  FACVSc PhD  F�SE FAA 

UWA

Melbourne 

Sydney Melbourne

App�inted: M�y 2017

App�inted: April 2011

App�inted: Oct�ber 2016

App�inted: July 2007

Pro�essor Kilpatrick commenced as chie� executive o� Melbourne Health in May 2017. She was 
previously chie� executive,Te Royal Children’s Hospital (2008-17) and executive director Royal 
Melbourne Hospital, Melbourne Health (2005-08). Pro�essor Kilpatrick trained as a neurologist, 
specialising in epilepsy.

Pro�essor Kilpatrick has held several external appointments including chair o� Victorian Quality 
Council in Healthcare and member o� the Women’s and Children’s Health Board. She was a 
�ormer board member o� Murdoch Children’s Research Institute and the Royal Children’s Hospital 
Foundation. She was awarded a Centenary Medal in 2003, included in the 2014 Victorian Honour 
Roll o� Women and received the Distinguished Fellow Award o� the RACMA in 2017.

Pro�essor James McCluskey is deputy vice-chancellor (research) at the University o� Melbourne and 
a Redmond Barry Distinguished Pro�essor in Microbiology and Immunology.

He has published widely on the genetic control o� speci�c immunity, and his research has been 
recognised by a number o� awards including as joint winner o� an Australian Museum Eureka Prize 
�or Scienti�c Research, the GSK Research Excellence Award and the Victoria Prize �or Li�e Sciences.

Pro�essor McCluskey is director o� Australian Friends o� Asha Slums, the Victorian Comprehensive 
Cancer Centre and UoM Commercial, the Chair o� Nossal Institute Ltd and a past member o� 
the board o� directors o� the Bionics Institute, the Florey Institute o� Neuroscience and Mental 
Health, the Burnet Institute and St Vincent’s Institute. He established the South Australian node 
o� the Australian Bone Marrow Donor Registry and has consulted �or the Australian Red Cross 
in the area o� transplantation matching �or more than 25 years. Pro�essor McCluskey led the 
development o� the Peter Doherty Institute �or In�ection and Immunity, and also led the multi-
institutional team that developed the Atlantic Fellows Social Equity Program supported by 
Te Atlantic Philanthropies.

Ms McDonald was a partner o� Blake Dawson (now global law �rm Ashurst) �rom 1990 to 2014. 
She specialised in corporate and commercial law and, in particular, cross-border mergers and 
acquisitions and corporate governance.  

She was a member o� the Australian �akeovers Panel (2001-10) and chair o� the Corporations 
Committee o� the Business Law Section o� the Law Council o� Australia (2012, 2013) and a deputy 
chair (2010, 2011).

Prior to becoming a lawyer, Ms McDonald completed a Bachelor o� Science (Honours) degree with 
�rst class honours, majoring in chemistry.

Ms McDonald is a director o� CSL Limited, Nanosonics Limited and Nu�arm Limited.

Dr Mitchell completed his PhD at the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute in the late 1960s that involved 
the discovery o� � and B cells.

In 1973 afer postdoctoral experience in the United States, United Kingdom and Switzerland, Dr 
Mitchell returned to the Institute and established the Parasitology/Malaria program. He was also a 
previous director o� research in the R&D Division o� CSL Limited.

Dr Mitchell is an advisor on science and innovation to the Victorian Government and is a principal 
o� Foursight Associates. He is a non-executive director o� Antisense Terapeutics Limited and 
Avipep Pty Ltd and has a detailed knowledge o� the academia-industry inter�ace and global health.
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Mr �erry Mor�n ac

Ms C�rolyn Viney

Professor Rufus Bl��k

Professor Ingrid M Winship

Te Rt Hon the Lord M�yor Robert Doyle ac

BA (Hons)  

LLB/BA  

BA LLB (Hons)  MPhil DPhil  

MB ChB MD  FRACP FACD FAICD 

BA B Ed  M Litt Hon LLD 

LaTrobe

Monash

Melbourne Oxon

Cape Town

 Monash UNE Monash 

Appointed: November 2013

Appointed: De�ember 2016

Appointed: August 2013 Retired: De�ember 2017

Appointed: June 2007 Retired: O�tober 2017

Appointed: O�tober 2017 Retired: Febru�ry 2018

Mr �erry Moran is the �ormer secretary o� the Department o� Prime Minister and Cabinet and 
�ormer secretary o� the Victorian Department o� Premier and Cabinet.

Mr Moran’s involvement in the public service has resulted in the establishment o� institutions that 
have made important contributions to Australia’s cultural and educational landscape, such as the 
Wheeler Centre, the Grattan Institute, Opera Victoria, the Melbourne Recital Centre, the Australian 
and New Zealand School o� Government and the National Institute o� Public Policy.

He is the board chair �or both the Barangaroo Delivery Authority and Melbourne Teatre Company, 
chair o� the Centre �or Policy Development, and holds the position o� senior advisor at the Boston 
Consulting Group.

Ms Carolyn Viney has more than 20 years’ experience in construction, property development and 
real estate investment. Ms Viney is currently Executive General Manager Development at Vicinity 
Centres. Over a 13-year period she held a number o� senior roles at Grocon, including CEO, deputy 
CEO, head o� development and in-house counsel. Be�ore this, she was a senior associate at law �rm 
Minter Ellison. 

Ms Viney is a division councillor o� the Property Council o� Australia’s Victoria Division, an 
advisory board member to the Victorian Government’s Ofce o� Projects Victoria and an advisory 
board member o� Women’s Property Initiatives, a not-�or-pro�t housing provider to women and 
children at risk o� homelessness.

Pro�essor Ru�us Black is the vice-chancellor and president o� the University o� �asmania and 
President o� Museums Victoria. He has extensive private, public and social sectors experience at 
both management and governance levels with a deep academic background in ethics. In 2017 
Pro�essor Black was Master o� Ormond College; deputy chancellor o� Victoria University; a 
director o� the law �rm Corrs Chambers Westgarth; and, within the University o� Melbourne, was 
an Enterprise Pro�essor in the Department o� Management and Marketing, a Principal Fellow in 
Philosophy, and taught in the Master o� Entrepreneurship degree. He was the �ounding chair o� the 
�each �or Australia Board and a Director Emeritus o� the New York-based �each �or All. Pro�essor 
Black was previously a partner at McKinsey & Company and has made many contributions to 
public policy. He holds degrees in law and politics �rom the University o� Melbourne and graduate 
degrees in moral theology �rom the University o� Ox�ord, where he was a Rhodes Scholar.

Pro�essor Winship is the inaugural chair o� adult clinical genetics at Te University o� Melbourne 
and executive director o� research �or Melbourne Health. A medical graduate o� the University o� 
Cape �own, she completed postgraduate training in genetics and dermatology be�ore combining 
an academic position at the university with a clinical position. In 1994, Pro�essor Winship took up 
an academic position at the University o� Auckland where she later became Pro�essor o� Clinical 
Genetics, clinical director o� the Northern Regional Genetic Service and associate dean �or research 
in the Faculty o� Medicine and Health Sciences (1999-2003). She is currently a member o� the 
Australian Health Ethics Committee, the Victorian Cancer Agency Re�erence Group and the 
executive management committee o� the Melbourne Genomic Health Alliance.

The following directors of the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute 

of Medical Research Board retired during 2017

Org�nis�tion �nd govern�n�e
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Members of the Institute to 31 December 2017

The Royal Melbourne Hospital

The University of Melbourne 

Dr Susan Alberti ac 

Professor Emeritus Robin Anders  

Professor James Angus ao 

Mr Donald Argus ac 

Mr Barry Axtens  

Mr Paul Barnett  

Ms Helen Barry  

Mrs Ann Bates  

Mr Robert Bates  

Mr Lance Bauer   
Chairman, The Walter and Eliza Hall Trust

Dr Elsmaree Baxter  

Dr Glenn Begley  

Professor Claude Bernard  

Mr Marc Besen ac 

Dr Gytha Betheras am 

Professor Rufus Black  

Mr Malcolm Broomhead 

Professor Graham Brown am 

Mrs Rosalind Brown  

Mrs Beverley Brownstein 

Dr Gerard Brownstein 

Mr Ian Brumby  

Mr John Brumby ao 

Dr Margaret Brumby am 

Professor Tony Burgess ac 

Professor Christopher Burrell ao 

Professor Robert Burton  

Mr Greg Camm  

Mr Terry Campbell ao 

Mrs Gill Carter  

Mr Pat Cashin  

Mr John Chatterton am 

Lady Susannah Clarke  

Mr James Clegg 
Trustee, The Walter and Eliza Hall Trust

Mrs Jacqui Cooper  

Associate Professor Paul Cooper  

Mr Glenn Corke  

Mrs Joan Curtis  

Dr Andrew Cuthbertson ao 

Mr John Dahlsen  

Mr Stephen Daley  

Mrs June Danks  

Mrs Annette Davis  

Mr Leon Davis ao 

Dr Simon de Burgh  

Professor David de Kretser ac 

Professor John Denton  

Mrs Elizabeth Dexter  

Mr Mick Dexter  

Mr Angelo Di Grazia  

Mrs Helen Diamond  

Ms Melda Donnelly  

Professor Ashley Dunn  

Mr John Dyson  

Ms Roz Edmond  

Mr Garry Emery  

Dr Peter Eng  

Mr Robert Evans  

Professor Sir Marc Feldmann  

Mr Michael Fitzpatrick  

Mrs Pauline Flanagan  

Dr Sue Forrest  

Professor Richard Fox  

Mrs Nolene Fraser  

Mr Paul Fraser  

Mrs Pam Galli  

Ms Kelli Garrison  

Dr Andrew Gearing  

Professor David Gearing  

Mrs Julie Gearing  

Mrs Janet Gilbertson  

Mr Peter Gilbertson  

Ms Rose Gilder  

Professor James Goding  

Mr Charles Goode ac 

Dr Gareth Goodier  

Associate Professor Nicholas Gough  

Mrs Andrea Gowers  

Mr John Grace  

Mrs Maureen Grant  

Mr Tony Gray  

Sir Andrew Grimwade cbe 

Mrs Jean Hadges  

Col Tom Hall cvo, obe 

Professor Emanuela Handman  

Mr Michael Harris  

Mr Harry Hearn am 

Mrs Jane Hemstritch 

Professor David Hill ao 

Dr Margo Honeyman 

Dr Thomas Hurley ao obe 

Mr Darvell Hutchinson am 

Mr Jon Isaacs   
Trustee, The Walter and Eliza Hall Trust

Mr Murray Jeffs  

Mr Jose Jimenez  

Mrs Terese Johns  

Professor Shitij Kapur  

Ms Helen Kennan  

Mr Rowan Kennedy  

Professor Christine Kilpatrick  

Professor Emeritus Frank Larkins am 

Professor Richard Larkins ao 

Mrs Belinda Lawson  

Mr Gary Liddell  

Professor Emeritus Ian Mackay am 

Mrs Rowena MacKean oam 

Ms Eve Mahlab ao 

Mrs Robyn Male  

Mr Roger Male  

Mrs Lorrie Mandel  

Ms Nerissa Mapes  

Mr Barrie Marshall  

Mr John Marshall am 

Ms Josephine Marshall  

Professor Emeritus Jack Martin ao 

Professor Ray Martin ao 

Mr Erich Mayer am 

Mrs Netta McArthur  

Dr Neville McCarthy ao 

Professor James McCluskey  

Ms Marie McDonald  

Professor John McKenzie am 

Mrs Kate McMahon  
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Mr Tim McMahon  

Professor Frederick Mendelsohn ao 

Mrs Johanna Metcalf  

Ms Kate Metcalf  

Ms Mary Ann Metcalf  

Professor Jacques Miller ac 

Professor John Mills ao 

Mr Robert Minter   
Trustee, The Walter and Eliza Hall Trust

Professor Christina Mitchell  

Dr Graham Mitchell ao 

Dr Judith Mitchell  

Mr Barry Moore  

Mr Terry Moran ac 

Mrs Barbara Morgan  

Mr Hugh Morgan ac 

Dr George Morstyn  

Mr Bob Munro  

Mr Tony Murphy  

Ms Linda Nicholls ao 

Dr Leslie Norins 

Mrs Rainey Norins  

Mr Colin North oam 

Lady Lyn Nossal  

Mr Tom O’Brien am 

Ms Maureen O’Keefe  

Sir Arvi Parbo ac 

Professor David Penington ac 

Professor Roger Pepperell  

Mr David Percival  

Professor Emeritus Jim Pittard am 

Lady Primrose Potter ac 

Mr John Prescott ac 

Mr John Pye  

Mrs Edith Qualtrough 

Mrs Cathy Quilici  

Mr Denis Quilici  

Professor Peter Rathjen  

Ms Kate Redwood am 

Mr John Reid ao 

Mr Dieter Rinke  

Associate Professor Ken Roberts am 

Mr Michael Robinson ao 

Ms Linda Rodger  

Mrs Mary Rodger  

Mrs Margaret Ross am 

Mr Fergus Ryan  

Professor Graeme Ryan ac 

Mr Colin Sakinofsky  

Professor Nick Samaras  

Mrs Pam Sargood  

Mr Keith Satterley  

Professor Carl Schedvin  

Ms Anne Schumacher  
Trustee, The Walter and Eliza Hall Trust

Mrs Carol Schwartz am 

Dr Roland Scollay  

Mr Andrew Scott  

Professor John Scott ao 

Dr Paul Scown  

Mrs Sam Sharman  

Ms Deborah Sims  

Mrs Lousje Skala  

Mr Steven Skala ao 

Professor Stephen Smith  

Mr Jack Smorgon ao 

Mr Robert Smorgon am 

Mrs Sally Speed  

Professor Terry Speed  

Miss Ann Sprague  

Mr Geoffrey Stewardson 

Dr John Stocker ao 

Ms Jenny Strangward 

Mr John Stratton  

Ms Kate Summers  

Ms Helen Sykes  

Ms Jenny Tatchell  

Mr Bruce Teele  

Mrs Cheryl Thomas  

Mr Chris Thomas am 

Ms Carolyn Viney  

Mr John Walker qc 

Mr Stanley Wallis ac 

Ms Catherine Walter am 

Mr John Walter  

Mr John Warburton 

Mr Robert Warren  

Mrs Catherine Watt  

Ms Marion Webster oam 

Mr Kevin Weight  

Professor Richard Wettenhall 

Dr Senga Whittingham 

Mr David Williamson 

Mr Malcolm Williamson 

Professor Robert Williamson ao 

Professor Ingrid Winship  

Ms Sally Wood  

Mr Peter Worcester  

Mr Rob Wylie  

The Institute remembers those 
members who have passed away 
since 2017
Mrs Avis Macphee am 

Mrs Jo Metcalf 

Organisation and governance
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Institute organisation 31 December 2017

Deputy Director,  Deputy Director,  Clinical Translation Deputy Director, Science Fundraising

Strategy and Operations Integrity and Ethics

Bioinformatics

Cancer and Haematology 

Cell Signalling and Cell Death 

ACRF Chemical Biology Acting Head, Business 

Development

Development and Cancer Internal Auditor

Immunology

Head, People and Culture
Infection and Immunity

Facilities Manager

Molecular Genetics of Cancer Laboratory Operations and 

Molecular Immunology 
Grants Manager

Molecular Medicine 

Procurement and Logistics 

Manager
Population Health and Immunity 

Head, Communications 

and Marketing
ACRF Stem Cells and Cancer 

Program Manager

Structural Biology

Planning Manager

Systems Biology and 

Personalised Medicine 

Scienti�c Strategy

Chief Financial O�cer

Chief Information O�cer

In�ammation 

Scienti�c Services Manager

Professor Doug Hilton

Professor Andrew Roberts Ms Susanne Williamson

Professor Alan Cowman Ms Samantha Ludolf Professor David Vaux

 Professor Gordon Smyth 

Professor Warren Alexander  Mr Joel Chibert
Professor Nick Nicola

Mr Michael Carolan
Professor John Silke 

Professor David Vaux

 A/Professor Guillaume Lessene
Ms Samantha Ludolf

 A/Professor Anne Voss Mr Stan Balbata

 Professor Phil Hodgkin

Ms Elizabeth McMahon
 Professor Alan Cowman

 Professor Marc Pellegrini 

Mr Steve Droste

Professor Ian Wicks

 Professor Andreas Strasser

Dr Helene Martin

Professor Stephen Nutt
Dr Julie Mercer

A/ Professor Marnie Blewitt 

Professor Doug Hilton 

Mr Todd Jasper
Professor Melanie Bahlo

 Professor Ivo Mueller

Ms Carolyn MacDonald

 Professor Jane Visvader 
Ms Naomi Burke

A/ Professor Matthew Call 

A/ Professor Peter Czabotar Ms Catherine Parker

A/ Professor Oliver Sieber

Dr Andrew Webb

Board

Director

Research divisions

Professor Geo� Lindeman

Management Committees Board Subcommittees

Animal Ethics Committee Advocacy and Support Committee

Biosafety Committee Appointment and Promotion 

Clinical Translation Standing Committee  Review Committee

Diversity and Inclusion Committee Audit and Risk Committee

Education Committee Commercialisation Committee

Engagement Committee Human Research Ethics Committee

Investment CommitteeFaculty Recruitment and Appointment Committee

Gender Equity in Science Committee Remuneration Committee

Health and Safety Committee

IT Governance Committee

PMO Program Board

Reconciliation Committee

Risk Management Committee

Senior Technology Planning Group

Senior Scienti�c Advisory Committee
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Institute divisions and laboratory heads
ACRF Chemical Biology division
Division heads
Professor Benjamin Kile (to April 2017)
Associate Professor Guillaume Lessene

Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Chris Burns,  

visiting scientist
Dr Ethan Goddard-Borger
Dr Isabelle Lucet  

(jointly with Structural Biology division)
Professor Keith Watson, honorary

ACRF Stem Cells and Cancer division
Division heads
Professor Geoff Lindeman
Professor Jane Visvader

Laboratory heads
Dr Marie-Liesse Asselin-Labat
Professor Clare Scott
Dr Kate Sutherland

Bioinformatics division
Division heads
Professor Gordon Smyth

Laboratory heads
Dr Melissa Davis
Professor Tony Papenfuss
Associate Professor Wei Shi
Professor Terry Speed, honorary

Cancer and Haematology division
Division heads
Professor Warren Alexander
Professor Nick Nicola

Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Jeff Babon  

(jointly with Structural Biology division)
Professor David Huang
Dr Emma Josefsson
Dr Ian Majewski 
Professor Andrew Roberts
Dr Samir Taoudi  

(jointly with Molecular Medicine division)
Professor Christine Wells, honorary  

(jointly with Molecular Medicine division)

Cell Signalling and Cell Death division
Division heads
Professor John Silke
Professor David Vaux

Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Grant Dewson
Associate Professor James Murphy

Development and Cancer division
Division head
Associate Professor Anne Voss

Laboratory heads
Dr Leigh Coultas
Associate Professor Joan Heath
Associate Professor Tim Thomas

Immunology division
Division head
Professor Phil Hodgkin
Laboratory heads
Dr Bob Anderson, honorary
Associate Professor Daniel Gray (jointly with 

Molecular Genetics of Cancer division)
Dr Joanna Groom (jointly with Molecular 

Immunology division)
Associate Professor Edwin Hawkins
Dr Misty Jenkins
Professor Andrew Lew
Emeritus Professor Jacques Miller
Dr Shalin Naik (jointly with Molecular 

Medicine division)
Professor Ken Shortman, honorary
Dr Jason Tye-Din

Infection and Immunity division
Divsion heads
Professor Alan Cowman
Professor Marc Pellegrini
Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Justin Boddey
Dr Diana Hansen
Dr Sant-Rayn Pasricha (jointly with Population 

Health and Immunity division)
Associate Professor Wai-Hong Tham
Associate Professor Chris Tonkin

Inflammation division
Division head
Professor Ian Wicks
Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Seth Masters
Associate Professor Sandra Nicholson
Dr Tracy Putoczki
Dr James Vince

Molecular Genetics of Cancer division
Division heads
Professor Andreas Strasser
Professor Jerry Adams
Laboratory heads
Dr Philippe Bouillet
Professor Suzanne Cory  

(honorary distinguished research fellow)
Associate Professor Daniel Gray  

(jointly with Immunology division)
Associate Professor Marco Herold
Dr Ruth Kluck

Molecular Immunology division
Division head
Professor Stephen Nutt
Laboratory heads
Dr Rhys Allan 

(jointly with Molecular Immunology division)
Professor Gabrielle Belz
Professor Lynn Corcoran
Dr Joanna Groom  

(jointly with Immunology division)
Professor Axel Kallies (to July 2017)
Associate Professor Nicholas Huntington
Professor Li Wu, visiting scientist

Molecular Medicine division
Division heads
Associate Professor Marnie Blewitt
Professor Doug Hilton

Laboratory heads
Dr Rhys Allan 

(jointly with Molecular Immunology division)
Dr Shalin Naik  

(jointly with Immunology division)
Dr Matthew Ritchie
Dr Samir Taoudi (jointly with Cancer and 

Haematology division)
Professor Christine Wells, honorary (jointly 

with Cancer and Haematology division)

Population Health and Immunity division
Division heads
Professor Melanie Bahlo
Professor Ivo Mueller

Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Alyssa Barry
Professor Len Harrison
Associate Professor Aaron Jex
Dr Sant-Rayn Pasricha (jointly with Infection 

and Immunity division)
Dr Leanne Robinson
Professor Louis Schofield  

(to January 2017)

Structural Biology division
Division heads
Professor Peter Colman (to June 2017)
Associate Professor Matthew Call  

(from July 2017)
Associate Professor Peter Czabotar  

(from July 2017)

Laboratory heads
Associate Professor Jeff Babon (jointly with 

Cancer and Haematology division)
Professor Antony Burgess
Dr Melissa Call
Dr Jacqui Gulbis
Associate Professor Mike Lawrence
Dr Isabelle Lucet (jointly with ACRF Chemical 

Biology division)
Dr Colin Ward, associate research fellow 

(passed away March 2017)

Systems Biology and Personalised Medicine
Division heads
Professor Liam O’Connor  

(to March 2017)
Associate Professor Oliver Sieber  

(acting, from March 2017)
Dr Andrew Webb  

(acting, from March 2017)

Laboratory heads
Professor Peter Gibbs
Mr Simon Monard
Dr Kelly Rogers
Dr Hélène Jousset Sabroux
Dr Ian Street
Dr Stephen Wilcox

Organisation and governance
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2017 Board Subcommittees 31 December 2017

Advocacy and Support Committee Commercialisation Committee

Human Research Ethics Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

Mr J�hn Dys�n (�h�ir) Dr Gr�h�� Mit�hell ao (�h�ir)

Mrs S�lly Bru�e Pr��ess�r Peter C�l��n ac

Ass��i�te Pr��ess�r P�ul C��per Dr Leigh F�rrell

Ms Ann� Chung Ms Lis� Hennessy (independent �e�ber)

Mr Mi�h�el D�dd� Pr��ess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao

Pr��ess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao Ms S���nth� Lud�l�

Mr Hugh H�dges Dr Ge�rge M�rstyn

Ms C�r�line J�hnst�n Pr��ess�r Ni�k Ni��l� ao

Ms Andre� L�pidge Dr J�hn R�f

Ms S���nth� Lud�l� Ms C�r�el� M�nger (�inutes)

Ms C�r�lyn M��D�n�ld

Mr J�hn M�rsh�ll am

Ms C�r�el� M�nger
Pr��ess�r Ru�us Bl��k (�h�ir)

Ms C�therine R�bs�n
Reverend F�ther Mi�h�el Ellig�te (deputy �h�ir)

Mr Christ�pher T���s am
Dr J�hn B�n���i

Ms Sus�nne Willi��s�n
Dr V�ness� Bry�nt

Ms Sue C��er�n (�inutes)
Mr D�vid Free��n

Dr E��� J�se�ss�n

Dr I�n M�jewski 

Mr R�bert Wylie (�h�ir) Mrs Nett� M�Arthur

Mr M�l��l� Br���he�d Pr��ess�r M�r� Pellegrini

Mr I�n C�uls�n Ms M�ir� R�yner

Ms J�ne He�strit�h Ms. Ki�berley W�lsh

Pr��ess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao Pr��ess�r Ingrid Winship

Mr ��� I�besi (Del�itte) Ms Sue C��er�n (�inutes)

Ms S���nth� Lud�l� Pr��ess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao (�bserver)

Mr Christ�pher T���s am Dr Lin� L�sk�s (�bserver)

Ms Anneke Du ��it (Del�itte) Pr��ess�r D�vid V�ux ao (�bserver)

Mr St�n B�lb�t� (�inutes)
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Investment Committee

Remuneration Committee

Mr R�bert Wylie (�h�ir)

Mr Ad�� Blennerh�ssett (JBWere)

Mr M�l��l� Br���he�d

Mr I�n C�uls�n

Pr��ess�r D�ug Hilt�n ao

Ms S���nth� Lud�l�

Mr Stephen Merli�ek

Mr Stephen Milburn-Pyle

Mr Andrew S��tt

Mr Christ�pher T���s am

Ms Fi�n� �r�f�rd-W�lker

Mr Peter W�r�ester

Ms Ann� Chung (�inutes)

Mr Christ�pher T���s am (�h�ir)

Pr��ess�r Ru�us Bl��k

Mr �erry M�r�n ac
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The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute acknowledges the support of the following organisations, 
which contributed $10,000 or more to our research in 2017
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The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute is associated with the following organisations

In-kind support was received from these organisations

Organisation and governance

Health Alliance
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CA NC E R  |   I M M U N E D IS O R D E RS  |   I N F ECT IO US D IS EA S E

Without the Institute, I really 

believe my children would not 

have their mother today.

However, thanks to a discovery made at the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute by 

Professor David Vaux, there is a new drug for this insidious disease. I was able 

to get onto an early trial of the drug and this saved my life.

If it weren’t for the research done at the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute, 

supported by donations and bequests from committed donors, 

my children would not have a mother today.

For more information  

please contact  

Ms Susanne Williamson,  

Head of Fundraising,  

on 03 9345 2962 or  

williamson.s@wehi.edu.au

In 2011 I was diagnosed with an incurable form of leukaemia 

called chronic lymphocytic leukaemia (CLL) and given �ve 

years to live. By October 2015 I was declared terminally ill.

– Ms Deborah Sims, pictured (right)  

with Professor David Vaux.

W www.wehi.edu.au

 WEHIresearch

 @WEHI_research

 WEHI_research

 WEHImovies

 Walter and Eliza Hall Institute
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We acknowledge the traditional owners and custodians of the land on which our campuses are located, 

the Wurundjeri people of the Kulin nation, and pay our respects to their elders past and present.
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive  
income for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016

Note $’000 $’000

Other grant revenue

Other revenue

Total operating revenue before monetisation

Royalty monetisation income (venetoclax)

Total operating revenue

Operating revenue 

Government revenue

58,145 58,833

17,956 17,836

40,064 40,353

116,165 117,022

331,082  - 

447,247 117,022

National Health and Medical Research Council 41,355 46,161

Cooperative Research Centres 2,238 1,551

Other Australian Government grants 1,058 1,347

Other Australian Government fellowships 512 2,020

Victorian Government grants 12,739 7,753

Foreign Government grants and fellowships 243 1

Industrial grants and contracts 4,044 3,227

Philanthropic grants and fellowships – Australia 7,444 8,804

Philanthropic grants and fellowships – International 6,468 5,805

Investment income 12,118 13,463

Royalty income 11,059 12,328

General income 7,560 5,746

Donations and bequests 9,327 8,816

5

2

The �nancial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of the �nancial statements.
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2017 2016

Note $’000 $’000Operating expenditure

Other comprehensive income

Scientifc laboratories

Items that may be reclassifed subsequently to proft or loss

Sta� costs 59,328 56,141 

Apparatus and equipment 2,980 2,608 

Consumable supplies 12,485 11,488 

Other expenses  3,917 3,332 

Sta� costs 15,742 14,844 

Apparatus and equipment 1,067 1,002 

Consumable supplies 1,694 1,850 

Other expenses 2,660 2,356 

Sta� costs 9,480 9,472 

Furniture and equipment 194 179 

Building operating costs and maintenance 4,849 4,673 

Other expenses 4,873 5,974

Sta� costs 658 194 

Furniture and equipment

Other expenses 844 230 

8(b) (47) (115)

Net commercial income distributions to inventors and sta� 5 41,930 

Unrealised foreign exchange loss 5 4,130 

Adviser and legal fees 5 3,830

Consultants and other expenses 5 1,253

Other income 3 5,002 8,671

Depreciation and amortisation 11 (9,044) (8,556)

(709)
Impairment write-down of available-for-sale �nancial assets

7,207 6,895 
Bequests and grants for capital works

16(a)

Gain on available-for-sale �nancial assets taken to equity 16(h) 11,551 8,441

Cumulative gain reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss on sale of available for sale �nancial assets 16(h) (5,091) (9,892)

Transfer impairment write-down of available-for-sale �nancial assets 16(h) 539 

The �nancial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of the �nancial statements.

78,710 73,569 

Support laboratories

21,163 20,052 

Professional services

19,396 20,298

Strategic initiatives

1,529 433 

Doubtful debts writeback

Total operating expenditure before monetisation 120,751 114,237

Royalty monetisation (venetoclax)

51,143  - 

Total operating expenditure 171,894 114,237

Surplus from operations 275,353 2,785 

278,518 9,086 Net surplus for the period

Total comprehensive income for the year 284,978 8,174 

27 9 

 - 

-

-

-

 - 

-
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017
2017 2016

Note $’000 $’000Assets 

Liabilities

Funds

Current assets

Total current assets 353,887 40,645

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets 423,589 404,980 

777,476 445,625

Current liabilities

Total current liabilities 57,421 50,517

Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities 41,871 1,902 

99,292 52,419

678,184 393,206 

678,184 393,206 

Cash and cash equivalents 17(a) 344,746 32,849

Current tax assets 8(a) 1,387 2,735 

Trade and other receivables 8(b) 6,742 4,409

Prepayments 980 515

Properties held for sale 25 105 

Prepaid operating lease 32 32 

Other �nancial assets 10 233,412 221,732 

Property, plant and equipment 11 187,601 180,640 

Prepaid operating lease 2,576 2,608 

Trade and other payables 12 10,176 5,503

Provisions 13 23,592 20,232

Unearned grants and fellowships 14 23,343 24,525

Other liabilit ies 15 310 257 

Provisions 13 41,871 1,902 

Permanent invested funds 16(b) 185,610 181,162 

General funds 16(c) 378,204 114,306 

Royalty fund 16(d) 44,410 34,981 

Leadership fund 16(e) 24,562 23,581 

Discovery fund 16(f) 4,545 2,682 

Child care centre fund 16(g) 2,101 

Investment revaluation reserve 16(h) 40,853 34,393 

The �nancial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of the �nancial statements.

 - 

9

9

 - 

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Total funds
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016

$’000 $’000Cash �ows from operating activities

Cash �ows from investing activities

Cash �ows from �nancing activities

Donations and bequests 7,945 7,898 

General income 6,611 6,321 

Receipts from granting bodies 79,167 74,598 

GST paid to ATO (3,102) (4,998)

Payments to suppliers and employees (119,894) (109,013)

Royalty receipts 338,196 9,360 

Dividends received 10,582 11,131 

Interest and bill discounts received 3,955 3,118 

17(b)

Payment for other �nancial assets (19,328) (41,280)

Proceeds on sale of other �nancial assets 20,723 37,549 

Grants and donations for property, plant and equipment 4,330 1,733 

Payment for property, plant and equipment (16,078) (9,960)

Donations and bequests to permanent invested funds 2,877 5,162 

E�ects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign (4,140) 737 

currencies

17(a)

The �nancial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of the �nancial statements.

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 323,460 (1,585)

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (10,353) (11,958)

2,877 5,162 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 315,984 (8,381)

32,592 40,236

344,436 32,592

Net cash provided by �nancing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Permanent  General  Royalty Leadership Discovery Child care Investment Total 

fund fund fund fund fund centre  revaluation 

fund reserve

Balance at 31 December 2015 385,032 

9,086 

Other comprehensive income for the year

8,441 

(9,892)

539 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the 12,770 (15,816) 8,812 1,899 320 1,101 (912) 8,174 

year

Balance at 31 December 2016 181,162 114,306 34,981 23,581 2,682 2,101 34,393 393,206 

278,518

Other comprehensive income for the year

11,551 

(5,091)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the 4,448 263,898 9,429 981 1,863 (2,101) 6,460 284,978

year

Balance at 31 December 2017 185,610 378,204 44,410 24,562 4,545  - 40,853 678,184

168,392 130,122 26,169 21,682 2,362 1,000 35,305 

Surplus/(de�cit) for the year 12,770 (15,816) 8,812 1,899 320 1,101 

Gain / (loss) on available-for-sale investments 8,441 

Cumulative (gain) reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss (9,892)

on sale of available for sale �nancial assets

Transfer impairment write down of available- 539 

for-sale �nancial assets

Transfers not re�ected in current year surplus 2,971 (2,971)

Surplus/(de�cit) for the year 4,448 260,927 9,429 981 1,863 870

Gain / (loss) on available-for-sale investments 11,551 

Cumulative (gain) reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss (5,091)

on sale of available for sale �nancial assets

The �nancial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of the �nancial statements.

 - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 
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Notes to the annual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017

1. Statement of signi�cant accounting policies

The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research (‘the Institute’) is incorporated in Victoria as a company limited by guarantee. The Institute 

has 222 members and the guarantee is limited to two dollars per member. 

The �nancial report is a general purpose �nancial report in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-pro�ts Commission Act 2012, 

Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) and complies with other requirements of the law. Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to 

International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS). The Institute is exempt from taxation. The Institute is a not-for-pro�t entity.

The �nancial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 30 April 2018.

The �nancial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets and �nancial 

instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of consideration given in exchange for assets. 

The Institute is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 dated 24 

March 2016, and in accordance with that Instrument amounts in the �nancial report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise 

indicated. 

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting �nancial information satis�es the concepts of relevance 

and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The following signi�cant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the �nancial report:

The �nancial statements include all the activities of The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research.

Principal address of the Institute is:

1G Royal Parade

Parkville, Victoria, 3052

Property, plant and equipment held for use in research, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the statement of �nancial position at cost, less 

any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write o� the net cost of each 

asset over its expected useful life. 

A regular review of useful lives, depreciation rates and residual values is conducted at each year end, with the e�ect of any changes in estimate 

accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

20 - 40 years 20 - 40 years

3 - 20 years 3 - 20 years

5 - 20 years 5 - 20 years

Land leased at Parkville is recognised as part of property, plant and equipment at fair value. Subsequent measurement will be under the cost 

method, whereby the assets will not be revalued.

Assets acquired are recorded at the cost of acquisition, being the purchase consideration determined as at the date of acquisition plus costs 

incidental to the acquisition. Items of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The Institute is a company limited by guarantee and as such has no issued capital. 

(i) General Funds consist of the net accumulation of surpluses and de�cits of prior years.

(ii) Permanent Invested Funds originate from gifts and bequests, the income from which is applied as stipulated by the donor, or to general 

research where there is no speci�c stipulation. These gifts and bequests are appropriated to Capital Funds.

(iii) The Royalty Fund consists of the balance of royalties received in respect of patented inventions and not expended.

(iv) The Leadership Fund consists of donations and income earned thereon. The Leadership Fund was established in honour of Professors 

Gustav Nossal, Donald Metcalf, Jacques Miller and Suzanne Cory to provide named fellowships to nurture the development of outstanding young 

scientists with the potential to be future leaders of biomedical research.

(v) The Discovery Fund consists of donations and income earned thereon, less funds spent on research to date. The Fund was established by the 

Institute to support specialist research and will be applied based on the merits of submissions to the Institute Director. There are three areas of 

focus; early drug discovery, blue sky basic biological research and technical innovation.

(vi) The Child Care Centre Fund consists of donations received in support of the construction of a child care centre on the institute’s premises in 

Parkville. This fund was fully utilised during the year.

(v) The Investment Revaluation Reserve consists of gains and losses recognised through movement in the fair value of investments and other 

�nancial assets.

 
 

  

(a) Reporting Entity

2017 2016

Buildings

(d) Source of capital funds

(b) Property, plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment

Furniture and �ttings

(c) Acquisition of assets
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(e) Revenue recognition

Grants

Sale of goods and disposal of assets

Rendering of services

Royalties

Contributions of assets

(h) Trade and Other Receivables 

(i) Trade and Other Payables

(j) Research costs

(k) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Government and other funds received often have conditions attached for speci�c services to be performed. These agreements are considered 

reciprocal and as such, revenue is only recognised once the services have been performed, typically being the expenditure incurred in relation to 

the speci�c grant. Until such point, revenue is recorded as deferred income. For all other grants, revenue is fully recognised and not deferred.

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of assets is recognised when goods are delivered and legal tit le has passed.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. 

Royalty income is recognised when received.

Revenue arising from the contribution of assets is recognised when the Institute gains control of the contribution.

Donation and bequest income is recognised on receipt of the donation or bequest. They are disclosed as part of operating revenue, except for, 

where stipulated by the donor or bequestor, certain amounts are treated as donations and bequests for capital works and are appropriated to 

Permanent Funds.

All investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After init ial recognition, investments are measured at fair value. Gains 

or losses on investments held are recognised in the Investment Revaluation Reserve. For assets that are actively traded in organised �nancial 

markets, fair value is determined by reference to the Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on balance date.

(i) Available-for-sale �nancial assets

Shares and other investments held by the Institute are classi�ed as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined 

in the manner described in note 23(j) . Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in the investment revaluation 

reserve with the exception of impairment losses which are recognised in pro�t or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be 

impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss.

(ii) Impairment of �nancial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through pro�t or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. 

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition of the 

�nancial asset the estimated future cash �ows of the investment have been impacted. Financial assets held below cost, by 20% or more, or for 

greater than 12 months are considered impaired and adjusted through pro�t and loss. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent 

periods.

(iii) Term Deposits are recorded at amortised cost, with revenue recognised on an accruals basis.

(iv) Dividend revenue is recognised when the dividend is received. Interest revenue is recognised and accrued on a time proportionate basis that 

takes into account the e�ective yield on the �nancial asset.

(v) Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations

In respect of any interest in jointly controlled assets, the Institute does not consolidate but recognises in the �nancial statements:

• its share of jointly controlled assets;

• any liabilit ies that it had incurred;

• its share of liabilit ies incurred jointly by the joint venture;

• any income earned from the selling or using of its share of the output from the joint venture; and

• any expenses incurred in relation to being an investor in the joint venture.

For jointly controlled operations, the Institute recognises: the assets that it controls and the liabilit ies that it incurs; expenses that it incurs; and its 

share of income that it earns from selling outputs of the joint venture.

Cash comprises cash on hand and on-demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 

to known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of changes in value and have a maturity of three months or less at the date of 

acquisition.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest rate 

method less provision for impairment.

Trade payables and other accounts payables are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently carried at amortised cost. They are 

recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

Research costs are recognised as an expense when incurred and reported in the �nancial year in which they relate.  

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

(i) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or 

as part of an item of expense; or

(ii) for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables. Cash �ows are 

included in the statement of cash �ows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash �ows arising from investing and �nancing activit ies which is 

recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classi�ed within operating cash �ows.

Donations and bequests

(f) Investments and other �nancial assets

(g) Cash and cash equivalents
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(l) Provisions

(n) Foreign currency

(o) Leased assets

(r) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

(s) Impact of new and revised Accounting Standards

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the organisation 

is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is 

the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash �ows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 

amount is the present value of those cash �ows (where the e�ect of the time value of money is material) . 

Provision is made for bene�ts accruing to employees in respect of annual leave and long service leave, when it is probable that settlement will be 

required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect to annual leave and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their nominal values, 

using the remuneration rate expected to app yl  at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect to long service leave which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at the present value of the 

estimated future cash out�ows to be made by the Institute in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

All foreign currency transactions during the �nancial year are brought to account using the exchange rate in e�ect at the date of the transaction. 

Foreign currency monetary items at reporting date are translated at the exchange rate existing at that date and exchange di�erences are 

recognised in the net surplus or de�cit in the period in which they arise.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis which re�ects the pattern in which economic bene�ts from the 

leased asset are consumed.

All assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to 

whether their carrying value exceeds their possible recoverable amount. Where an asset ’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the 

di�erence is written-o� as an expense. The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of value in use and fair value less costs 

to sell. Depreciated replacement cost is used to determine value in use. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an item 

of plant and equipment less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation to date, calculated on the basis of such cost.

Properties are classi�ed as held for sale when they are immediately available for sale in their present condition and their sale is highly probable 

and expected to be completed within 12 months of the Institute’s reporting date.

The properties are valued at fair value less costs to sell.

In the application of the Institute’s accounting policies, which are described above, management may from time to time make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilit ies that may not be readily apparent from other sources. The 

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgement. Key areas in which management has exercised judgement include the 

calculation of the fair value of �nancial assets, the carrying value of employee bene�ts, and the carrying value of provisions for royalties.

The Institute has adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (the 

AASB) that are relevant to its operations and e�ective for the current reporting period.

New and revised Standards and amendments thereof and Interpretations e�ective for the current reporting period that are relevant to the Institute 

include:

- AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and AASB 2015-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Scope 

and Application Paragraphs

- AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clari�cation of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

- AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 

Cycle

- AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101

- AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions if Interests in Joint Operations

- AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107

- AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of 

Not-for-Pro�t Entities

- AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Further Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

The application of these amendments has had no �nancial impact in the current period.

(m) Employee bene�ts

(p) Impairment of non-�nancial assets

(q) Properties held for sale



Annual Report 2017   75
9l r  i  Hall I i t    Annu l port i ci l St t en s 17 

Standards and interpretations issued not yet e�ective

E�ective for annual 

applied in the �nancial 

At the date of authorisation of the �nancial report, the standards and interpretations that are relevant to the Institute, listed below, were on issue 

but not yet e�ective.

The Institute is currently performing an assessment of the �nancial impacts and disclosures from the application of the new standards and their 

amendments on the �nancial reports.

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, and the relevant amending standards 1 January 2018 31 December 2018

The standard replaces AASB 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement. In December 2016, the AASB issued AASB 2016-8 Amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-

Pro�t Entities which introduced not-for-pro�t speci�c implementation guidance into 

AASB 9. The amendments to AASB 9 address the initial measurement and recognition 

of non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements. Such receivables 

include taxes, rates and �nes.

Key requirements of AASB 9: all �nancial assets that are within scope, are required to 

be subsequently measured at amortised cost of fair value. Speci�cally:

- Debt investments that are held whose objective is to collect the contractual cash 

�ows, and that have contractual cash �ows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost 

at the end of subsequent accounting periods

- All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value 

at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under AASB 9, entities 

may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair 

value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive 

income, with only dividend income generally recognised in pro�t or loss.

With regard to the measurement of �nancial liabilit ies designated as at fair value 

through pro�t or loss, AASB 9 requires that the amount of change in fair value of 

the �nancial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is 

presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the e�ects of 

changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or 

enlarge an accounting mismatch in pro�t or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to 

a �nancial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss. Under 

AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the entire amount 

of the change in the fair value of the �nancial liability designated as fair value through 

pro�t or loss is presented in pro�t or loss.

AASB 16 ‘Leases’ 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

AASB 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of whether 

an identi�ed asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases 

(o� balance sheet) and �nance leases (on balance sheet) are removed for 

lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a 

corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees (i.e. all on 

balance sheet) except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost 

(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially 

measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. 

Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well 

as the impact of lease modi�cations, amongst others. Furthermore, the classi�cation 

of cash �ows will also be a�ected as operating lease payments under AASB 117 are 

presented as operating cash �ows; whereas under the AASB 16 model, the lease 

payments will be split into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as 

�nancing and operating cash �ows respectively.

Speci�cally, for NFP entities AASB 16 Leases becoming e�ective, there will also be 

a change in how peppercorn leases (leases at signi�cantly below-market terms and 

conditions) will be recognised and recorded whereby the bene�t (i.e. fair value of the 

right to use the asset) of the full lease term is to be recognised. 

Expected to be initially 

reporting periods 

Standard beginning on or after year ending
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Expected to be initially 

reporting periods 

Standard beginning on or after year ending

E�ective for annual 

applied in the �nancial 

AASB 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

- AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

- AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – E�ective date of 

AASB 15

- 2016-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clari�cations to AASB 15

- AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 

15 for Not-for-Pro�t Entities

- AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian 

Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Pro�t Entities

AASB 15 replaces all existing revenue requirements in Australian Accounting standards 

and applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless the contracts 

are in scope of other standards, such as AASB 117 (or AASB 16 Leases, once applied). 

The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the 

transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that re�ects the 

consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 

services. 

AASB 1058 ‘Income of Not-for-Pro�t Entities’ 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

AASB 1058 clari�es and simpli�es the income recognition requirements that app yl  to 

not-for-pro�t (NFP) entities, in conjunction with AASB 15. These Standards supersede 

the NFP income recognition requirements previously in AASB 1004 as well as current 

revenue recognition guidance including AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction 

Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes e�ective. 

The core principle of the new income recognition requirements under AASB 1058 is 

that where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with ‘su�ciently speci�c’ 

performance obligations, income would be recognised when (or as) the performance 

obligations are satis�ed under AASB 15. Should the transaction fall outside of the 

scope of AASB 15, then income would be recognised immediately under AASB 1058. It 

is anticipated the main revenue stream impacted will be grant income.

NFP entities have a choice of apply gin  the new standards retrospectively or to use a 

modi�ed transition approach (with no restatement of comparatives) . 

AASB 2017-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments’

Amends the following standards:

- AASB 140 Investment Property – change in use. 

- AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards – deletion of 

exemptions for �rst-time adopters and addition of an exemption arising from 

Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. 

- AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – measuring an associate 

or joint venture at fair value.

AASB Interpretation 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

The Interpretation clari�es how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose 

of determining the exchange rate to use when recognising the receipt or payment of 

advance consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation requires an entity to 

determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate 

to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) as the 

date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary 

liability arising from the payment or receive of advance consideration.
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2017 2016

2. Income $’000 $’000

3. Other income 

4. Operating expenses

5. Venetoclax monetisation

The following has been prepared in support of the items of income shown in the statement of 
pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.

Recognised in surplus or de�cit:

Dividends and distributions income on available-for-sale �nancial assets 10,013 11,757

Interest income on available-for-sale �nancial assets 4,148 3,048 

Realised foreign exchange gain (10) 736 

Less transfer to grants and fellowships (2,033) (2,078)

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments 5,002 8,671 

The following items of expense are included in the net surplus.

Employee bene�ts expense  85,944 80,652

Buildings 4,916 4,928 

Plant and equipment 4,058 3,521 

Furniture and �ttings 70 107 

Operating lease expense  32  32 

On 14 June 2017, the Institute entered into an agreement with CPPIB Credit Europe S.á r.l., a wholly owned subsidiary of Canada Pension Plan 
Investment Board (CPPIB), for the partial sale of royalty rights in an anti-cancer treatment known as venetoclax. Venetoclax is the result of a 
research collaboration with Genentech, a member of the Roche Group, and Abbvie and is based on ground-breaking scienti�c discoveries made at 
the Institute over three decades ago.

The monetisation arrangement resulted in a transaction that included a cash payment of US$250 million upfront and potential future milestone 
payments of up to US$75 million. The upfront cash payment has been recognised as income in the statement of pro�t or loss and other 
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017. A number of signi�cant costs associated with the monetisation income have also 
been included in the statement of pro�t or loss and on the statement of �nancial position. These are detailed below:

331,082

Less associated costs:

Provision for distribution to inventors and sta� (41,930)

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (4,130)

Adviser and legal fees (3,830)

Consultants and other expenses (1,253)

As a result of the Venetoclax monetisation transaction and the Institute’s net commercial income distribution policy, commitments for payments to 
employees may be payable in future years, subject to Board approval.  The nominal amount of the future commitments is $18,543k. Refer to note 
13 for further details.

Investment income from investments received during the period:

14,151 15,541

12,118 13,463

Total other income 5,002 8,671 

Total depreciation 9,044 8,556 

Operating lease

Royalties Received

Net monetisation income 279,939 -

Total as per statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 

Employee bene�ts expense

Depreciation of non-current property, plant and equipment

-

-

-

-

-
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6. Directors’ remuneration

2017 2016

7. Auditors’ remuneration $ $

2017 2016

8. Current assets $’000 $’000

9. Operating leases

The directors of the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research during the period were:

CW Thomas MW Broomhead C Kilpatrick

JS Hemstritch R Doyle J McCluskey C Viney

RH Wylie J Dyson ME McDonald IM Winship

RER Black S Kapur GF Mitchell

The aggregate income paid or payable, or otherwise made available, in respect of the �nancial period, to all directors of the Institute, directly or 

indirectly, by the company or by any related party was nil (2016: nil) .

Aggregate retirement bene�ts paid to all directors of the Institute, by the Institute or by any related party was nil (2016: nil) .

Auditing the �nancial report 60,000 59,000

Other regulatory audit services 4,875

Non audit services 28,675 88,100

Franking credits receivable  2,029  2,604 

Current tax asset / (liability) (642) 131 

Sundry debtors 3,344 3,163

Accrued income 3,401  1,296 

Doubtful debts provision** (3) (50)

** Movement in the provision for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year  50  147 

Amounts written o� during the year as uncollectible (52)

Impairment losses reversed (47) (45)

 3  50 

** Bad Debts Expense

Amounts in provision for doubtful debts  (47)  (97) 

Recovery of previous write o�s  (18) 

Operating leases relate to research facilit ies with lease terms of between 5 to 99 years, with an option to extend. All operating lease contracts 

contain market review clauses in the event that the Institute exercises its option to renew. The Institute does not have an option to purchase the 

leased asset at the expiry of the lease period. The operating leases are prepaid.

Not longer than 1 year 32 32 

Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 128 128 

Longer than 5 years 2,448 2,480 

TF Moran

 - 

 - 

 - 

88,675 151,975

(a) Current tax assets

 1,387  2,735 

(b) Trade and other receivables

6,745 4,459

6,742 4,409

Balance at end of the year

Bad debts expense/(writeback) (47)  (115) 

Non-cancellable operating leases

2,608 2,640 
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2017 2016

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

10. Other �nancial assets

Non-quoted available-for-sale investments at fair value

(a) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of �nancial position

Available for sale �nancial assets

(b) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of �nancial assets

Available-for -sale unquoted equities

Floating rate securities  5,146 5,035

Shares  1,781  338 

Shares  169,623  161,340 

Floating rate securities  56,862 55,019

The following table provides an analysis of �nancial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into 
levels 1 to 3 based on:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilit ies.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than those quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are not based on observable 
market data

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017

Total

Quoted shares 169,623 169,623 

Floating rate securities 56,862 5,146 62,008 

Unquoted shares* 1,781 1,781

*As at 31 December 2017, the Institute held a 49% (2016: 49%) share of equity in Catalyst Therapeutics Pty Ltd, with a carrying value of $1,195k 
(2016: $120k). Anaxis Pharma Pty Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Catalyst Therapeutics Pty Ltd. The Institute also held a 16.2% (2016: 16.2%) 
share of the equity in Murigen Pty Ltd, with a carrying value of $61k (2016: $61k).

338 508 

Purchases

Impairment (37)

Revaluation 1,443 (133)

Quoted available-for-sale investments at fair value

 233,412  221,732 

Total

Total  226,485  5,146  1,781  233,412 

Opening balance

Closing balance 1,781 338 

 -  - 

 - 

- -

 -  - 

 - 
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11. Property, plant and equipment 

 Buildings  Work in  Plant and  Furniture and  Land Lease  Total 
progress 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 31 December 2016 178,780 2,079 57,631 2,009 16,200 256,699 

Balance at 31 December 2017 181,384 8,807 62,488 2,047 16,200 270,926 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 31 December 2016 (36,962)  - (37,619) (1,478)  - (76,059)

Balance at 31 December 2017 (41,878)  - (39,899) (1,548)  - (83,325)

Carrying amounts

As at 31 December 2016 141,818 2,079 20,012 531 16,200 180,640 

As at 31 December 2017 139,506 8,807 22,589 499 16,200 187,601 

Total depreciation 9,044 8,556 

equipment fttings 

 $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

178,341 1,541 49,038 1,619 16,200 246,739 

Additions at cost 9,960 9,960 

Transfers 439 (9,422) 8,593 390 

Additions at cost 16,078 16,078 

Transfers 2,604 (9,350) 6,708 38 

Disposals (1,851) (1,851)

(32,034) (34,098) (1,371) (67,503)

Depreciation expense (4,928) (3,521) (107) (8,556)

Disposals 1,778 1,778 

Depreciation expense (4,916) (4,058) (70) (9,044)

Aggregate depreciation allocated, whether recognised as an expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of other assets during the period:

Buildings 4,916 4,928 

Plant and equipment 4,058 3,521 

Furniture and �ttings 70 107 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 

 -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  - 
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2017 2016

$’000 $’000

12. Trade and other payables

13. Provisions

14. Unearned grants and fellowships

15. Other liabilities

Trade creditors 3,529 2,972 

Accrued expenses 6,647 2,531

The agg gre ate provisions recognised and included in the �nancial statements is as follows:

Provision for net commercial income distribution 6,683 4,109 

Provision for employee bene�ts* 16,909 16,123 

Provision for employee bene�ts 2,271 1,902 

Provision for net commercial income distribution 39,600

* Included in current provisions are $10,015K (2016: $9,356K) of long service leave for which current entitlement exists.

As a result of the Venetoclax monetisation transaction and the Institute’s net commercial income distribution policy relating to distributions to 
employees, commitments may be payable in future years.

The extent to which an out�ow of funds under these commitments will be required is dependent on: sta� members remaining employed by the 
Institute, the number of eligible employees within the distribution period and Board approval. The amounts that may be payable (no amount has 
been recognised as a liability) are reported in nominal amounts below.

Potential payments by the Institute arising from net commercial income distribution to sta�:

Payable within 1 year 1,500

Payable between 1-5 years 5,043

Payable 5+ years 12,000

Number of employees at end of �nancial period (full time equivalents)

Sta� 682 680 

Visiting scientists 48 39 

Grants and fellowships already committed and applicable to future periods:

Grants 19,885 21,631

Fellowships 3,458 2,894 

Monies Held in Trust:

Sta� Salary Packaging deposits 310 257 

10,176 5,503

Current provisions 23,592 20,232 

Non current provisions 41,871 1,902 

65,463 22,134 

18,543 -

730 719 

23,343 24,525

310 257 

-

-

-

-
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2017 2016

16. Capital movements $’000 $’000

(a) The net surplus for the �nancial period is 278,518K (2016: $9,086K)

This has been appropriated as follows:

Transfer to Permanent Invested Fund 16(b) 4,448 12,770 

Transfer to/(from) General Fund 16(c) 260,927 (15,816)

Transfer to Royalty Fund 16(d) 9,429 8,812 

Transfer to Leadership Fund 16(e) 981 1,899 

Transfer to Discovery Fund 16(f) 1,863 320 

Transfer to Child Care Centre Fund 16(g) 870 1,101 

Balance at beginning of period 181,162 168,392 

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 4,448 12,770 

Balance at beginning of period 114,306 130,122 

Transfer not re�ected in current year surplus 2,971

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 260,927 (15,816)

Balance at beginning of period 34,981 26,169 

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 9,429 8,812 

Balance at beginning of period 23,581 21,682 

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 981 1,899 

Balance at beginning of period 2,682 2,362 

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 1,863 320 

Balance at beginning of period 2,101 1,000 

Transfer of funds for child care centre construction (2,971)

Net surplus for period transferred from statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income 870 1,101 

Balance at beginning of period 34,393 35,305 

Valuation gain recognised for the period 11,551 8,441 

Transfers to gain on sale of investment (5,091) (9,892)

Transfers due to loss on impairment 539 

Note

-

-

Total appropriations to funds 278,518 9,086 

(b) Permanent Invested Fund

Total Permanent Invested Fund 185,610 181,162 

(c) General Fund

Total General Fund 378,204 114,306 

(d) Royalty Fund

Total Royalty Fund 44,410 34,981 

(e) Leadership Fund

Total Leadership Fund 24,562 23,581 

(f) Discovery Fund

Total Discovery Fund 4,545 2,682 

(g) Child Care Centre Fund

Total Child Care Centre Fund  - 2,101 

(h) Investment revaluation reserve

Total investment revaluation reserve  40,853 34,393 

Total funds 678,184 393,206
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2017 2016

$’000 $’00017. Notes to statement of cash �ows

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

(b) Reconciliation of net surplus to net cash �ows from operating activities

(c) Non-cash �nancing and investing activities

For the purposes of the statement of cash �ows, cash includes cash on hand, cash at bank, 
monies held at trust (salary packaging bank account for sta�) and investments in money market 
instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Cash at the end of the �nancial period as shown in the statement of cash �ows is reconciled to 
the related items in the statement of �nancial position as follows:

Cash 89,505 9,628

Deposits at call 5,847 7,221 

Term deposits 249,394 16,000

Cash for Institute operations (as per Cash Flow Statement) 344,436 32,592

Cash balances not available for use 

Monies Held in Trust  - Sta� Salary Packaging Deposits 310 257 

Net surplus 278,518 9,086 

Depreciation 9,044 8,556 

Donations and bequests moved to Permanent fund (2,877) (5,162)

Gain on sale of available-for-sale �nancial assets (5,002) (8,671)

Write down of available-for-sale investments 709 

Increase in Investments – dividend reinvestment plans (6) (3)

Grants and donations for capital works (4,330) (1,733)

Donated �nancial assets (1,430) (1,118)

Prepaid operating leases 32 32 

Tax assets 575 (754)

Sundry debtors and prepayments (692) 612 

Income receivable (2,105) 1,043 

Foreign exchange gain/ loss 4,140 (736)

Trade payables 557 865 

Accrued expenses 4,116 142

Tax liabilit ies 773 (395)

Current provisions 3,360 3,454

Other current liabilit ies (Grants) (1,182) (7,658)

Non-current provisions 39,969 146 

During the �nancial period dividends of $6,372 (2016: $2,967) were reinvested as part of dividend and distribution reinvestment plans.

344,746 32,849

Represented by:

344,746 32,849

273,949 1,696 

Changes in net assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:

Net cash from operating activities 323,460 (1,585)

 - 
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18. Economic dependency

19. Segment information

2017 2016

$’00020. Capital expenditure commitments $’000

21. Related party disclosures

2017 2016

$ $

22. Superannuation commitments

The Institute is reliant upon grants from the Australian Government National Health and Medical Research Council for 32.8% of operating 
expenditure (2016: 41.5%) and the Victorian Government Department of State Health and Human Services, Business and Innovation for 9.0% of 
operating expenditure (2016: 5.7%) for support of its basic research activities.

The Institute is a medical research organisation focussed on the nationally and globally signi�cant areas of health being cancer, immune disorders 
and infectious diseases. All operations are predominantly in Australia.

Not longer than 1 year 4,307 9,478

After 1 year but not more than 5 years 2,611

The Institute received fees during the year from Catalyst Therapeutics Pty Ltd totalling $260,262 (2016: $445,181) for services rendered on normal 
commercial terms.

The Institute received royalties during the year from Anaxis Pharma Pty Ltd and Murigen Pty Ltd totalling $834,281 (2016: $161,716).

The Institute made equity contributions during the year to Catalyst Therapeutics Pty Ltd totalling $147,000 (2016: $312,375).

The Institute received a return of capital during the year from Catalyst Therapeutics Pty Ltd and Anaxis Pharma Pty Ltd totalling $763,641 (2016: $nil)

During the year various Directors and Director-related entit ies made donations to the Institute totalling $605,659 (2016: $928,636).

The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the Institute is set out below:

Short-term employee bene�ts 1,708,099 1,324,330

Post-tax employment bene�ts 268,014 211,982

Those operative and open to membership by new employees:

UniSuper – Accumulation Super (1) 

Other superannuation funds chosen by employees.

Those closed to future membership by Institute employees:

Unisuper – De�ned Bene�t Division

Unisuper – Accumulation Super (2)

UniSuper is a multi employer superannuation fund operated by UniSuper Limited as the corporate trustee and administrated by UniSuper 
Management Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of UniSuper Limited. The operations of UniSuper are regulated by the Superannuation Industry 
(Supervision) Act 1993.

(i) The UniSuper schemes known as the De�ned Bene�t Division or Accumulation Super (2) were only available to contributing members of the 
Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research Superannuation Fund (1979) which closed in 2003.

(ii) The maximum contribution rate to the schemes is 24.5% of member’s salary of which the member contributes 7.5% after tax and the Institute 
17%.

(iii) UniSuper has advised that the Accumulation Super (2) and De�ned Bene�t Division plans are de�ned as multi-employer de�ned contribution 
schemes in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Bene�ts. AASB 119 Employee Bene�ts states that this is appropriate for a de�ned bene�t plan 
where the employer does not have access to the information required and there is no reliable basis for allocating the bene�ts, liabilit ies, assets 
and costs between employers. 

(iv) The number of members of the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research Superannuation Fund (1979) who became members of the 
UniSuper – De�ned Bene�t Division when the fund closed in 2003 was 204. The number of Institute employees who are members of the De�ned 
Bene�t Division as at 31 December 2017 was 78 (2016: 88).

(v) New employees who commenced after 1 July 2003 currently have a minimum contribution 9.5% of their annual salary contributed by the 
Institute to Accumulation Super (1) or to a fund of their choice prescribed under the Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act (1992).

 - 

Total commitments 4,307 12,089

(a) Transactions with associates 

(b) Transactions with Directors and Director-related entities

(c) Compensation for key management personnel

1,976,113 1,536,312

(a) Institute employees are members of a range of superannuation funds, which are divided into the following categories:

(b) UniSuper plans
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2017 2016

$’000 $’000

23. Financial instruments

(c) The total superannuation contributions by the Institute during the period in respect to 
the above plans were:

Total 8,922 8,607 

(c) Capital risk management

(d) Financial risk management

(e) Interest rate risk management

(f) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk Minimum 25bp Maximum 100bp 

2017 2016 2017 2016

$000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s 

(h) Credit risk management

UniSuper – De�ned Bene�t Division  1,605  1,655 

UniSuper – Accumulation Super (2)  344  355 

UniSuper – Accumulation Super (1)  6,411  6,214 

Other superannuation funds  562  383 

Details of the signi�cant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis 
on which revenues and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of �nancial asset and �nancial liability are disclosed in note 1 to the 
�nancial statements.

The Institute does not enter into or trade derivative �nancial instruments.

The Institute manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concern whilst maximising its return on investment within the risk 
pro�le maintained by the Institute. The capital structure consists of permanent investment funds, retained earnings and reserves.

The Institute minimises �nancial risk through the charter given to the investment sub-committee. In line with this charter, the Institute invests short 
term funds in a appropriate combination of �xed and �oating instruments.

The Institute is exposed to interest rate risk as it invests funds at both �xed and �oating interest rates. The majority of �nancial assets in this class 
are bank accounts, term deposits and �xed interest securities with varying interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking 
place at the beginning of the �nancial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 25 basis point variation was used as the minimum 
point and 100 basis point variation as the maximum point. This is consistent with the management’s view of interest rate sensitivity. A change in 
interest rates would impact net surplus as follows:

E�ect on surplus - rate decrease (1,016) (254) (4,068) (1,017)

E�ect on surplus - rate increase 1,016 254 4,068 1,017

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

At reporting date, if the equity prices had been 5% higher / lower:

- net surplus for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have  been una�ected as the equity investments are classi�ed as available-for-sale; and

- investment revaluation reserve would decrease or increase by $8.5 million (2016: $8.1 million) mainly as a result of the changes in fair value of 
available-for-sale shares.

The Institute's sensitivity to equity prices has not changed signi�cantly from the prior year.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a �nancial loss to the Institute. The Institute 
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counter parties as a means of mitigating the risk of �nancial loss from defaults. The 
Institute's exposure is continuously monitored and reviewed. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers including granting bodies. 
The Institute does not have a signi�cant credit exposure to any single party or any group of counter parties having similar characteristics. The 
carrying amount of �nancial assets recorded in the �nancial statements represents the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk.

(a) Signi�cant accounting policies

(b) Signi�cant terms, conditions and objectives of derivative �nancial instruments

(g) Equity price sensitivity analysis
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(i) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have built an app pro riate risk management framework 
for the management of the Institute’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management. The Institute manages the liquidity risk 
by maintaining adequate cash reserves, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash �ows while matching the maturity pro�les of 
�nancial assets. Given the current surplus cash assets, liquidity risk is minimal. The Institute does not have any interest bearing liabilit ies. The 
remaining contractual maturity for its non-interest-bearing �nancial liabilit ies is $10.176 million payable within 3 months of 31 December 2017 
(2016: $5.503 million).

The carrying amount of the Institute’s �nancial assets and �nancial liabilit ies recorded in the �nancial statements approximates their fair values. 
The fair value of �nancial assets with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted 
market prices.

The following table details the Institute’s exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

 $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

Cash 0.33% 344,746 344,746

Tax assets  1,387  1,387 

Sundry debtors 3,344 3,344

Prepayments 980 980

Accrued income 3,401 3,401

Shares  169,623  169,623 

Floating rate securities 3.84%  18,821  43,187  62,008 

Non listed shares  1,781  1,781 

Trade payables  10,176  10,176 

Other liabilit ies  310  310 

Grants carried forward 23,343 23,343

 $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

Cash 0.77% 32,849 32,849

Tax assets  2,735  2,735 

Sundry debtors 3,163 3,163

Prepayments 515 515

Accrued income  1,296  1,296 

Shares  161,340  161,340 

Floating rate securities 4.04%  13,807  46,247  60,054 

Non listed shares  338  338 

Trade payables  5,503  5,503 

Other liabilit ies  257  257 

Grants carried forward  24,525  24,525 

(j) Fair value

(k) Interest rate risk

 Average  Variable  Less than  1 to 5 years  More than  Non-Interest  TOTAL 

interest rate interest rate 1 year 5 years Bearing 

31 December 2017

Financial assets

344,746 -  18,821  43,187 180,516 587,270

Financial liabilities

 -  -  -  - 33,829 33,829

 Average  Variable  Less than  1 to 5 years  More than  Non-Interest  TOTAL 

interest rate interest rate 1 year 5 years Bearing 

31 December 2016

Financial assets

32,849 -  13,807  46,247  169,387  262,290 

Financial liabilities

  -   -   -   -  30,285  30,285 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

  -  -  -  - 

  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

  -  -  -  - 

- - - -

  -  -  -  - 
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24. Jointly controlled operations and assets 2017 2016

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

25. Properties held for sale

2017 2016

$’000 $’000

Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited (VCCC)

Assets

Total current assets 569 264 

Non-current Assets

Total non-current assets 4 5 

Share of total assets 573 269 

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Total current liabilities 31 96 

Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities 6 5 

Share of total liabilities 37 101 

Net Assets 536 168 

Share of VCCC's net assets 536 168 

Carrying value:

 - 110 

 - 105 

10.0% 10.0%

The Institute is a Member of the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre Joint Venture (the VCCC) and the Institute retains joint control over the 

arrangement, which it has classi�ed as a Joint Operation. The vision for the VCCC is to save lives through the integration of cancer research, 

education and patient care. Through innovation and collaboration, the VCCC will drive the next generation of improvements in prevention, 

detection and cancer treatment. This vision will further the objectives of the Institute. The VCCC is a not-for-pro�t organisation and has been 

recognised by the Australian Taxation O�ce as a Health Promotion Charity.

All Members hold an equal 1/10th share in the assets, liabilit ies, expenses and income of the VCCC. The members own the VCCC assets as 

tenants in common; and are severally responsible for the joint venture costs – in the same proportions as their interests.

Interests in the VCCC are not transferrable and forfeited on withdrawal from the joint venture. Distributions are not able to be paid to Members and 

excess property on winding up will be distributed to other charitable organisations with objects similar to those of the VCCC. 

The principal place of business for the VCCC is Level 10, 305 Grattan Street, Melbourne, Victoria.

The Institute’s policy is to value its proportionate member interest based on the most recent audited accounts of the VCCC. The last audited 

accounts received are dated 30 June 2017.

The Institute’s interest in the above jointly controlled operations is detailed below.

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 566 256 

Trade and other receivables 3 

Investment in Cancer Therapeutics CRC 1  1 

Property, plant and equipment 3 4 

Trade and other payables 23 54 

Employee bene�ts 42 

Employee bene�ts 6 5 

During the 2016 year, the Institute was bequeathed a property from the deceased estate of a donor.  It was bequeathed jointly, and in equal parts, 

to the Institute and the Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation Ltd. Settlement of the sale was e�ected on 12 January 2017.

Contract price 220 

Ownership share attributable to the Institute 50%

Fair value of property attributable to the Institute

Less costs to sell (50%) (5)

8 

8 

 - 

 - 

-
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Governance statement:

The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research is a Public Company Limited by Guarantee. Ultimate responsibility for the governance of 

the Institute rests with the Board of Directors. This Governance Statement outlines how the Board meets that responsibility.

The Board’s primary role is to ensure that the Institute’s activities are directed towards achieving its mission of ‘Mastery of Disease through 

Discovery’. The Board must ensure that this mission is achieved in the most e�cient and e�ective way.

The Board ful�ls its primary role by:

• selecting, appointing, guiding and monitoring the performance of the Institute Director;

• formulating the Institute’s strategic plan in conjunction with the Chief Executive and Senior Management;

• approving operating and capital budgets formulated by the Institute Director and Management;

• monitoring Management’s progress in achieving the Strategic Plan;

• monitoring Management’s adherence to operating and capital budgets;

• ensuring the integrity of internal control, risk management and management information systems;

• ensuring stakeholders receive regular reports, including �nancial reports;

• ensuring the Company complies with relevant legislation and regulations; and

• acting as an advocate for the Institute whenever and wherever possible.

The Board has formally delegated responsibility for the Institute’s day-to-day operations and administration to the Institute Director and Executive 

Management.

The Board oversees and monitors Management’s performance by:

• meeting at least four times during the year;

• receiving detailed �nancial and other reports from management at these meetings;

• receiving additional information and input from management when necessary; and

• assigning to the Audit and Risk, Commercialisation and Investment Committees of the Board responsibility to oversee particular aspects of 

the Institute’s operations and administration.

Each Board Committee operates under a Charter approved by the Board. These Charters are reviewed annually and updated as necessary.

All Board Members are Non-Executive Directors and receive no remuneration for their services. The Company’s Constitution speci�es:

• there must be no less than 12 and no more than 18 Directors;

• Directors (except those appointed by The University of Melbourne) are appointed for a maximum of four terms of three years each, after which 

Directors may be reappointed annually with the unanimous agreement of all other Board Members; and

• the President or Vice President may hold o�ce for an additional period or periods not exceeding six years.

Appointments to the Board are made to ensure the Board has the right mix of skills, experience and expertise. One Board Member is appointed by 

the Trustees of the Institute and four Board Members are appointed by the Company’s founding members, The University of Melbourne and The 

Royal Melbourne Hospital (Melbourne Health) (two members each) and up to a further 13 by the Board.

Board and Committee Members receive written advice of the terms and conditions of their appointment. Board and Committee Members’ 

knowledge of the business is maintained by visits to the Institute’s operations and management presentations.

The performance of individual Board and Committee Members and the Board and Board Committees is assessed annually.

The Board oversees the Institute’s risk management system, which is designed to protect the Organisation’s reputation and manage those risks 

that might preclude it from achieving its goals.

Management is responsible for establishing and implementing the risk management system, which assesses monitors and manages operational, 

�nancial reporting and compliance risks. The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring the e�ectiveness of the risk management 

system between annual reviews.

Board Members, Senior Executives and sta� are expected to comply with relevant laws and the codes of conduct of relevant professional bodies, 

and to act with integrity, compassion, fairness and honesty at all t imes when dealing with colleagues, and others who are stakeholders in our 

mission.

The Institute has many stakeholders, including our donors and benefactors, our sta�, and students, the broader community, the government 

agencies who provide us funds and regulate our operations, and our suppliers.

We adopt a consultative approach in dealing with our stakeholders. We get involved in industry forums to ensure governments at all levels are 

aware of our concerns and our achievements and to remain abreast of industry developments.

The Institute insures Directors (and the Company Secretary and Executives) against liabilit ies for costs and expenses incurred by them in 

defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in the capacity of Director (or Company Secretary or Executive) of the 

Company, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the Company.

Achieving the Mission

Management’s Responsibility

Board Oversight

Board Members

Risk Management

Ethical Standards and Code of Conduct

Involving Stakeholders

Speci�c Responsibilities of the Board

Indemni�cation and Insurance
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Directors’ report

The Directors of the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research submit herewith the Annual Financial Report of the Company for the year 
ended 31 December 2017. In order to comply with the provisions of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Pro�ts Commission Act 2012 the Directors 
report as follows:

The names and particulars of the Directors of the Company during or since the end of the �nancial year and attendance at Board meetings in the 
year ended 31 December 2017 are:

BCom(Hons) MBA 2001 5 5

BSc(Hons) FCA FAICD 2013 5

2014 5 5

BA LLB(Hons)  DipTheol MPhil DPhil 2013 5 4

MBA BE(Civil)  FIE(Aus) FAusIMM FAIM MICE(UK) 2014 5 5

BSc  Grad Dip Fin Inv 2016 5 5

BMedSci MBBS MD 2011 5 5

BSc (Hons) LLB (Hons) 2016 5 5

RDA BVSc  FACVSc PhD 2007 5 5

BA(Hons) 2013 5 4

LLB/BA 2016 5 4

MB ChB MD 2007 4 4

MBBS, PhD, FRCPC, FMedSci May 2017 4 4

MBBS, MBA, MD, FRACP, FRACMA, FAICD. FAHMS, May 2017 4 3
DMedSci (Hons)

BA BEd HonLLD Oct 2017 1 1

The role of the Audit and Risk Committee is to assist the Board in ful�lling its statutory and �duciary responsibilit ies with regard to accounting and 
�nancial reporting practices and internal control systems of the Company. The Committee met four times during the period under review. 

The Company’s principal activity in the course of the �nancial year was medical research and there has been no signi�cant change in that activity 
during the �nancial year.

The �nancial result from operations was a net surplus of $275,353,010 (2016: net surplus of $2,784,842). After allowing for gains from the sale of 
investments, other grants, donations and bequests, depreciation and amortisation the overall result for the period was a surplus of $278,517,585 
(2016: surplus of $9,085,755). Tax is not applicable. The Company is Limited by Guarantee, has no share capital and declares no dividends.

A review of operations of the Company is included in the detailed scienti�c reports.

The Institute aims to achieve a high standard in environmental matters. The Institute complies with the Environmental Protection Act in respect of 
its operations. Discharges to air and water are below speci�ed levels of contaminants and solid waste is disposed of in an app pro riate manner. 
Biomedical waste and sharps are disposed of through appropriately licensed contractors. The Directors have not received noti�cation nor are they 
aware of any breaches of environmental laws by the Institute. 

Directors and Board Meetings

Joined Meetings Meetings 

Board held while Attended

a Director

Christopher W Thomas   

Jane S Hemstritch 

Robert H Wylie 

Rufus ER Black 

Malcolm W Broomhead

John Dyson

James McCluskey

Marie McDonald 

Graham F Mitchell 

Terence F Moran 

Carolyn Viney

Ingrid M Winship

Robert Doyle 

The Audit and Risk Committee

Principal Activities

Financial Results

Operations

Environmental Regulations

am

ao

ac

ac

Melb

Chairman and President of the Institute

Vice President of the Institute

Honorary Treasurer

(elected February 2013)

(elected July 2016)

(resigned 15 December 2017)

(resigned 3 November 2017)

(resigned 5 February 2018)

 FAICD

2

FCA FAICD

FAICD

 MBA 

 FRACP FRCPA

 FTSE FAA

 FRACP

Melb Oxon

Qld

Monash SIA RMIT

UWA

Melbourne

Syd Melb

Latrobe

Monash

Cape Town

Shitij Kapur

Christine Kilpatrick
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Appreciation

Committee  Meetings Meetings Committee  Meetings Meetings 

attendance held attended attendance held attended

while a while a 

member member

Audit and Risk Committee Human Research Ethics Committee

Commercialisation Advisory Committee

Advocacy and Support Committee

Investment Committee

Remuneration and Nominations Committee

The Board wishes to extend its appreciation to the Members of the various Committees (Audit and Risk Committee, Appointments and Promotions 

Committee, Human Research Ethics Committee, Investment Committee, Commercialisation Advisory Committee, Advocacy and Support 

Committee and and the Financial Sustainability Committee) as well as the many other people including the Institute Director, sta�, students, 

overseas visitors and honorary workers, who work so tirelessly to advance the Company’s world-wide reputation for excellence in medical 

research. In particular, the Board wishes to acknowledge the 31 years of service Mr Peter Worcester has provided to the Investment Committee. 

A table of attendance at the various committees is listed below.

Mr Robert Wylie (Chair) 4 4 Associate Professor Rufus Black (Chair) 5 5

(resigned 15 December 2017)Mr Malcolm Broomhead 4 3

Dr John Bonacci 5 5Ms Jane Hemstritch 4 3

Dr Vanessa Bryant 5 5

Rev Father Michael Elligate 5 4

(Deputy Chair)
Professor Graham Mitchell (Chair) 3 3

Mr David Freeman 5 4
Dr Leigh Farrell 3

Mrs Netta McArthur 5 4
Dr Lisa Hennessey 3

Dr Rachel Nowak
Professor George Morstyn 3 0

(resigned April 2017)

Mr John Ra� 3 0
Dr Ken Pang 3 1

(resigned 27 November 2017)
(resigned July 2017)

Ms Moira Rayner 5 3

Professor Ingrid Winship 4 4

Mr John Dyson (Chair) 5 5 (resigned October 2017)

Ms Sally Bruce 5 0

Dr Paul Cooper 5 5

Mr Michael Daddo 5 1 Mr Robert Wylie (Chair) 4 4

Mr Hugh Hodges 5 5 Mr Malcom Broomhead 4 3

Ms Caroline Johnston 5 3 Mr Stephen Merlicek 4 4

Ms Andrea Lapidge 5 4 Mr Stephen Milburn-Pyle 4

Mr John Marshall 5 3 Mr Andrew Scott 4 3

Ms Catherine Robson 5 3 Ms Fiona Tra�ord-Walker 4 3

Mr Peter Worcester 4 3

(resigned 17 January 2018)

Mr Christopher Thomas (Chair)

Associate Professor Rufus Black

(resigned 15 December 2017)

Mr Terence Moran

 

2

2

2 2

2

2 2

2 2

2 2

am 
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that 
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.   
 
Those Charged with Governance’s for the Financial Report 
 
Those Charged with Governance are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced 
Disclosure Regime and the ACNC Act and for such internal control as Those Charged with 
Governance determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, Those Charged with Governance are responsible for assessing 
the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Those Charged with 
Governance either intend to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole 
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:   
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.  

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.  
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2017 2016 2015 6 months to 31 
December 2014

12 months to 30 
June 2014

  $’000s  $’000s  $’000s $’000s $’000s
Revenue

Australian Government 45,163 51,079 48,492 25,569 51,512
Victorian Government 12,739 7,753 7,419 3,078 6,936
Foreign governments 243 1 495 47 506
Government revenue 58,145 58,833 56,406 28,694 58,954
Industrial grants and contracts 4,044 3,227 4,691 1,058 1,696
Philanthropic grants and fellowships – Australia 7,444 8,804 8,062 4,659 9,024
Philanthropic grants and fellowships – international 6,468 5,805 7,386 4,056 6,355
Investment income 12,118 13,463 13,172 7,074 12,925
Royalty income 11,059 12,328 2,262 4,727 3,119
General revenue 7,560 5,746 4,430 1,077 3,369
Donations and bequests 9,327 8,816 7,297 4,126 6,678
Royalty monetisation revenue 331,082 - - - -
Non-government revenue 389,102 58,190 47,300 26,773 43,166
Total revenue 447,247 117,021 103,706 55,467 102,120

Expenditure
Staff costs 85,944 80,652 76,570 38,544 75,027
Laboratory operating costs 20,756 19,025 18,327 9,326 17,841
Laboratory equipment 4,047 3,610 2,284 1,105 2,538
Building operations 4,849 4,673 4,712 2,424 5,171
Administration 3,718 5,258 2,501 1,451 1,985
Fundraising 487 387 219 106 -
Business development 997 747 825 390 849
Doubtful debts expense (47) (115) - 201 -
Royalty monetisation costs 51,143 - - - -
Total expenditure 171,894 114,237 105,438 53,547 103,411
Operating result 275,353 2,785 (1,732) 1,920 (1,291)
Other income
Profit and loss on sale of long-term assets 5,002 8,671 9,512 2,170 5,324
Donations and bequests capitalised to Permanent Funds 2,877 5,162 719 137 1,581
Grants and donations for capital works 4,330 1,733 6,071 870 3,204
Total other income 12,209 15,566 16,302 3,177 10,109
Other expenses
Loss on impairment write down of long-term investments - (709) (4,808) (391) -
Depreciation and amortisation (9,044) (8,556) (8,512) (4,486) (8,671)
Total other expenses (9,044) (9,265) (13,320) (4,877) (8,671)
Net surplus 278,518 9,086 1,250 220 147
Capital funds 
Permanent invested capital funds 185,610 181,162 168,392 159,027 157,026
General funds 378,204 114,306 130,122 143,126 150,132
Royalty fund 44,410 34,981 26,169 24,387 19,994
Leadership fund 24,562 23,581 21,682 19,724 18,975
Discovery fund 4,545 2,682 2,362 2,109 2,030
Centenary fund - 2,101 1,000 104 100
Investment revaluation reserve 40,853 34,393 35,305 47,755 46,763
Total funds 678,184 393,206 385,032 396,232 395,020
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 16,078 9,960 5,062 1,484 3,937
Staff numbers: (equivalent full-time)
Scientific research staff: 
– Senior faculty 78 78 79 77 78
– Postdoctoral scientists 183 188 176 190 197
– Visiting scientists 48 39 23 12 14
–Other laboratory research staff 241 252 238 269 265
Supporting staff:
– Other support services 180 162 146 144 135
Total staff and visiting scientists 730 719 662 692 689
Students  180  173 169 159 175
Papers published 419 429 410 167 381

Statistical summary for the year ended 31 December 2017
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Capital Funds
Permanent Named Capital Funds
The following is a complete listing of all 
permanent funds held and invested by the 
Institute at 31 December, 2017.  

*New donations of capital received in 
current financial period. 

 2017 $

Adair John Bequest (ex DW)  394,911 

Adair John Bequest (ex MF)  74,980 

Alexander R Estate  157,465 

Allison-Levick J & H  88,385 

Alston Peter and Julie  
Florence Fellowship Fund  1,374,110 

Amey AM Estate  38,024 

Anderson KA Estate  282,647 

Anderson NM Estate  17,128 

Angus Dorothy Irene Estate  278,145 

Anonymous  356,030 

Anonymous  3,170,768 

Anonymous – Tasmania  60,816 

Anonymous – Victoria  7,324 

Anonymous – Victoria  197,109 

Arnel Florence Janet Maude Estate  57,521 

Arter Myra G Estate  88,435 

Ashford Ivy A Estate  35,008 

Attwell Samuel E Estate  68,493 

Atyeo George & Isobel Fund  50,316 

Baker Alice Lillian Estate  83,375 

Ballantyne JW Estate  797,305 

Barfield WG Estate  54,123 

*Barry Joan Elaine Memorial Fund  33,318 

Bartlett Mary V Estate  38,353 

*Bates Tim Memorial 
Diabetes Research Fund  173,548 

Charles L Bartholomew Estate  159,144 

Bauer Dr Franz Estate  65,505 

Bell Valerie Amy  92,791 

Benjamin EG Estate  61,386 

Bennett LM Estate  38,824 

Berry Ruby C Estate  163,805 

Biderman Cyla Estate  78,183 

Blain BE Estate  125,191 

Bland RT Estate  376,489 

Bock Lindsay William Estate  33,142 

Boothman Alva Estate  769,473 

Borrett M A Estate  598,055 

Bran EG Estate  217,682 

Brennan EM Estate  67,951 

The Ruby Bryan Memorial Fund  742,400 

Brittain W & VI Mem Fund  80,075 

Brockhoff Nyon Trust  251,468 

Brough AV Estate  86,505 

Brown Isabelle A Estate  90,100 

Bruce RH Estate  39,516 

Buckland William Foundation Fund  231,822 

Buckman Olive Estate  27,463 

Bult C G Estate  500,726 

Brumloop LAA Estate  86,252 

Burley Stanley Estate  70,244 

Burnet Sir Macfarlane Estate  126,558 

Burns JC Estate  185,334 

Cahill JL Estate  25,663 

Callaway LJ Estate  49,141 

Cambridge Beresford Estate  203,546 

Carlin Freda Evelyn Estate  100,684 

Carling DM Estate  179,877 

Carlson Catherine Estate  90,311 

Carlson Elizabeth F Estate  102,071 

Carty LEW Charitable Fund  43,411 

Cato EA Estate  890,614 

Cato MC Estate  723,891 

Chapman Debbie Memorial Fund  13,164 

Chatfield SL Estate  122,184 

Claridge John PG Estate  36,419 

Clark Lindesay Fund  988,255 

Cockburn Clarice BP Estate  27,385 

Cole DE Estate  785,081 

Coles GO Estate  38,185 

Collie Barbara Estate  152,040 

Collie Betty Rae  213,190 

Collie George Estate  2,385,653 

Colliver Len Estate  56,195 

Connolly Grace C Estate  129,401 

Cormack Margaret Mary  96,537 

Cory Joy & Desmond 
Cancer Research Fund  130,734 

Coultass Hylda M Estate  129,718 

Courtney Gwendoline Vera Estate  277,665 

Coutts Dr ELA Estate  130,237 

Coutts IBM Estate  27,617 

*Craven DA Memorial Fund  1,257,382 

JE Craven & MA Shearer Estates  49,350,773 

Crawford Duncan Estate  16,985 

Criswick R M Estate  517,966 

Critchlow Ronald P Estate  303,087 

Crowley MM Estate  211,789 

Cubbins SG Estate  90,170 

Cummings ED Estate  160,542 

Cutter BE Estate  16,686 

Darbyshire EJ (Ted) Estate  349,193 

Davey Dorothy Estate  308,967 

Davidson BI Estate  26,219 

Davidson EE Estate  29,758 

Davis FLG Estate  59,496 

Dawson Anne Marie Estate  7,954 

Del Cott RAM Estate  262,277 

Deryk SD Estate  70,936 

Sir Harold Dew and Family Estate  845,642 

Dick MRK (Ray) Estate  220,097 

Dickie Phoebe Estate  45,102 

Dimsey WE Estate  226,994 

Dobbie Myrtle M Estate  41,428 

Dodgshun GM Estate  164,662 

Dossetor Catherine L Estate  35,822 

Dowie S Estate  23,256 

Drakensberg Trust  2,500,340 

Drury Evelyn Ann Fund  122,283 

Duncan PH Estate  98,282 

East James Douglas Estate  187,066 

Edwards Allen Richard Estate  196,744 

Edwards HHW Estate  250,686 

Eisner KR  96,806 

Ellis GM Estate  3,800,902 

Emery Harriet Anne Estate  21,579 

Eva Michael Ross Estate  4,525,051 

Facey Mary Bethune Estate  16,533 

Fagg Maude V Estate  102,858 

Fields Ernest Estate  289,161 

Findlay Winifred Gertrude Estate  144,442 

Fitzgerald Sheila Mary Estate  44,230 

Ford Ada Joyce Estate  20,271 

Fraser K Estate  2,095,058 

Galbraith DA & DV Estate  114,227 

Gerdts Sheila Lesley G Estate  68,589 

Gibb Geo & Bennett Wm A  423,749 

Gilbert Augusta Estate  382,908 

Gilder CH Estate  16,886 

Gillon AM Estate  3,193,778 

Girdwood J Estate  251,682 

Goldman Sachs JB Were 
Foundation   776,805 

Gordon H & T Estate  112,756 

Graves GC Estate  27,936 

Gray Bessie Mavis Fund  26,537 

Gray Clara Estate  76,219 

Greig Harry Douglas Estate  532,444 

Grubb Walter Joseph Estate  39,400 

Guest Doris Rose Estate  16,572 

Hackett Dorothy Estate  6,822 

Hadfield RCS Estate  120,200 

Hadley AN Estate  1,199,205 

Hamilton M Estate  47,985 
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Harrap FM Estate  142,014 

Harrap LM Estate  30,623 

Harris Alan Scholarship Fund  95,218 

Harris John D & Lyla Foundation  900,914 

Hartlett K Estate  1,035,306 

Haydon Michael JM Memorial Fund  63,344 

Hearse JD  1,259,714 

Hemphill Olive May Estate  69,762 

Henderson AN Estate  26,601 

Henderson Joan Estate  135,958 

Henry MA Estate  668,522 

Heron Thelma Hope Estate  99,230 

Highton GAN Estate  570,313 

Hill Ramon Bruce Estate  160,581 

Hind Ruby F Estate  34,641 

Hocking Helen Estate  379,043 

Holmes EM Estate  84,764 

Hope Irene Estate  446,139 

Hooper Nancy Hilda  117,805 

Hosier MM Estate  159,027 

Hurry M Estate  32,179 

Inglis Dulcie M Estate  119,074 

Ironside WH Estate  70,244 

Jackson Catherine M Estate  202,847 

Johnson Daphne Adele Estate  8,270 

Johnson Ethel Grace Estate  48,104 

Johnson Sydney Robert Estate  54,880 

Johnstone Reginald Ben Estate  14,647 

Judd Anita Estate  63,311 

Kayler-Thomson Marion Estate  54,821 

Keating L Estate  1,428,144 

Keats LCA Estate  1,350,437 

Kellock TH Estate  1,903,145 

Kendall Nanyce Douglas  49,657 

Kerr HM Estate  114,299 

King DM Estate  43,581 

Knight FF Estate  31,819 

Lang John Murray Estate  782,222 

*Lanigan Annie Maria (Nance)  
& Janet Mary Fund  32,487 

Lanteri Gwen Estate  1,640,956 

Larard DV Estate   13,526 

Leckie Winifred Estate  227,043 

Lilford VM Estate  500,697 

Lins RD Estate  28,097 

Little Mabel B Estate  68,541 

Lyddon Pauline M Estate  1,260,209 

Lyell Alexia Bequest  456,314 

MacAskill WG & I  28,097 

Mace Nina May Estate  303,826 

MacDonald Elsie May Estate  189,565 

Macindoe Jock & Diana Fund  42,146 

MacIntosh Elizabeth H Estate  25,312 

Mackie-Smith CM Estate  385,009 

Macleay The Lillian 
& Kenneth Bequest  441,213 

MacNamara Jean Fund   1,037 

Mahoney Florence Cancer Fund  177,552 

Malcolm Phyllis Elizabeth Estate  284,522 

Maloney Kathleen Margaret Estate  23,418 

Mann David Memorial  
Research Fund  48,664 

Mansfield Trevor Geoffrey Estate  10,459 

Marguccio R Estate  14,049 

Mariner Barry Leonard Estate  64,914 

McArthur Nellie M Estate  111,748 

McCooke Miss MH Estate  352,924 

McDonald Charles Thomas  19,153 

McDougall Phyllis Mable Estate  132,794 

McGhee ME Estate  76,496 

McGregor Amy VK Estate  129,361 

McGregor Elvira Ruth Estate  23,837 

McGregor KB Estate  187,028 

Mckay C N Fund  276,980 

McKinnon Sheila May Estate  47,163 

McLean Ada Myee Dutton Estate  556,317 

McLennan B Estate  100,470 

McNab M Estate  25,380 

McNeill Sir James Fund  21,851 

McRorie Ruby A Estate  82,160 

Menagh Thelma Marie Estate  19,118 

Miller Lorna May Estate  916,877 

Miller MA Estate  65,755 

Miller Violet Isabella Estate  76,521 

Minney DW & NR Fund  14,049 

Mitchell, Bettye Victoria Fund  4,610,397 

Mitchell Doris Georgina Mildred  70,244 

Mitchell G Fund  54,449 

Moden FHW Estate  135,407 

Moody E Vaughan Estate  1,342,123 

Moon Ida Alice Estate  53,047 

Mooney Carmel Mary, Estate of  176,560 

Moore Phyllis Estate  14,049 

Morgan DM Estate  414,289 

Morris Foundation of  
Medical Research  177,570 

Moss EE Estate  271,014 

Muller FG Estate  20,059 

Murray Alan Ambrose Estate  36,114 

Murray Gwendoline Mary Fund  1,252,754 

Must Mary Kathleen Bequest  1,097,913 

Myer Dame Merlyn Estate  15,133 

Myer Pam Sallmann Foundation  30,637 

Nevill Melanie Joy  84,453 

Newton Evelyn  19,631 

Newton EM Estate  19,082 

Nicholas Harold George Estate  335,020 

Norins Leslie Fund  286,163 

Norton M Estate  888,773 

Nossal Sir Gustav Fund  329,472 

Nottingham SG Estate  36,335 

Palmer DE Estate  27,422 

Palmer Ethel Fund  330,197 

Parker Barbara Memorial Fund  75,263 

Parker Mabel V Estate  84,787 

Parsons Kathleen FB Estate  42,926 

Patten Ralph & Etty Bequest  319,363 

Patterson Gerard A Estate  20,071 

Paulin Leukaemia Fund  231,598 

Paulin SC Estate  29,086 

Payne Henry and Charlotte Fund  1,000,978 

Peterson Vera Estate  599,987 

Petley Francis Estate  159,383 

Pierce John Lindsay Estate  1,280,013 

Pietsch Dr CH Fund  213,583 

Porter Florence JA Estate  137,246 

Prater Mabel Edward  14,567 

Pritchard DG Estate  36,059 

Pyke MA Estate  16,858 

Qualtrough Research Fund  2,833,569 

Rae Olive Estate  1,173,152 

Reeves Jessie Estate  65,875 

Reid John T Charitable Trusts  7,656,928 

Reiser Erwin Estate  28,097 

Richardson DLK Estate  89,840 

Ricker EM Fund  80,835 

Roberts JI Charitable Fund  8,570 

Robertson AT Estate  14,049 

Rose Norma J Estate  14,202 

Ruppel FE Estate  162,852 

Salemann CW Estate  14,049 

Sallmann L & E Memorial Fund  27,422 

Santos TS Estate  909,825 

Schack Elsie Edith Estate  132,946 

Scott Annie May Estate  173,281 

Sharp II Estate  22,085 

Shaw Eileen Coryn Estate  24,601 

Shelton Edgar Estate  862,309 

Sidwell OB Estate  2,026,550 

Skea Lyndal and Jean  
Leukaemia Fund  1,069,027 

Skinner Phyllis Maye Estate  89,058 

Smith Elsie Violet Estate  17,947 

Smorgon Robert & Jack  
Family Foundation  395,471 

Snow Freda Estate  63,892 

Spence Frank Meldrum  36,419 

Spencer Stanley L Estate  19,424 

Stanbrough AE Estate  111,992 
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Stephens L Estate  116,530 

Stevens SA Estate  132,744 

Stevenson Dame Hilda Estate  95,062 

*Stewardson Family Trust  145,697 

Stewart Jean Elma  89,508 

Swingler Maxwell  
& Mary Bequests  2,688,624 

Sydserff Charles SB Estate  17,673 

Syme David Farnell Estate  1,026,690 

Talbot P Estate  438,609 

Taws M Estate  140,487 

Taws GE Arthritis Fund  26,537 

Taylor Sarah McQuillan Estate  65,390 

Thomas JC Estate  323,409 

Thompson O Estate  31,118 

Thorpe Doris EB  95,936 

Tink RM Estate  326,180 

Tinkler VF Estate  62,990 

Tomasetti John T Estate  446,452 

Thompsom LW Estate  2,323,068 

Tressider Edith Kathleen Estate  576,307 

Trezise KW Estate  20,246 

Tropical Diseases Fund  98,618 

Turnbull JG Estate  82,574 

Van Leeuwen GH Estate  499,119 

Vincent-Smith IG Fund  201,448 

Vogel Herta & FB Estate  14,202 

Walker CM Estate  231,480 

Walker Dorothy Hope Estate  2,473,971 

Wallace Nancy Jeanie Estate  219,311 

Walsh Dr William  
Butler Memorial Fund  905,184 

Walter Ailsa Amy Mary Estate  171,326 

Warnock EMC nee Riddle Estate  1,794,119 

Watson MR Estate  16,077 

Waxman Elizabeth H Estate  77,425 

Wedge Erica Estate  355,124 

Webb NJ Estate  285,171 

Weeks Thelma Estate  14,567 

Wekwerth Hilda Frances Estate  34,823 

West John James Estate  107,720 

Westcott Ita E Estate  22,616 

White Morris G Estate  45,167 

Wicks LR Estate  14,049 

Williams AM Estate  93,048 

Williams Irene E Estate  337,873 

Wilson DE Estate  87,910 

Wilson MML Estate  98,926 

Wilson NF Estate  14,049 

Wilson V M (Sunny) Estate  144,902 

Wolstonecroft WW Estate  40,116 

Wright Lynette Oreti Estate  203,517 

Zillman Dudley V Estate  56,467 

Fellowship and 
Scholarship Funds
Farrant Patricia & John  
Scholarship Fund  208,644 

JHA Munro Foundation  966,826 

*Macphee Avis Permanent Fund  52,596 

Mathison G C  
Research Scholarship  191,908 

*Metcalf Donald Scholarship Fund  858,488 

Moffatt Edith Scholarship Fund  1,990,627 

PhD Scholarship Funds
Carty EM Fund  404,409 

Mackay Dr Ian Fund  306,258 

Pearl Paddy Fund  1,409,244 

*Speedy Pauline Scholarship Fund  500,000 

Syme Colin Fund  1,965,872 

Wilson Ed Memorial Fund  1,760,746 

Other Funds 
Anonymous Seminar Award  19,416 

Balderstone Award  42,706 

Gideon Goldstein Fund  1,405,869 

*Speedy Pauline Innovation  
Grant Fund  700,000 

The following Estates in which the Institute 
had an interest, were managed during the 
year by Trustees. (Income received by the 
Institute in the financial period is treated 
similarly to donations and bequests):  

The Baldy Trust Fund  

CH Boden Memorial Trust  

John Frederick Bransden Memorial Fund  

Frank Broadhurst Estate  

Thomas, Annie & Doris Burgess Charity Trust 

Miss EM Drummond Estate  

Frederick and Winifred Grassick 
Memorial Fund  

Estate of Maxwell Gardiner Helpman 

Estate of Shelia Mary Helpman 

The Mackie Bequest  

Irene and Ronald MacDonald Foundation  

Albert H Maggs Charitable Trust  

Mrs AM Reilly  

Miss ML Reilly  

The Stang Bequest  

Emily Vera Winder Estate  

Florence Mary Young Charitable Trust 

Hazel and Pip Appel Fund 

Leadership Fund 
The Leadership Fund was established in 
honour of Professors Gustav Nossal, Donald 
Metcalf, Jacques Miller and Suzanne Cory 
to provide named Fellowships to nurture the 
development of outstanding young scientists 
with the potential to be future leaders of 
biomedical research.  The Cory Fellowship is 
currently held by Misty Jenkins until 2021. 

The Leadership Fund at 31 December 2017 
included the following permanent funds 
($10,000 and over): 

Sir Harold Dew and Family Estate  6,745,420 

Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd   1,404,039 

The Ian Potter Foundation   1,404,039 

L M Archibald Estate   936,027 

Albert H Maggs Charitable Trust   915,579 

Helen Macpherson Smith Trust   561,615 

Anonymous   468,013 

Anonymous   468,013 

E Vaughan Moody Estate   468,013 

The Broken Hill Proprietary  
Company Limited   468,013 

J B Were & Son Charitable Fund   468,013 

Eunice L Lambert Estate   460,389 

Betty Eunice Stephens Estate   315,205 

National Australia Bank   280,808 

Victor Smorgon Charitable Fund   205,925 

The Sidney Myer Fund   168,486 

Leslie D W Stewart Estate   137,750 

Joe White Bequest   127,300 

Krongold Foundation Pty Limited   93,603 

Professor Sir Gustav Nossal   93,603 

The Scobie and Claire  
MacKinnon Trust   93,603 

The R & J Law-Smith Gift   56,162 

National Mutual Holdings Limited   56,162 

Pacific Dunlop Ltd   56,162 

Sheila R White Estate   55,376 

Coles Myer Ltd   46,800 

James Kirby Foundation   46,800 

Arthur Andersen & Co Foundation   37,439 

Arthur Robinson & Hedderwicks   37,439 

H B Kay Estate   18,721 

Stephelle Pty Ltd   18,721 

C M Walter  18,721 
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Publications
BIO	 Bioinformatics division
CBD	 ACRF Chemical Biology division
CHD	 Cancer and Haematology division
CSCD	 Cell Signalling and Cell Death division
DCD	 Development and Cancer division
IMM	 Immunology division
INF	 Infection and Immunity division
INFL	 Inflammation division
MGC	 Molecular Genetics of Cancer division
MIMM	 Molecular Immunology division
MMD	 Molecular Medicine division
PHI	 Population Health and Immunity division
SBD	 Structural Biology division
SBPM	 Systems Biology and Personalised Medicine division
SCC	 Stem Cells and Cancer division

Number of Publications
Primary: 313
Review: 97
Book/Chapter: 14
Total: 424

Primary
1.	 Adema CM, Hillier LW, Jones CS, Loker ES, Knight M, Minx P, Oliveira G, Raghavan N, Shedlock A, do Amaral LR, 

Arican-Goktas HD, Assis JG, Baba EH, Baron OL, Bayne CJ, Bickham-Wright U, Biggar KK, Blouin M, Bonning BC, 
Botka C, Bridger JM, Buckley KM, Buddenborg SK, Lima Caldeira R, Carleton J, Carvalho OS, Castillo MG, Chalmers 
IW, Christensens M, Clifton S, Cosseau C, Coustau C, Cripps RM, Cuesta-Astroz Y, Cummins SF, di Stefano L, Dinguirard 
N, Duval D, Emrich S, Feschotte C, Feyereisen R, FitzGerald P, Fronick C, Fulton L, Galinier R, Gava SG, Geusz M, Geyer 
KK, Giraldo-Calderon GI, de Souza Gomes M, Gordy MA, Gourbal B, Grunau C, Hanington PC, Hoffmann KF, Hughes 
D, Humphries J, Jackson DJ, Jannotti-Passos LK, de Jesus Jeremias W, Jobling S, Kamel B, Kapusta A, Kaur S, Koene JM, 
Kohn AB, Lawson D, Lawton SP, Liang D, Limpanont Y, Liu S, Lockyer AE, Lovato TL, Ludolf F, Magrini V, McManus 
DP, Medina M, Misra M, Mitta G, Mkoji GM, Montague MJ, Montelongo C, Moroz LL, Munoz-Torres MC, Niazi U, 
Noble LR, Oliveira FS, Pais FS, Papenfuss AT, Peace R, Pena JJ, Pila EA, Quelais T, Raney BJ, Rast JP, Rollinson D, Rosse 
IC, Rotgans B, Routledge EJ, Ryan KM, Scholte LLS, Storey KB, Swain M, Tennessen JA, Tomlinson C, Trujillo DL, Volpi 
EV, Walker AJ, Wang T, Wannaporn I, Warren WC, Wu XJ, Yoshino TP, Yusuf M, Zhang SM, Zhao M, Wilson RK. Whole 
genome analysis of a schistosomiasis-transmitting freshwater snail. Nature Communications. 2017 8:15451. BIO 

2.	 Advani G, Lim YC, Catimel B, Lio DSS, Ng NLY, Chueh AC, Tran M, Anasir MI, Verkade H, Zhu HJ, Turk BE, Smithgall TE, 
Ang CS, Griffin M, Cheng HC. Csk-homologous kinase (Chk) is an efficient inhibitor of Src-family kinases but a poor catalyst 
of phosphorylation of their C-terminal regulatory tyrosine. Cell Communication and Signaling 2017 15(1):29. SBPM 

3.	 Agthe M, Garbers Y, Putoczki T, Garbers C. Interleukin-11 classic but not trans-
signaling is essential for fertility in mice. Placenta. 2017 57:13-16. INFL 

4.	 Alhamdoosh M, Law CW, Tian L, Sheridan JM, Ng M, Ritchie ME. Easy and efficient ensemble 
gene set testing with EGSEA. F1000 Research. 2017 6:2010. MGC MMD 

5.	 Ameratunga R, Koopmans W, Woon ST, Leung E, Lehnert K, Slade CA, Tempany JC, Enders A, Steele R, Browett P, Hodgkin 
PD, Bryant VL. Epistatic interactions between mutations of TACI (TNFRSF13B) and TCF3 result in a severe primary 
immunodeficiency disorder and systemic lupus erythematosus. Clinical & Translational Immunology. 2017 6(10):e159. IMM 

6.	 Anderson MA, Tam C, Lew TE, Juneja S, Juneja M, Westerman D, Wall M, Lade S, Gorelik A, 
Huang DCS, Seymour JF, Roberts AW. Clinico-pathological features and outcomes of progression 
of CLL on the BCL2 inhibitor venetoclax. Blood. 2017 129(25):3362-3370. CHD 

7.	 Anderton H, Rickard JA, Varigos GA, Lalaoui N, Silke J. Inhibitor of apoptosis proteins (IAPs) limit RIPK1-
mediated skin inflammation. Journal of Investigative Dermatology. 2017 137(11):2371-2379. CSCD 

8.	 Ansell BR, Baker L, Emery SJ, McConville MJ, Svard SG, Gasser RB, Jex AR. Transcriptomics indicates active and passive 
metronidazole resistance mechanisms in three seminal Giardia lines. Frontiers in Microbiology. 2017 8:398. PHI 
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9.	 Antignani A, Segal D, Simon N, Kreitman RJ, Huang D, FitzGerald DJ. Essential role for Bim in mediating 
the apoptotic and antitumor activities of immunotoxins. Oncogene. 2017 34(4):45-56. CHD 

10.	 Asselin-Labat ML, Rampersad R, Xu X, Ritchie ME, Michalski J, Huang L, Onaitis MW. High-LET radiation increases tumor 
progression in a K-Ras-driven model of lung adenocarcinoma. Radiation Research. 2017 188(5):562-570. SCC MMD 

11.	 Asshoff M, Petzer V, Warr MR, Haschka D, Tymoszuk P, Demetz E, Seifert M, Posch W, Nairz M, Maciejewski P, Fowles 
P, Burns CJ, Smith G, Wagner KU, Weiss G, Whitney JA, Theurl I. Momelotinib inhibits ACVR1/ALK2, decreases 
hepcidin production and ameliorates anemia of chronic disease in rodents. Blood. 2017 129(13):1823-1830. CBD 

12.	 Athanasiou D, Edgar LT, Jafarnejad M, Nixon K, Duarte D, Hawkins ED, Jamalian S, Cunnea 
P, Lo Celso C, Kobayashi S, Fotopoulou C, Moore JE, Jr. The passive biomechanics of human 
pelvic collecting lymphatic vessels. PLoS One. 2017 12(8):e0183222. IMM 

13.	 Au AE, Lebois M, Sim SA, Cannon P, Corbin J, Gangatirkar P, Hyland CD, Moujalled D, Rutgersson A, 
Yassinson F, Kile BT, Mason KD, Ng AP, Alexander WS, Josefsson EC. Altered B-lymphopoiesis in mice 
with deregulated thrombopoietin signaling. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):14953. SBPM CHD CBD 

14.	 Au L, Turner N, Wong HL, Field K, Lee B, Boadle D, Cooray P, Karikios D, Kosmider S, Lipton L, Nott L, Parente P, Tie J, 
Tran B, Wong R, Yip D, Shapiro J, Gibbs P. How accurate are medical oncologists’ impressions of management of metastatic 
colorectal cancer in Australia? Asia-Pacific Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2017 Mar 16. (epub ahead of print) SBPM

15.	 Augstein P, Loudovaris T, Bandala-Sanchez E, Heinke P, Naselli G, Lee L, Hawthorne WJ, Gonez LJ, Neale AM, 
Vaillant F, Thomas HE, Kay TW, Banakh I, Harrison LC. Characterization of the human pancreas side population 
as a potential reservoir of adult stem cells. Pancreas. 2017 Nov 10. (epub ahead of print) PHI SCC

16.	 Bardaji A, Martinez-Espinosa FE, Arevalo-Herrera M, Padilla N, Kochar S, Ome-Kaius M, Botto-Menezes C, 
Castellanos ME, Kochar DK, Kochar SK, Betuela I, Mueller I, Rogerson S, Chitnis C, Hans D, Menegon M, 
Severini C, Del Portillo H, Dobano C, Mayor A, Ordi J, Piqueras M, Sanz S, Wahlgren M, Slutsker L, Desai 
M, Menendez C, PregVax Study Group. Burden and impact of Plasmodium vivax in pregnancy: A multi-
centre prospective observational study. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(6):e0005606. PHI 

17.	 Bertlich M, Ihler F, Weiss BG, Freytag S, Strupp M, Jakob M, Canis M. Role of capillary pericytes and precapillary 
arterioles in the vascular mechanism of betahistine in a guinea pig inner ear model. Life Sciences. 2017 197:17-21. PHI 

18.	 Blazquez-Moreno A, Park S, Im W, Call MJ, Call ME, Reyburn HT. Transmembrane features governing 
Fc receptor CD16A assembly with CD16A signaling adaptor molecules. Proceedings of the National 
Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(28):E5645-E5654. SBD 

19.	 Blombery PA, Ryland GL, Markham J, Guinto J, Wall M, McBean M, Jones K, Thompson ER, Cameron DL, 
Papenfuss AT, Prince MH, Dickinson M, Westerman DA. Detection of clinically relevant early genomic 
lesions in B-cell malignancies from circulating tumour DNA using a single hybridisation-based next 
generation sequencing assay. British Journal of Haematology. 2017 Sep 7. (epub ahead of print) BIO

20.	 Bradstock KF, Link E, Di Iulio J, Szer J, Marlton P, Wei AH, Enno A, Schwarer A, Lewis ID, D’Rozario J, Coyle L, 
Cull G, Campbell P, Leahy MF, Hahn U, Cannell P, Tiley C, Lowenthal RM, Moore J, Cartwright K, Cunningham I, 
Taper J, Grigg A, Roberts AW, Benson W, Hertzberg M, Deveridge S, Rowlings P, Mills AK, Gill D, Bardy P, Campbell 
L, Seymour JF, Australasian Leukaemia Lymphoma Group. Idarubicin dose escalation during consolidation 
therapy for adult acute myeloid leukemia. Journal of Clinical Oncology 2017 35(15):1678-1685. CHD 

21.	 Brasacchio D, Alsop AE, Noori T, Lufti M, Iyer S, Simpson KJ, Bird PI, Kluck RM, Johnstone RW, 
Trapani JA. Epigenetic control of mitochondrial cell death through PACS1-mediated regulation of 
BAX/BAK oligomerization. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(6):961-970. MGC 

22.	 Brinkmann K, Grabow S, Hyland CD, Teh CE, Alexander WS, Herold MJ, Strasser A. The combination of reduced MCL-1 
and standard chemotherapeutics is tolerable in mice. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(12):2032-2043. MGC CHD 

23.	 Brouwer JM, Lan P, Cowan AD, Bernardini JP, Birkinshaw RW, van Delft MF, Sleebs BE, Robin AY, Wardak A, Tan IK, Reljic 
B, Lee EF, Fairlie WD, Call MJ, Smith BJ, Dewson G, Lessene G, Colman PM, Czabotar PE. Conversion of Bim-BH3 from 
activator to inhibitor of Bak through structure-based design. Molecular Cell. 2017 68(4):659-672 e659. SBD CSCD CBD 

24.	 Brown FC, Collett M, Tremblay CS, Rank G, De Camilli P, Booth CJ, Bitoun M, Robinson PJ, Kile BT, Jane SM, Curtis DJ. Loss 
of Dynamin 2 GTPase function results in microcytic anaemia. British Journal of Haematology. 2017 178(4):616-628. CBD 

25.	 Bunting MD, Varelias A, Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F, Schuster IS, Lineburg KE, Kuns RD, Fleming P, Locke KR, 
Huntington ND, Blazar BR, Lane SW, Tey SK, MacDonald KP, Smyth MJ, Degli-Esposti MA, Hill GR. GVHD 
prevents NK-cell-dependent leukemia and virus-specific innate immunity. Blood. 2017 129(5):630-642. MIMM 

26.	 Cameron DL, Schroder J, Penington JS, Do H, Molania R, Dobrovic A, Speed TP, Papenfuss AT. GRIDSS: sensitive and specific 
genomic rearrangement detection using positional de Bruijn graph assembly. Genome Research. 2017 27(12):2050-2060. BIO 

27.	 Campbell KJ, Vandenberg CJ, Anstee NS, Hurlin PJ, Cory S. Mnt modulates Myc-driven 
lymphomagenesis. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(12):2117-2126. MGC 

28.	 Cardoso BR, Hare DJ, Bush AI, Li QX, Fowler CJ, Masters CL, Martins RN, Ganio K, Lothian A, Mukherjee 
S, Kapp EA, Roberts BR, group Ar. Selenium levels in serum, red blood cells, and cerebrospinal fluid 
of alzheimer’s disease patients: A report from the Australian Imaging, Biomarker & Lifestyle Flagship 
Study of Ageing (AIBL). Journal of Alzheimer’s Disease. 2017 57(1):183-193. SBPM 
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29.	 Carrington EM, Zhan Y, Brady JL, Zhang JG, Sutherland RM, Anstee NS, Schenk RL, Vikstrom IB, Delconte RB, 
Segal D, Huntington ND, Bouillet P, Tarlinton DM, Huang DC, Strasser A, Cory S, Herold MJ, Lew AM. Anti-
apoptotic proteins BCL-2, MCL-1 and A1 summate collectively to maintain survival of immune cell populations 
both in vitro and in vivo. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(5):878-888. IMM CHD MGC MIMM 

30.	 Cates JE, Unger HW, Briand V, Fievet N, Valea I, Tinto H, D’Alessandro U, Landis SH, Adu-Afarwuah S, Dewey 
KG, Ter Kuile FO, Desai M, Dellicour S, Ouma P, Gutman J, Oneko M, Slutsker L, Terlouw DJ, Kariuki S, 
Ayisi J, Madanitsa M, Mwapasa V, Ashorn P, Maleta K, Mueller I, Stanisic D, Schmiegelow C, Lusingu JPA, van 
Eijk AM, Bauserman M, Adair L, Cole SR, Westreich D, Meshnick S, Rogerson S. Malaria, malnutrition, and 
birthweight: A meta-analysis using individual participant data. PLoS Medicine. 2017 14(8):e1002373. PHI 

31.	 Cespedes N, Li Wai Suen CSN, Koepfli C, Franca CT, Felger I, Nebie I, Arevalo-Herrera M, Mueller I, 
Corradin G, Herrera S. Natural immune response to Plasmodium vivax alpha-helical coiled coil protein 
motifs and its association with the risk of P. vivax malaria. PLoS One. 2017 12(6):e0179863. PHI 

32.	 Chan JA, Stanisic DI, Duffy MF, Robinson LJ, Lin E, Kazura JW, King CL, Siba PM, Fowkes FJ, Mueller I, Beeson 
JG. Patterns of protective associations differ for antibodies to P.falciparum-infected erythrocytes and merozoites 
in immunity against malaria in children. European Journal of Immunology. 2017 47(12):2124-2136. PHI 

33.	 Chee A, Low MS, Vilcassim S, Gregory GP, Gilbertson M, Ratnasingam S, Grigoriadis G, Fedele PL. Failure 
to achieve early disease response is associated with inferior survival in patients with newly diagnosed 
multiple myeloma. British Journal of Haematology. 2017 Aug 31. (epub ahead of print) MIMM

34.	 Chen HC, Joalland N, Bridgeman JS, Alchami FS, Jarry U, Khan MW, Piggott L, Shanneik Y, Li J, Herold MJ, Herrmann 
T, Price DA, Gallimore AM, Clarkson RW, Scotet E, Moser B, Eberl M. Synergistic targeting of breast cancer stem-like 
cells by human gammadelta T cells and CD8+ T cells. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(7):620-629. MGC 

35.	 Chen L, Xu Y, Wong W, Thompson JK, Healer J, Goddard-Borger E, Lawrence MC, Cowman AF. Structural basis for 
inhibition of erythrocyte invasion by antibodies to Plasmodium falciparum protein CyRPA. eLife. 2017 6:e21347. INF 

36.	 Chen Y, Pal B, Visvader JE, Smyth GK. Differential methylation analysis of reduced representation 
bisulfite sequencing experiments using edgeR. Faculty 1000Research. 2017 6:2055. BIO SCC 

37.	 Cheng Y, Heasman K, Peck S, Peel E, Gooley RM, Papenfuss AT, Hogg CJ, Belov K. Significant decline in anticancer 
immune capacity during puberty in the Tasmanian devil. Scientific Reports. 2017 7:e44716. BIO 

38.	 Chevrier S, Kratina T, Emslie D, Tarlinton DM, Corcoran LM. IL4 and IL21 cooperate to induce the high Bcl6 protein 
level required for germinal center formation. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(10):925-932. MIMM 

39.	 Choi M, Eren-Dogu ZF, Colangelo C, Cottrell J, Hoopmann MR, Kapp EA, Kim S, Lam H, Neubert TA, Palmblad M, Phinney BS, 
Weintraub ST, MacLean B, Vitek O. ABRF Proteome Informatics Research Group (iPRG) 2015 Study: detection of differentially 
abundant proteins in label-free quantitative LC-MS/MS experiments. Journal of Proteome Research. 2017 16(2):945-957. SBPM 

40.	 Choi YJ, Lin CP, Risso D, Chen S, Kim TA, Tan MH, Li JB, Wu Y, Chen C, Xuan Z, Macfarlan T, 
Peng W, Lloyd KC, Kim SY, Speed TP, He L. Deficiency of microRNA miR-34a expands cell fate 
potential in pluripotent stem cells. Science. 2017 355(6325):pii: eaag1927. BIO 

41.	 Chueh AC, Tse JW, Dickinson M, Ioannidis P, Jenkins L, Togel L, Tan B, Luk I, Davalos-Salas M, Nightingale R, Thompson 
MR, Williams BR, Lessene G, Lee EF, Fairlie WD, Dhillon AS, Mariadason JM. ATF3 repression of BCL-XL determines 
apoptotic sensitivity to HDAC inhibitors across tumour types. Clinical Cancer Research. 2017 23(18):5573-5584. CBD 

42.	 Clarke GM, Rockett K, Kivinen K, Hubbart C, Jeffreys AE, Rowlands K, Jallow M, Conway DJ, Bojang KA, Pinder M, 
Usen S, Sisay-Joof F, Sirugo G, Toure O, Thera MA, Malaria GEN Consortium, includes Mueller I. Characterisation of 
the opposing effects of G6PD deficiency on cerebral malaria and severe malarial anaemia. eLife. 2017 6:e15085. PHI 

43.	 Cohen JD, Javed AA, Thoburn C, Wong F, Tie J, Gibbs P, Schmidt CM, Yip-Schneider MT, Allen PJ, Schattner M, 
Brand RE, Singhi AD, Petersen GM, Hong SM, Kim SC, Falconi M, Doglioni C, Weiss MJ, Ahuja N, He J, Makary MA, 
Maitra A, Hanash SM, Dal Molin M, Wang Y, Li L, Ptak J, Dobbyn L, Schaefer J, Silliman N, Popoli M, Goggins MG, 
Hruban RH, Wolfgang CL, Klein AP, Tomasetti C, Papadopoulos N, Kinzler KW, Vogelstein B, Lennon AM. Combined 
circulating tumor DNA and protein biomarker-based liquid biopsy for the earlier detection of pancreatic cancers. 
Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(38):10202-10207. SBPM 

44.	 Colborn KL, Mueller I, Speed TP. Joint modeling of mixed Plasmodium species infections using a bivariate Poisson 
lognormal model. American Journal of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. 2018 98(1):71-76. (epub Nov 27 2017) PHI BIO 

45.	 Collin R, St-Pierre C, Guilbault L, Mullins-Dansereau V, Policheni A, Guimont-Desrochers F, Pelletier AN, 
Gray DH, Drobetsky E, Perreault C, Hillhouse EE, Lesage S. An unbiased linkage approach reveals that the 
p53 pathway Is coupled to NK cell maturation. Journal of Immunology. 2017 199(4):1490-1504. MGC 

46.	 Conos SA, Chen KW, De Nardo D, Hara H, Whitehead L, Nunez G, Masters SL, Murphy JM, Schroder K, Vaux DL, Lawlor 
KE, Lindqvist LM, Vince JE. Active MLKL triggers the NLRP3 inflammasome in a cell-intrinsic manner. Proceedings 
of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(6):E961-E969. CSCD INFL SBPM 

47.	 Ev-Track Consortium, Van Deun J, Mestdagh P, Agostinis P, Akay O, Anand S, et al. EV-TRACK: transparent reporting 
and centralizing knowledge in extracellular vesicle research. Nature Methods. 2017 14(3):228-232. INFL PHI 

48.	 Conway AJ, Brown FC, Fullinfaw RO, Kile BT, Jane SM, Curtis DJ. A mouse model of hereditary coproporphyria 
identified in an ENU mutagenesis screen. Disease Models & Mechanisms. 2017 10(8):1005-1013. CBD 



Annual Report 2017   105

49.	 Cook L, Munier CM, Seddiki N, van Bockel D, Ontiveros N, Hardy MY, Gillies JK, Levings MK, Reid H, Peterson J, Rossjohn J, 
Anderson RP, Zaunders J, Tye-Din JA, Kelleher AD. Circulating gluten-specific FOXP3+CD39+ regulatory t cells have impaired 
suppressive function in Celiac Disease. Journal of Allergy and Clinical Immunology. 2017 140(6):1592-1603.e1598. IMM 

50.	 Cook Sangar ML, Genovesi LA, Nakamoto MW, Davis MJ, Knoblaugh SE, Ji P, Millar A, Wainwright B, 
Olson JM. Inhibition of CDK4/6 by palbociclib significantly extends survival in medulloblastoma patient-
derived xenograft mouse models. Clinical Cancer Research 2017 23(19):5802-5813. BIO 

51.	 Corbett MA, Turner SJ, Gardner A, Silver J, Stankovich J, Leventer RJ, Derry CP, Carroll R, Ha T, Scheffer IE, 
Bahlo M, Jackson GD, Mackey DA, Berkovic SF, Gecz J. Familial epilepsy with anterior polymicrogyria as a 
presentation of COL18A1 mutations. European Journal of Medical Genetics. 2017 60(8):437-443. PHI 

52.	 Coulson R, Liew SH, Connelly AA, Yee NS, Deb S, Kumar B, Vargas AC, O’Toole SA, Parslow AC, Poh A, 
Putoczki T, Morrow RJ, Alorro M, Lazarus KA, Yeap EFW, Walton KL, Harrison CA, Hannan NJ, George AJ, 
Clyne CD, Ernst M, Allen AM, Chand AL. The angiotensin receptor blocker, Losartan, inhibits mammary 
tumor development and progression to invasive carcinoma. Oncotarget. 2017 8(12):18640-18656. INFL 

53.	 D’Cruz AA, Kershaw NJ, Hayman TJ, Linossi EM, Chiang JJ, Wang MK, Dagley LF, Kolesnik TB, Zhang JG, Masters SL, 
Griffin MD, Gack MU, Murphy JM, Nicola NA, Babon JJ, Nicholson SE. Identification of a second binding site on the 
TRIM25 B30.2 domain. Biochemical  Journal. 2017 Dec 19. (epub ahead of print) SBD INFL SBPM CHD CSCD

54.	 Davids MS, Roberts AW, Seymour JF, Pagel JM, Kahl BS, Wierda WG, Puvvada S, Kipps TJ, Anderson MA, 
Salem AH, Dunbar M, Zhu M, Peale F, Ross JA, Gressick L, Desai M, Kim SY, Verdugo M, Humerickhouse 
RA, Gordon GB, Gerecitano JF. Phase I first-in-human study of venetoclax in patients with relapsed or 
refractory non-Hodgkin lymphoma. Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2017 35(8):826-833. CHD 

55.	 de Greef JC, Krom YD, den Hamer B, Snider L, Hiramuki Y, van den Akker RFP, Breslin K, Pakusch M, Salvatori DCF, 
Slutter B, Tawil R, Blewitt ME, Tapscott SJ, van der Maarel SM. Smchd1 haploinsufficiency exacerbates the phenotype 
of a transgenic FSHD1 mouse model. Human Molecular Genetics. 2017 Dec 21. (epub ahead of print) MMD

56.	 de Jong E, Hancock DG, Hibbert J, Wells C, Richmond P, Simmer K, Burgner D, Strunk T, Currie AJ. Identification 
of generic and pathogen-specific cord blood monocyte transcriptomes reveals a largely conserved response in 
preterm and term newborn infants. Journal of Molecular Medicine. 2017 Nov 3. (epub ahead of print) MMD

57.	 de Rie D, Abugessaisa I, Alam T, Arner E, Arner P, Ashoor H, Astrom G, Babina M, Bertin N, Burroughs AM, Carlisle AJ, 
Daub CO, Detmar M, Deviatiiarov R, Fort A, Gebhard C, Goldowitz D, Guhl S, Ha TJ, Harshbarger J, Hasegawa A, Hashimoto 
K, Herlyn M, Heutink P, Hitchens KJ, Hon CC, Huang E, Ishizu Y, Kai C, Kasukawa T, Klinken P, Lassmann T, Lecellier CH, 
Lee W, Lizio M, Makeev V, Mathelier A, Medvedeva YA, Mejhert N, Mungall CJ, Noma S, Ohshima M, Okada-Hatakeyama 
M, Persson H, Rizzu P, Roudnicky F, Saetrom P, Sato H, Severin J, Shin JW, Swoboda RK, Tarui H, Toyoda H, Vitting-Seerup 
K, Winteringham L, Yamaguchi Y, Yasuzawa K, Yoneda M, Yumoto N, Zabierowski S, Zhang PG, Wells CA, Summers KM, 
Kawaji H, Sandelin A, Rehli M, FANTOM Consortium, Hayashizaki Y, Carninci P, Forrest ARR, de Hoon MJL. An integrated 
expression atlas of miRNAs and their promoters in human and mouse. Nature Biotechnology. 2017 35(9):872-878. MMD 

58.	 Delbridge AR, Aubrey BJ, Hyland C, Bernardini JP, Di Rago L, Garnier JM, Lessene G, Strasser A, Alexander WS, 
Grabow S. The BH3-only proteins BIM and PUMA are not critical for the reticulocyte apoptosis caused by loss 
of the pro-survival protein BCL-XL. Cell Death & Disease. 2017 8(7):e2914. MGC CHD CSCD CBD 

59.	 Deswaerte V, Nguyen PM, West A, Browning AF, Yu L, Ruwanpura S, Balic J, Livis T, Girard C, Preaudet 
A, Oshima H, Fung KY, Tye H, Najdovska M, Ernst M, Oshima M, Gabay C, Putoczki TL, Jenkins BJ. 
Inflammasome adaptor ASC suppresses apoptosis of gastric cancer cells by an IL-18 mediated inflammation-
independent mechanism. Cancer Research. 2017 Dec 27. (epub ahead of print) INFL

60.	 Dias S, D’Amico A, Cretney E, Liao Y, Tellier J, Bruggeman C, Almeida FF, Leahy J, Belz GT, 
Smyth GK, Shi W, Nutt SL. Effector regulatory T cell differentiation and immune homeostasis 
depend on the transcription factor Myb. Immunity. 2017 46(1):78-91. MIMM BIO 

61.	 Ding XC, Ade MP, Baird JK, Cheng Q, Cunningham J, Dhorda M, Drakeley C, Felger I, Gamboa D, 
Harbers M, Herrera S, Lucchi N, Mayor A, Mueller I, Sattabongkot J, Ratsimbason A, Richards J, Tanner 
M, Gonzalez IJ. Defining the next generation of Plasmodium vivax diagnostic tests for control and 
elimination: Target product profiles. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(4):e0005516. PHI 

62.	 Doig KD, Ellul J, Fellowes A, Thompson ER, Ryland G, Blombery P, Papenfuss AT, Fox SB. Canary: 
an atomic pipeline for clinical amplicon assays. BMC Bioinformatics. 2017 18(1):555. BIO 

63.	 Doig KD, Fellowes A, Bell AH, Seleznev A, Ma D, Ellul J, Li J, Doyle MA, Thompson ER, Kumar A, Lara L, 
Vedururu R, Reid G, Conway T, Papenfuss AT, Fox SB. PathOS: a decision support system for reporting high 
throughput sequencing of cancers in clinical diagnostic laboratories. Genome Medicine. 2017 9(1):38. BIO 

64.	 Dolezal E, Infantino S, Drepper F, Borsig T, Singh A, Wossning T, Fiala GJ, Minguet S, Warscheid B, 
Tarlinton DM, Jumaa H, Medgyesi D, Reth M. The BTG2-PRMT1 module limits pre-B cell expansion 
by regulating the CDK4-Cyclin-D3 complex. Nature Immunology. 2017 18(8):911-920. IMM 

65.	 Dowling MR, Li S, Dey BR, McAfee SL, Hock HR, Spitzer TR, Chen YB, Ballen KK. Neurologic 
complications after allogeneic hematopoietic stem cell transplantation: risk factors and impact. 
Bone Marrow Transplantation. 2017 Nov 13. (epub ahead of print) IMM

2017 Publications



106   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

66.	 Duarte D, Hawkins ED, Akinduro O, Ang H, De Filippo K, Kong IY, Haltalli M, Ruivo N, Straszkowski L, 
Vervoort SJ, McLean C, Weber TS, Khorshed R, Pirillo C, Wei A, Ramasamy SK, Kusumbe AP, Duffy K, 
Adams RH, Purton LE, Carlin LM, Lo Celso C. Inhibition of endosteal vascular niche remodeling rescues 
hematopoietic stem cell loss in AML. Cell Stem Cell. 2018 22(1):64-77.e66. (epub 2017 Dec 21) IMM 

67.	 Duffy S, Sykes ML, Jones AJ, Shelper TB, Simpson M, Lang R, Poulsen SA, Sleebs BE, Avery VM. 
Screening the MMV Pathogen Box across multiple pathogens reclassifies starting points for open source 
drug discovery. Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy. 2017 61(9):e00379-00317. CBD 

68.	 Dwight T, Flynn A, Amarasinghe K, Benn DE, Lupat R, Li J, Cameron D, Hogg A, Balachander S, Candiloro IL, 
Wong S, Robinson BG, Papenfuss AT, Gill AJ, Dobrovic A, Hicks RJ, Clifton-Bligh R, Tothill RW. TERT structural 
rearrangements in metastatic pheochromocytomas. Endocrine-Related Cancer. 2018 25(1):1-9. (epub 2017 Oct 3) BIO 

69.	 Fernandez-Ruiz D, Lau LS, Ghazanfari N, Jones CM, Ng WY, Davey GM, Berthold D, Holz L, Kato Y, Enders MH, 
Bayarsaikhan G, Hendriks SH, Lansink LIM, Engel JA, Soon MSF, James KR, Cozijnsen A, Mollard V, Uboldi AD, Tonkin 
CJ, de Koning-Ward TF, Gilson PR, Kaisho T, Haque A, Crabb BS, Carbone FR, McFadden GI, Heath WR. Development 
of a novel CD4+ TCR transgenic line that reveals a dominant role for CD8+ dendritic cells and CD40 signaling in the 
generation of helper and CTL responses to blood-stage malaria. Journal of Immunology. 2017 199(12):4165-4179. INF 

70.	 Fitzsimmons L, Boyce AJ, Wei W, Chang C, Croom-Carter D, Tierney RJ, Herold MJ, Bell AI, Strasser A, Kelly GL, 
Rowe M. Coordinated repression of BIM and PUMA by Epstein-Barr virus latent genes maintains the survival 
of Burkitt lymphoma cells. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2018 25(2):241-254. (epub 2017 Sep 29) MGC 

71.	 Ferrara CT, Geyer SM, Evans-Molina C, Libman IM, Becker DJ, Wentworth JM, Moran A, Gitelman SE, Redondo 
MJ, Type 1 Diabetes TrialNet Study Group. The role of age and excess body mass index in progression to type 1 
diabetes in at-risk adults. Journal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism. 2017 102(12):4596-4603. PHI 

72.	 Fola AA, Abby Harrison GL, Hazairin MH, Barnadas C, Hetzel MW, Iga J, Siba PM, Mueller I, Barry AE. Higher complexity 
of infection and genetic diversity of Plasmodium vivax than Plasmodium falciparum across all malaria transmission 
zones of Papua New Guinea. American Journal of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. 2017 96(3):630-641. PHI 

73.	 Fola AA, Nate E, Abby Harrison GL, Barnadas C, Hetzel MW, Iga J, Siba P, Mueller I, Barry AE. Nationwide genetic 
surveillance of Plasmodium vivax in Papua New Guinea reveals heterogeneous transmission dynamics and 
routes of migration amongst subdivided populations. Infection Genetics and Evolution 2017 58:83-95. PHI 

74.	 Foroutan M, Cursons J, Hediyeh-Zadeh S, Thompson EW, Davis MJ. A transcriptional program for 
detecting TGFbeta-induced EMT in cancer. Molecular Cancer Research 2017 15(5):619-631. BIO 

75.	 Franca CT, Li Wai Suen CSN, Carmagnac A, Lin E, Kiniboro B, Siba P, Schofield L, Mueller I. IgG 
antibodies to synthetic GPI are biomarkers of immune-status to both Plasmodium falciparum and 
Plasmodium vivax malaria in young children. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):386. PHI INF 

76.	 Franca CT, White MT, He WQ, Hostetler JB, Brewster J, Frato G, Malhotra I, Gruszczyk J, Huon C, Lin E, 
Kiniboro B, Yadava A, Siba P, Galinski MR, Healer J, Chitnis C, Cowman AF, Takashima E, Tsuboi T, Tham 
WH, Fairhurst RM, Rayner JC, King CL, Mueller I. Identification of highly-protective combinations of 
Plasmodium vivax recombinant proteins for vaccine development. eLife. 2017 6:e28673. INF PHI 

77.	 Freytag S, Burgess R, Oliver KL, Bahlo M. brain-coX: investigating and visualising gene co-expression 
in seven human brain transcriptomic datasets. Genome Medicine. 2017 9(1):55. PHI 

78.	 Fu NY, Rios AC, Pal B, Law CW, Jamieson P, Liu R, Vaillant F, Jackling F, Liu KH, Smyth GK, Lindeman 
GJ, Ritchie ME, Visvader JE. Identification of quiescent and spatially restricted mammary stem cells 
that are hormone responsive. Nature Cell Biology. 2017 19(3):164-176. SCC MMD BIO 

79.	 Fung KY, Nguyen PM, Putoczki T. The expanding role of innate lymphoid cells and their T-cell counterparts 
in gastrointestinal cancers. Molecular Immunology. 2017 Nov 23. (epub ahead of print) INFL

80.	 Furtado MB, Wilmanns JC, Chandran A, Perera J, Hon O, Biben C, Willow TJ, Nim HT, Kaur G, Simonds S, 
Wu Q, Willians D, Salimova E, Plachta N, Denegre JM, Murray SA, Fatkin D, Cowley M, Pearson JT, Kaye D, 
Ramialison M, Harvey RP, Rosenthal NA, Costa MW. Point mutations in murine Nkx2-5 phenocopy human 
congenital heart disease and induce pathogenic Wnt signaling. JCI Insight. 2017 2(6):e88271. MMD 

81.	 Gamell C, Gulati T, Levav-Cohen Y, Young RJ, Do H, Pilling P, Takano E, Watkins N, Fox SB, Russell P, 
Ginsberg D, Monahan BJ, Wright G, Dobrovic A, Haupt S, Solomon B, Haupt Y. Reduced abundance 
of the E3 ubiquitin ligase E6AP contributes to decreased expression of the INK4/ARF locus in non-
small cell lung cancer. Science Signaling. 2017 10(461):doi: 10.1126/scisignal.aaf8223. SBPM 

82.	 Gao Y, Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F, Bald T, Ng SS, Young A, Ngiow SF, Rautela J, Straube J, Waddell N, Blake 
SJ, Yan J, Bartholin L, Lee JS, Vivier E, Takeda K, Messaoudene M, Zitvogel L, Teng MWL, Belz GT, Engwerda 
CR, Huntington ND, Nakamura K, Holzel M, Smyth MJ. Tumor immunoevasion by the conversion of effector 
NK cells into type 1 innate lymphoid cells. Nature Immunology. 2017 18(9):1004-1015. MIMM 

83.	 Gigante S. Picopore: A tool for reducing the storage size of Oxford Nanopore Technologies 
datasets without loss of functionality. F1000Research. 2017 6:227. BIO 

84.	 Gilson PR, Tan C, Jarman KE, Lowes KN, Curtis JM, Nguyen W, Di Rago AE, Bullen HE, Prinz B, Duffy 
S, Baell JB, Hutton CA, Jousset Subroux H, Crabb BS, Avery VM, Cowman AF, Sleebs BE. Optimization 
of 2-Anilino 4-amino substituted Quinazolines into potent antimalarial agents with oral in vivo 
activity. Journal of Medicinal Chemistry. 2017 60(3):1171-1188. SBD SBPM INF CBD 



Annual Report 2017   107

85.	 Glab JA, Doerflinger M, Nedeva C, Jose I, Mbogo GW, Paton JC, Paton AW, Kueh AJ, Herold MJ, Huang 
DC, Segal D, Brumatti G, Puthalakath H. DR5 and caspase-8 are dispensable in ER stress-induced 
apoptosis. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(5):944-950. INF MGC CHD CSCD 

86.	 Glidden MD, Aldabbagh K, Phillips NB, Carr K, Chen YS, Whittaker J, Phillips M, Wickramasinghe NP, 
Rege N, Swain M, Peng Y, Yang Y, Lawrence MC, Yee VC, Ismail-Beigi F, Weiss MA. An ultra-stable single-
chain insulin analog resists thermal inactivation and exhibits biological signaling duration equivalent to 
the native protein. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2018 293(1):47-68. (epub 2017 Nov 7) SBD 

87.	 Glidden MD, Yang Y, Smith NA, Phillips NB, Carr K, Wickramasinghe NP, Ismail-Beigi F, Lawrence MC, Smith BJ, 
Weiss MA. Solution structure of an ultra-stable single-chain insulin analog connects protein dynamics to a novel 
mechanism of receptor binding. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 Nov 07. (epub ahead of print) SBD

88.	 Godornes C, Giacani L, Barry AE, Mitja O, Lukehart SA. Development of a Multilocus Sequence 
Typing (MLST) scheme for Treponema pallidum subsp. pertenue: Application to yaws in Lihir Island, 
Papua New Guinea. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(12):e0006113. PHI 

89.	 Goel G, King T, Daveson AJ, Andrews JM, Krishnarajah J, Krause R, Brown GJE, Fogel R, Barish CF, Epstein 
R, Kinney TP, Miner PB, Jr., Tye-Din JA, Girardin A, Taavela J, Popp A, Sidney J, Maki M, Goldstein KE, 
Griffin PH, Wang S, Dzuris JL, Williams LJ, Sette A, Xavier RJ, Sollid LM, Jabri B, Anderson RP. Epitope-
specific immunotherapy targeting CD4-positive T cells in coeliac disease: two randomised, double-blind, 
placebo-controlled phase 1 studies. Lancet Gastroenterology & Hepatology. 2017 2(7):479-493. IMM 

90.	 Golassa L, White MT. Population-level estimates of the proportion of Plasmodium vivax blood-
stage infections attributable to relapses among febrile patients attending Adama Malaria Diagnostic 
Centre, East Shoa Zone, Oromia, Ethiopia. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):301. PHI 

91.	 Gordon CT, Xue S, Yigit G, Filali H, Chen K, Rosin N, Yoshiura KI, Oufadem M, Beck TJ, McGowan R, Magee AC, Altmuller J, 
Dion C, Thiele H, Gurzau AD, Nurnberg P, Meschede D, Muhlbauer W, Okamoto N, Varghese V, Irving R, Sigaudy S, Williams D, 
Ahmed SF, Bonnard C, Kong MK, Ratbi I, Fejjal N, Fikri M, Elalaoui SC, Reigstad H, Bole-Feysot C, Nitschke P, Ragge N, Levy N, 
Tuncbilek G, Teo AS, Cunningham ML, Sefiani A, Kayserili H, Murphy JM, Chatdokmaiprai C, Hillmer AM, Wattanasirichaigoon 
D, Lyonnet S, Magdinier F, Javed A, Blewitt ME, Amiel J, Wollnik B, Reversade B. De novo mutations in SMCHD1 cause Bosma 
arhinia microphthalmia syndrome and abrogate nasal development. Nature Genetics. 2017 49(2):249-255. MMD CSCD 

92.	 Grassmeyer J, Mukherjee M, deRiso J, Hettinger C, Bailey M, Sinha S, Visvader JE, Zhao H, Fogarty E, 
Surendran K. Elf5 is a principal cell lineage specific transcription factor in the kidney that contributes 
to Aqp2 and Avpr2 gene expression. Developmental Biology. 2017 424(1):77-89. SCC 

93.	 Gregory JL, Walter A, Alexandre YO, Hor JL, Liu R, Ma JZ, Devi S, Tokuda N, Owada Y, Mackay LK, Smyth 
GK, Heath WR, Mueller SN. Infection programs sustained lymphoid stromal cell responses and shapes 
lymph node remodeling upon secondary challenge. Cell Reports. 2017 18(2):406-418. BIO 

94.	 Halmos EP, Biesiekierski JR, Newnham ED, Burgell RE, Muir JG, Gibson PR. Inaccuracy of 
patient-reported descriptions of and satisfaction with bowel actions in irritable bowel syndrome. 
Neurogastroenterology and Motility 2018 30(2):e13187 (epub 2017 Aug 10) IMM 

95.	 Hamdan FF, Myers CT, Cossette P, Lemay P, Spiegelman D, Laporte AD, Nassif C, Diallo O, Monlong J, Cadieux-Dion M, 
Dobrzeniecka S, Meloche C, Retterer K, Cho MT, Rosenfeld JA, Bi W, Massicotte C, Miguet M, Brunga L, Regan BM, Mo K, 
Tam C, Schneider A, Hollingsworth G, Deciphering Developmental Disorders S, FitzPatrick DR, Donaldson A, Canham N, 
Blair E, Kerr B, Fry AE, Thomas RH, Shelagh J, Hurst JA, Brittain H, Blyth M, Lebel RR, Gerkes EH, Davis-Keppen L, Stein 
Q, Chung WK, Dorison SJ, Benke PJ, Fassi E, Corsten-Janssen N, Kamsteeg EJ, Mau-Them FT, Bruel AL, Verloes A, Õunap 
K, Wojcik MH, Albert DVF, Venkateswaran S, Ware T, Jones D, Liu YC, Mohammad SS, Bizargity P, Bacino CA, Leuzzi V, 
Martinelli S, Dallapiccola B, Tartaglia M, Blumkin L, Wierenga KJ, Purcarin G, O’Byrne JJ, Stockler S, Lehman A, Keren 
B, Nougues MC, Mignot C, Auvin S, Nava C, Hiatt SM, Bebin M, Shao Y, Scaglia F, Lalani SR, Frye RE, Jarjour IT, Jacques 
S, Boucher RM, Riou E, Srour M, Carmant L, Lortie A, Major P, Diadori P, Dubeau F, D’Anjou G, Bourque G, Berkovic 
SF, Sadleir LG, Campeau PM, Kibar Z, Lafrenière RG, Girard SL, Mercimek-Mahmutoglu S, Boelman C, Rouleau GA, 
Scheffer IE, Mefford HC, Andrade DM, Rossignol E, Minassian BA, Michaud JL. High rate of recurrent de novo mutations 
in developmental and epileptic encephalopathies. American Journal of Human Genetics. 2017 101(5):664-685. PHI 

96.	 Haneklaus M, O’Neil JD, Clark AR, Masters SL, O’Neill LA. The RNA-binding protein Tristetraprolin (TTP) is a critical 
negative regulator of the NLRP3 inflammasome. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 292(17):6869-6881. INFL 

97.	 Harding CM, Pulido MR, Di Venanzio G, Kinsella RL, Webb AI, Scott NE, Pachon J, Feldman MF. 
Pathogenic Acinetobacter species have a functional type I secretion system and contact-dependent 
inhibition systems. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 292(22):9075-9087. SBPM 

98.	 Healer J, Chiu CY, Hansen DS. Mechanisms of naturally acquired immunity to P. falciparum and approaches 
to identify merozoite antigen targets. Parasitology. 2017 Nov 16. (epub ahead of print) INF

99.	 Hetzel MW, Pulford J, Ura Y, Jamea-Maiasa S, Tandrapah A, Tarongka N, Lorry L, Robinson LJ, 
Lilley K, Makita L, Siba PM, Mueller I. Insecticide-treated nets and malaria prevalence, Papua New 
Guinea, 2008–2014. Bulletin of the World Health Organization. 2017 95(10):695-705. PHI 

100.	 Hirche C, Frenz T, Haas SF, Doring M, Borst K, Tegtmeyer PK, Brizic I, Jordan S, Keyser K, Chhatbar C, Pronk E, Lin S, 
Messerle M, Jonjic S, Falk CS, Trumpp A, Essers MAG, Kalinke U. Systemic virus infections differentially modulate cell 
cycle state and functionality of long-term hematopoietic stem cells in vivo. Cell Reports. 2017 19(11):2345-2356. MMD 

2017 Publications



108   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

101.	 Hofmann NE, Karl S, Wampfler R, Kiniboro B, Teliki A, Iga J, Waltmann A, Betuela I, Felger I, 
Robinson LJ, Mueller I. The complex relationship of exposure to new Plasmodium infections 
and incidence of clinical malaria in Papua New Guinea. eLife. 2017 6:e23708. PHI 

102.	 Hutton ML, D’Costa K, Rossiter AE, Wang L, Turner L, Steer DL, Masters SL, Croker BA, Kaparakis-Liaskos M, 
Ferrero RL. A Helicobacter pylori homolog of eukaryotic flotillin is involved in cholesterol accumulation, epithelial 
cell responses and host colonization. Frontiers in Cellular and Infection Microbiology. 2017 7:219. INFL 

103.	 Infantino S, Light A, O’Donnell K, Bryant V, Avery DT, Elliott M, Tangye SG, Belz G, Mackay 
F, Richard S, Tarlinton D. Arginine methylation catalyzed by PRMT1 is required for B cell 
activation and differentiation. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):891. IMM MIMM 

104.	 Item F, Wueest S, Lemos V, Stein S, Lucchini FC, Denzler R, Fisser MC, Challa TD, Pirinen E, Kim Y, Hemmi S, 
Gulbins E, Gross A, O’Reilly LA, Stoffel M, Auwerx J, Konrad D. Fas cell surface death receptor controls hepatic 
lipid metabolism by regulating mitochondrial function. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):480. MGC 

105.	 Jackson JT, Shields BJ, Shi W, Di Rago L, Metcalf D, Nicola NA, McCormack MP. Hhex regulates hematopoietic stem 
cell self-renewal and stress hematopoiesis via repression of Cdkn2a. Stem Cells. 2017 35(8):1948-1957. CHD BIO 

106.	 Jaco I, Annibaldi A, Lalaoui N, Wilson R, Tenev T, Laurien L, Kim C, Jamal K, Wicky John S, Liccardi 
G, Chau D, Murphy JM, Brumatti G, Feltham R, Pasparakis M, Silke J, Meier P. MK2 phosphorylates 
RIPK1 to prevent TNF-induced cell death. Molecular Cell. 2017 66(5):698-710. CSCD INFL 

107.	 Jain R, Sheridan JM, Policheni A, Heinlein M, Gandolfo LC, Dewson G, Smyth GK, Sansom SN, Fu NY, 
Visvader JE, Hollander GA, Strasser A, Gray DHD. A critical epithelial survival axis regulated by MCL-
1 maintains thymic function in mice. Blood. 2017 130(23):2504-2515. MGC BIO CSCD SCC 

108.	 Jiang FX, Harrison LC. Transient impairment of islet architectural development in pancreas-specific Bmpr1a-deleted 
prenatal mice involves reduced expression of E-cadherin. Stem Cells and Development. 2017 26(23):1706-1714. PHI 

109.	 Joeckel LT, Allison CC, Pellegrini M, Bird CH, Bird PI. Granzyme K-deficient mice show no evidence 
of impaired anti-viral immunity. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(8):675-683. INF 

110.	 Ju J, Chen A, Deng Y, Liu M, Wang Y, Wang Y, Nie M, Wang C, Ding H, Yao B, Gui T, Li X, Xu Z, Ma C, Song Y, Kvansakul M, Zen 
K, Zhang CY, Luo C, Fang M, Huang DCS, Allis CD, Tan R, Zeng CK, Wei J, Zhao Q. NatD promotes lung cancer progression 
by preventing histone H4 serine phosphorylation to activate Slug expression. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):928. CHD 

111.	 Kam J, Kam J, Mann GB, Phillips C, Wentworth JM, King J, Lindeman GJ. Solitary pituitary metastasis from 
HER2-positive breast cancer. Asia-Pacific Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2017 13(2):e181-e184. SCC PHI 

112.	 Kamal T, Green TN, Hearn JI, Josefsson EC, Morel-Kopp M-C, Ward CM, During MJ, Kalev-Zylinska ML. N-methyl-d-
aspartate receptor mediated calcium influx supports in vitro differentiation of normal mouse megakaryocytes but proliferation 
of leukemic cell lines. Research and Practice in Thrombosis and Haemostasis. 2018 2(1):125-138. (epub 2016 Dec 14) CHD 

113.	 Kanoi BN, Takashima E, Morita M, White MT, Palacpac NM, Ntege EH, Balikagala B, Yeka A, Egwang TG, Horii 
T, Tsuboi T. Antibody profiles to wheat germ cell-free system synthesized Plasmodium falciparum proteins 
correlate with protection from symptomatic malaria in Uganda. Vaccine. 2017 35(6):873-881. PHI 

114.	 Karahalios A, Somarajah G, Hamblin PS, Karunajeewa H, Janus ED. Quantifying the hidden healthcare 
cost of diabetes mellitus in Australian hospital patients. Internal Medicine Journal. 2017 PHI 

115.	 Kearney CJ, Lalaoui N, Freeman AJ, Ramsbottom KM, Silke J, Oliaro J. PD-L1 and IAPs co-operate to protect tumors 
from cytotoxic lymphocyte-derived TNF. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(10):1705-1716. CSCD 

116.	 Kedzierski L, Tate MD, Hsu AC, Kolesnik TB, Linossi EM, Dagley L, Dong Z, Freeman S, Infusini G, 
Starkey MR, Bird NL, Chatfield SM, Babon JJ, Huntington N, Belz G, Webb A, Wark PA, Nicola NA, Xu J, 
Kedzierska K, Hansbro PM, Nicholson SE. Suppressor of Cytokine Signaling (SOCS)5 ameliorates influenza 
infection via inhibition of EGFR signaling. eLife. 2017 6:e20444. INFL SBPM SBD MIMM CHD 

117.	 Keightley MC, Carradice DP, Layton JE, Pase L, Bertrand JY, Wittig JG, Dakic A, Badrock AP, Cole NJ, Traver D, Nutt 
SL, McCoey J, Buckle AM, Heath JK, Lieschke GJ. The Pu.1 target gene Zbtb11 regulates neutrophil development 
through its integrase-like HHCC zinc finger. Nature Communications. 2017 8:14911. MIMM DCD 

118.	 Kennedy AT, Wijeyewickrema LC, Huglo A, Lin C, Pike R, Cowman AF, Tham WH. Recruitment 
of human C1 esterase inhibitor controls complement activation on blood stage Plasmodium 
falciparum merozoites. Journal of Immunology. 2017 198(12):4728-4737. INF 

119.	 Kentwell M, Dow E, Antill Y, Wrede CD, McNally O, Higgs E, Hamilton A, Ananda S, Lindeman 
GJ, Scott CL. Mainstreaming cancer genetics: A model integrating germline BRCA testing into 
routine ovarian cancer clinics. Gynecologic Oncology. 2017 145(1):130-136. SCC 

120.	 Kerr MC, Gomez GA, Ferguson C, Tanzer MC, Murphy JM, Yap AS, Parton RG, Huston WM, Teasdale RD. Laser-mediated 
rupture of chlamydial inclusions triggers pathogen egress and host cell necrosis. Nature Communications. 2017 8:14729. CSCD 

121.	 Khatibi S, Babon J, Wagner J, Manton JH, Tan CW, Zhu HJ, Wormald S, Burgess AW. TGF-beta and IL-6 
family signalling crosstalk: an integrated model. Growth Factors. 2017 35(2-3):100-124. SBD SBPM 

122.	 Khatibi S, Zhu HJ, Wagner J, Tan CW, Manton JH, Burgess AW. Mathematical model of TGF-betasignalling: 
feedback coupling is consistent with signal switching. BMC Systems Biology. 2017 11(1):48. SBD 



Annual Report 2017   109

123.	 Khaw SL, Suryani S, Evans K, Richmond J, Robbins A, Kurmasheva RT, Billups CA, Erickson SW, Guo Y, 
Houghton PJ, Smith MA, Carol H, Roberts AW, Huang DC, Lock RB. Venetoclax responses of pediatric ALL 
xenografts reveal sensitivity of MLL-rearranged leukemia. Blood. 2016 128(10):1382-1395. CHD 

124.	 King A, Li L, Wong DM, Liu R, Bamford R, Strasser A, Tarlinton DM, Heierhorst J. Dynein light chain regulates adaptive 
and innate B cell development by distinctive genetic mechanisms. PLoS Genetics. 2017 13(9):e1007010. MGC 

125.	 Kittichai V, Koepfli C, Nguitragool W, Sattabongkot J, Cui L. Substantial population structure of Plasmodium vivax in Thailand 
facilitates identification of the sources of residual transmission. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(10):e0005930. PHI 

126.	 Kivity S, Oliver KL, Afawi Z, Damiano JA, Arsov T, Bahlo M, Berkovic SF. SCN1A clinical spectrum 
includes the self-limited focal epilepsies of childhood. Epilepsy Research. 2017 131:9-14. PHI 

127.	 Koepfli C, Ome-Kaius M, Jally S, Malau E, Maripal S, Ginny J, Timinao L, Kattenberg JH, Obadia T, White M, Rarau P, Senn 
N, Barry AE, Kazura JW, Mueller I, Robinson LJ. Sustained malaria control over an eight-year period in Papua New Guinea: 
the challenge of low-density asymptomatic infections. Journal of Infectious Diseases. 2017 216(11):1434-1443. PHI 

128.	 Koimbu G, Czeher C, Katusele M, Sakur M, Kilepak L, Tandrapah A, Hetzel MW, Pulford J, Robinson L, Karl S. 
Status of insecticide resistance in Papua New Guinea: An update from nation-wide monitoring of anopheles 
mosquitoes. American Journal of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. 2017 Nov 06. (epub ahead of print) PHI

129.	 Kondrashova O, Nguyen M, Shield-Artin K, Tinker AV, Teng NNH, Harrell MI, Kuiper MJ, Ho GY, Barker H, 
Jasin M, Prakash R, Kass EM, Sullivan MR, Brunette GJ, Bernstein KA, Coleman RL, Floquet A, Friedlander M, 
Kichenadasse G, O’Malley DM, Oza AM, Sun JX, Robillard L, Maloney L, Bowtell DDL, Giordano H, Wakefield 
MJ, Kaufmann SH, Simmons AD, Harding TC, Raponi M, McNeish IA, Swisher EM, Lin K, Scott CL, AOCS Study 
Group. Secondary somatic mutations restoring RAD51C and RAD51D associated with acquired resistance to the 
PARP inhibitor rucaparib in high-grade ovarian carcinoma. Cancer Discovery. 2017 7(9):984-998. SCC BIO

130.	 Laffont S, Blanquart E, Savignac M, Cenac C, Laverny G, Metzger D, Girard JP, Belz GT, Pelletier L, Seillet C, Guery JC. Androgen 
signaling negatively controls group 2 innate lymphoid cells. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(6):1581-1592. MIMM 

131.	 Lamb RA, Aberle NS, Lucas NT, Lessene G, Hawkins BC. Total synthesis of (-)-Spiroleucettadine. 
Angewandte Chemie - International Edition. 2017 56(46):14663-14666. CBD 

132.	 Lau J, Goh CC, Devi S, Keeble J, See P, Ginhoux F, Ng LG. Intravital multiphoton imaging 
of mouse tibialis anterior muscle. Intravital. 2016 5(2):e1156272. INFL 

133.	 Lawlor KE, Feltham R, Yabal M, Conos SA, Chen KW, Ziehe S, Grass C, Zhan Y, Nguyen TA, Hall C, Vince 
AJ, Chatfield SM, D’Silva DB, Pang KC, Schroder K, Silke J, Vaux DL, Jost PJ, Vince JE. XIAP loss triggers 
RIPK3- and caspase-8-driven IL-1beta activation and cell death as a consequence of TLR-MyD88-
induced cIAP1-TRAF2 degradation. Cell Reports. 2017 20(3):668-682. INFL IMM CSCD 

134.	 Lee OL, Horvath N, Lee C, Joshua D, Ho J, Szer J, Quach H, Spencer A, Harrison S, Mollee P, Roberts AW, Talaulikar D, Brown 
R, Augustson B, Ling S, Jaksic W, Gibson J, Kalff A, Johnston A, Kalro A, Ward C, Prince HM, Zannettino A. Bisphosphonate 
guidelines for treatment and prevention of myeloma bone disease. Internal Medicine Journal. 2017 47(8):938-951. CHD 

135.	 Lefebure M, Tothill RW, Kruse E, Hawkins ED, Shortt J, Matthews GM, Gregory GP, Martin BP, Kelly MJ, Todorovski I, 
Doyle MA, Lupat R, Li J, Schroeder J, Wall M, Craig S, Poortinga G, Cameron D, Bywater M, Kats L, Gearhart MD, Bardwell 
VJ, Dickins RA, Hannan RD, Papenfuss AT, Johnstone RW. Genomic characterisation of Emu-Myc mouse lymphomas 
identifies Bcor as a Myc co-operative tumour-suppressor gene. Nature Communications. 2017 8:14581. IMM BIO 

136.	 Lemieux S, Sargeant T, Laperriere D, Ismail H, Boucher G, Rozendaal M, Lavallee VP, Ashton-Beaucage D, 
Wilhelm B, Hebert J, Hilton DJ, Mader S, Sauvageau G. MiSTIC, an integrated platform for the analysis of 
heterogeneity in large tumour transcriptome datasets. Nucleic Acids Research. 2017 45(13):e122. MMD 

137.	 Lenain C, de Graaf CA, Pagie L, Visser NL, de Haas M, de Vries SS, Peric-Hupkes D, van Steensel B, Peeper DS. Massive reshaping 
of genome-nuclear lamina interactions during oncogene-induced senescence. Genome Research. 2017 27(10):1634-1644. MMD 

138.	 Leong TL, Christie M, Kranz S, Pham K, Hsu A, Irving LB, Asselin-Labat ML, Steinfort DP. Evaluating the 
genomic yield of a single endobronchial ultrasound-guided transbronchial needle aspiration in lung cancer: 
meeting the challenge of doing more with less. Clinical Lung Cancer. 2017 18(6):e467-e472. SCC 

139.	 Lerch A, Koepfli C, Hofmann NE, Messerli C, Wilcox S, Kattenberg JH, Betuela I, O’Connor L, 
Mueller I, Felger I. Development of amplicon deep sequencing markers and data analysis pipeline for 
genotyping multi-clonal malaria infections. BMC Genomics. 2017 18(1):864. PHI SBPM 

140.	 Leung EWW, Mulcair MD, Yap BK, Nicholson SE, Scanlon MJ, Norton RS. Molecular insights into the 
interaction between the SPRY domain-containing SOCS box protein SPSB2 and peptides based on 
the binding motif from iNOS. Australian Journal of Chemistry. 2017 70(2):191-200. INFL 

141.	 Lheureux S, Lai Z, Dougherty BA, Runswick S, Hodgson D, Timms KM, Lanchbury JS, Kaye SB, Gourley C, Bowtell 
DD, Kohn EC, Scott CL, Matulonis UA, Panzarella T, Karakasis K, Burnier JV, Gilks B, O’Connor MJ, Robertson JD, 
Ledermann J, Barrett JC, Ho TW, Oza AM. Long-term responders on olaparib maintenance in high-grade serous 
ovarian cancer: Clinical and molecular characterization. Clinical Cancer Research 2017 23(15):4086-4094. SCC 

142.	 Li MX, Tan IKL, Ma SB, Hockings C, Kratina T, Dengler MA, Alsop AE, Kluck RM, Dewson G. BAK alpha6 permits 
activation by BH3-only proteins and homooligomerization via the canonical hydrophobic groove. Proceedings of the 
National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(29):7629-7634. CSCD MIMM MGC 

2017 Publications



110   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

143.	 Liede A, Mansfield CA, Metcalfe KA, Price MA, Kathleen Cuningham Foundation Consortium for 
Research into Familial Breast C, Snyder C, Lynch HT, Friedman S, Amelio J, Posner J, Narod SA, Lindeman 
GJ, Evans DG. Preferences for breast cancer risk reduction among BRCA1/BRCA2 mutation carriers: a 
discrete-choice experiment. Breast Cancer Research and Treatment. 2017 165(2):433-444. SCC 

144.	 Liew SH, Nguyen QN, Strasser A, Findlay JK, Hutt KJ. The ovarian reserve is depleted during puberty in a hormonally 
driven process dependent on the pro-apoptotic protein BMF. Cell Death & Disease. 2017 8(8):e2971. MGC 

145.	 Lindqvist LM, Frank D, McArthur K, Dite TA, Lazarou M, Oakhill JS, Kile BT, Vaux DL. Autophagy 
induced during apoptosis degrades mitochondria and inhibits type I interferon secretion. 
Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 Dec 11. (epub ahead of print) CSCD CBD 

146.	 Liu R, King A, Hoch NC, Chang C, Kelly GL, Deans AJ, Heierhorst J. ASCIZ/ATMIN is dispensable 
for ATM signaling in response to replication stress. DNA Repair. 2017 57:29-34. MGC 

147.	 Liu X, Nefzger CM, Rossello FJ, Chen J, Knaupp AS, Firas J, Ford E, Pflueger J, Paynter JM, Chy HS, O’Brien 
CM, Huang C, Mishra K, Hodgson-Garms M, Jansz N, Williams SM, Blewitt ME, Nilsson SK, Schittenhelm 
RB, Laslett AL, Lister R, Polo JM. Comprehensive characterization of distinct states of human naive 
pluripotency generated by reprogramming. Nature Methods. 2017 14(11):1055-1062. MMD 

148.	 Lombardo P, Vaucher P, Rarau P, Mueller I, Favrat B, Senn N. Hemoglobin levels and the risk of malaria in Papua New 
Guinean infants: a nested cohort study. American Journal of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. 2017 97(6):1770-1776. PHI 

149.	 Longley RJ, Franca CT, White MT, Kumpitak C, Sa-Angchai P, Gruszczyk J, Hostetler JB, Yadava A, King CL, Fairhurst RM, Rayner 
JC, Tham WH, Nguitragool W, Sattabongkot J, Mueller I. Asymptomatic Plasmodium vivax infections induce robust IgG responses 
to multiple blood-stage proteins in a low-transmission region of western Thailand. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):178. PHI INF 

150.	 Longley RJ, White MT, Takashima E, Morita M, Kanoi BN, Li Wai Suen CSN, Betuela I, Kuehn A, Sripoorote P, Franca CT, 
Siba P, Robinson LJ, Lacerda M, Sattabongkot J, Tsuboi T, Mueller I. Naturally acquired antibody responses to more than 
300 Plasmodium vivax proteins in three geographic regions. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(9):e0005888. PHI 

151.	 Lonnstedt IM, Nelander S. FC1000: normalized gene expression changes of systematically perturbed 
human cells. Statistical Applications in Genetics and Molecular Biology. 2017 16(4):217-242. BIO 

152.	 Lopaticki S, Yang ASP, John A, Scott NE, Lingford JP, O’Neill MT, Erickson SM, McKenzie NC, Jennison C, Whitehead 
LW, Douglas DN, Kneteman NM, Goddard-Borger ED, Boddey JA. Protein O-fucosylation in Plasmodium falciparum 
ensures efficient infection of mosquito and vertebrate hosts. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):561. INF CBD SBPM 

153.	 Lufele E, Umbers A, Ordi J, Ome-Kaius M, Wangnapi R, Unger H, Tarongka N, Siba P, Mueller I, 
Robinson L, Rogerson S. Risk factors and pregnancy outcomes associated with placental malaria in a 
prospective cohort of Papua New Guinean women. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):427. PHI 

154.	 Lun ATL, Smyth GK. No counts, no variance: allowing for loss of degrees of freedom when assessing biological 
variability from RNA-seq data. Statistical Applications in Genetics and Molecular Biology. 2017 16(2):83-93. BIO 

155.	 Lunke S, Lee B, Kranz S, Gibbs P, Waring P, Christie M. Intratumorous heterogeneity for RAS mutations 
in a treatment-naive colorectal tumour. Journal of Clinical Pathology. 2017 79(8):720-723. SBPM 

156.	 Mamrot J, Legaie R, Ellery SJ, Wilson T, Seemann T, Powell DR, Gardner DK, Walker DW, Temple-Smith P, Papenfuss AT, 
Dickinson H. De novo transcriptome assembly for the spiny mouse (Acomys cahirinus). Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):8996. BIO 

157.	 Man K, Gabriel SS, Liao Y, Gloury R, Preston S, Henstridge DC, Pellegrini M, Zehn D, Berberich-Siebelt F, Febbraio 
MA, Shi W, Kallies A. Transcription factor IRF4 promotes CD8(+) T cell exhaustion and limits the development 
of memory-like T cells during chronic infection. Immunity. 2017 47(6):1129-1141 e1125. MIMM BIO INF 

158.	 Marino E, Richards JL, McLeod KH, Stanley D, Yap YA, Knight J, McKenzie C, Kranich J, Oliveira AC, Rossello 
FJ, Krishnamurthy B, Nefzger CM, Macia L, Thorburn A, Baxter AG, Morahan G, Wong LH, Polo JM, Moore RJ, 
Lockett TJ, Clarke JM, Topping DL, Harrison LC, Mackay CR. Gut microbial metabolites limit the frequency of 
autoimmune T cells and protect against type 1 diabetes. Nature Immunology. 2017 18(5):552-562. PHI 

159.	 Marsh AP, Heron D, Edwards TJ, Quartier A, Galea C, Nava C, Rastetter A, Moutard ML, Anderson V, Bitoun P, Bunt J, Faudet A, 
Garel C, Gillies G, Gobius I, Guegan J, Heide S, Keren B, Lesne F, Lukic V, Mandelstam SA, McGillivray G, McIlroy A, Meneret 
A, Mignot C, Morcom LR, Odent S, Paolino A, Pope K, Riant F, Robinson GA, Spencer-Smith M, Srour M, Stephenson SE, 
Tankard R, Trouillard O, Welniarz Q, Wood A, Brice A, Rouleau G, Attie-Bitach T, Delatycki MB, Mandel JL, Amor DJ, Roze 
E, Piton A, Bahlo M, Billette de Villemeur T, Sherr EH, Leventer RJ, Richards LJ, Lockhart PJ, Depienne C. Mutations in DCC 
cause isolated agenesis of the corpus callosum with incomplete penetrance. Nature Genetics. 2017 49(4):511-514. PHI 

160.	 Marshall NB, Vong AM, Devarajan P, Brauner MD, Kuang Y, Nayar R, Schutten EA, Castonguay 
CH, Berg LJ, Nutt SL, Swain SL. NKG2C/E marks the unique cytotoxic CD4 T cell subset, ThCTL, 
generated by influenza infection. Journal of Immunology. 2017 198(3):1142-1155. MIMM 

161.	 McArthur K, D’Cruz AA, Segal D, Lackovic K, Wilks AF, O’Donnell JA, Nowell CJ, Gerlic M, Huang 
DCS, Burns CJ, Croker BA. Defining a therapeutic window for kinase inhibitors in leukemia 
to avoid neutropenia. Oncotarget. 2017 8(35):57948-57963. SBPM CBD CHD 

162.	 McCoy JM, Stewart RJ, Uboldi AD, Li D, Schroder J, Scott NE, Papenfuss AT, Lehane AM, Foster LJ, Tonkin 
CJ. A forward-genetic screen identifies a negative regulator of rapid Ca2+-dependent cell egress (MS1)in the 
intracellular parasite Toxoplasma gondii. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 292(18):7662-7674. INF BIO 



Annual Report 2017   111

163.	 McKenzie DR, Kara EE, Bastow CR, Tyllis TS, Fenix KA, Gregor CE, Wilson JJ, Babb R, Paton JC, Kallies A, 
Nutt SL, Brustle A, Mack M, Comerford I, McColl SR. IL-17-producing gammadelta T cells switch migratory 
patterns between resting and activated states. Nature Communications. 2017 8:15632. MIMM 

164.	 McLean ARD, Stanisic D, McGready R, Chotivanich K, Clapham C, Baiwog F, Pimanpanarak M, Siba P, Mueller 
I, King CL, Nosten F, Beeson JG, Rogerson S, Simpson JA, Fowkes FJI. P. falciparum infection and maternofetal 
antibody transfer in malaria-endemic settings of varying transmission. PLoS One. 2017 12(10):e0186577. PHI 

165.	 McNeil JJ, Woods RL, Nelson MR, Murray AM, Reid CM, Kirpach B, Storey E, Shah RC, Wolfe RS, Tonkin AM, 
Newman AB, Williamson JD, Lockery JE, Margolis KL, Ernst ME, Abhayaratna WP, Stocks N, Fitzgerald SM, 
Trevaks RE, Orchard SG, Beilin LJ, Donnan GA, Gibbs P, Johnston CI, Grimm RH, Aspree Investigator Group. 
Baseline characteristics of participants in the ASPREE (ASPirin in Reducing Events in the Elderly) study. 
Journals of Gerontology. Series A, Biological Sciences and Medical Sciences. 2017 72(11):1586-1593. SBPM 

166.	 Merino D, Whittle JR, Vaillant F, Serrano A, Gong JN, Giner G, Maragno AL, Chanrion M, Schneider E, Pal B, Li X, Dewson 
G, Grasel J, Liu K, Lalaoui N, Segal D, Herold MJ, Huang DCS, Smyth GK, Geneste O, Lessene G, Visvader JE, Lindeman 
GJ. Synergistic action of the MCL-1 inhibitor S63845 with current therapies in preclinical models of triple-negative and 
HER2-amplified breast cancer. Science Translational Medicine. 2017 9(401):eaam7049. SCC CHD CSCD MGC BIO CBD 

167.	 Meyerovich K, Violato NM, Fukaya M, Dirix V, Pachera N, Marselli L, Marchetti P, Strasser A, Eizirik DL, Cardozo AK. 
MCL-1 is a key anti-apoptotic protein in human and rodent pancreatic beta-cells. Diabetes. 2017 66(9):2446-2458. MGC 

168.	 Miles LB, Darido C, Kaslin J, Heath JK, Jane SM, Dworkin S. Mis-expression of grainyhead-
like transcription factors in zebrafish leads to defects in enveloping layer (EVL) integrity, cellular 
morphogenesis and axial extension. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):17607. DCD 

169.	 Milicic A, C SR, Tang CK, Longley R, Hill AVS, Reyes-Sandoval A. Adjuvanting a viral vectored 
vaccine against pre-erythrocytic malaria. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):7284. PHI 

170.	 Minoda Y, Virshup I, Rojas IL, Haigh O, Wong Y, Miles JJ, Wells CA, Radford KJ. Human CD141+ 
dendritic cell and CD1c+ dendritic cell undergo concordant early genetic programming after 
activation in humanized mice in vivo. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:e1419. MMD 

171.	 Miranda PJ, Buckley D, Raghu D, Pang JB, Takano EA, Vijayakumaran R, Teunisse AF, Posner A, Procter 
T, Herold MJ, Gamell C, Marine JC, Fox SB, Jochemsen A, Haupt S, Haupt Y. MDM4 is a rational target 
for treating breast cancers with mutant p53. Journal of Pathology. 2017 241(5):661-670. MGC 

172.	 Mitchell ML, Hamilton BR, Madio B, Morales RAV, Tonkin-Hill GQ, Papenfuss AT, Purcell AW, King GF, 
Undheim EAB, Norton RS. The use of imaging mass spectrometry to study peptide toxin distribution 
in Australian sea anemones. Australian Journal of Chemistry. 2017 70(11):1235-1237. BIO 

173.	 Mittal D, Vijayan D, Putz EM, Aguilera AR, Markey KA, Straube J, Kazakoff S, Nutt SL, Takeda K, Hill GR, 
Waddell N, Smyth MJ. Interleukin-12 from CD103+ Batf3-dependent dendritic cells required for NK-
cell suppression of metastasis. Cancer Immunology Research. 2017 5(12):1098-1108. MIMM 

174.	 Moghaddas F, Llamas R, De Nardo D, Martinez-Banaclocha H, Martinez-Garcia JJ, Mesa-Del-Castillo P, Baker 
PJ, Gargallo V, Mensa-Vilaro A, Canna S, Wicks IP, Pelegrin P, Arostegui JI, Masters SL. A novel Pyrin-Associated 
Autoinflammation with Neutrophilic Dermatosis mutation further defines 14-3-3 binding of pyrin and distinction 
to Familial Mediterranean Fever. Annals of the Rheumatic Diseases. 2017 76(12):2085-2094. INFL 

175.	 Moore BR, Davis WA, Clarke PM, Robinson LJ, Laman M, Davis TME. Cost-effectiveness of 
artemisinin-naphthoquine versus artemether-lumefantrine for the treatment of uncomplicated 
malaria in Papua New Guinean children. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):438. PHI 

176.	 Moraleda C, Aguilar R, Quinto L, Nhampossa T, Renom M, Nhabomba A, Acacio S, Aponte JJ, Nhalungo D, Achtman 
AH, Schofield L, Martins H, Macete E, Alonso PL, Menendez C. Anaemia in hospitalised preschool children from a 
rural area in Mozambique: a case control study in search for aetiological agents. BMC Pediatrics. 2017 17(1):63. PHI 

177.	 Moreau P, Chanan-Khan A, Roberts AW, Agarwal AB, Facon T, Kumar S, Touzeau C, Punnoose EA, 
Cordero J, Munasinghe W, Jia J, Salem AH, Freise KJ, Leverson JD, Enschede SH, Ross JA, Maciag PC, 
Verdugo M, Harrison SJ. Promising efficacy and acceptable safety of venetoclax plus bortezomib 
and dexamethasone in relapsed/ refractory MM. Blood. 2017 130(22):2392-2400. CHD 

178.	 Mridha AR, Wree A, Robertson AA, Yeh MM, Johnson CD, Van Rooyen DM, Haczeyni F, Teoh NC, Savard C, Ioannou 
GN, Masters SL, Schroder K, Cooper MA, Feldstein AE, Farrell GC. NLRP3 inflammasome blockade reduces liver 
inflammation and fibrosis in experimental NASH in mice. Journal of Hepatology. 2017 66(5):1037-1046. INFL 

179.	 Muller T, Dewitz C, Schmitz J, Schroder AS, Brasen JH, Stockwell BR, Murphy JM, Kunzendorf U, 
Krautwald S. Necroptosis and ferroptosis are alternative cell death pathways that operate in acute 
kidney failure. Cellular and Molecular Life Sciences 2017 74(19):3631-3645. CSCD 

180.	 Myers CT, Stong N, Mountier EI, Helbig KL, Freytag S, Sullivan JE, Ben Zeev B, Nissenkorn A, Tzadok M, Heimer G, Shinde 
DN, Rezazadeh A, Regan BM, Oliver KL, Ernst ME, Lippa NC, Mulhern MS, Ren Z, Poduri A, Andrade DM, Bird LM, Bahlo M, 
Berkovic SF, Lowenstein DH, Scheffer IE, Sadleir LG, Goldstein DB, Mefford HC, Heinzen EL. De novo mutations in PPP3CA 
cause severe neurodevelopmental disease with seizures. American Journal of Human Genetics. 2017 101(4):516-524. PHI 

181.	 Myers KA, Bennett MF, Chow CW, Carden SM, Mandelstam SA, Bahlo M, Scheffer IE. Mosaic 
uniparental disomy results in GM1 gangliosidosis with normal enzyme assay. American Journal 
of Medical Genetics. Part A. 2018 176(1):230-234. (epub  2017 Nov 21) PHI 

2017 Publications



112   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

182.	 Nathan BM, Boulware D, Geyer S, Atkinson MA, Colman P, Goland R, Russell W, Wentworth JM, Wilson DM, Evans-Molina 
C, Wherrett D, Skyler JS, Moran A, Sosenko JM, Type 1 Diabetes T, Diabetes Prevention Trial-Type 1 Study G. Dysglycemia 
and Index60 as prediagnostic end points for type 1 diabetes prevention trials. Diabetes Care. 2017 40(11):1494-1499. PHI 

183.	 Neudecker V, Haneklaus M, Jensen O, Khailova L, Masterson JC, Tye H, Biette K, Jedlicka P, Brodsky KS, 
Gerich ME, Mack M, Robertson AAB, Cooper MA, Furuta GT, Dinarello CA, O’Neill LA, Eltzschig HK, 
Masters SL, McNamee EN. Myeloid-derived miR-223 regulates intestinal inflammation via repression of 
the NLRP3 inflammasome. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(6):1737-1752. INFL 

184.	 Nguitragool W, Mueller I, Kumpitak C, Saeseu T, Bantuchai S, Yorsaeng R, Yimsamran S, Maneeboonyang 
W, Sa-Angchai P, Chaimungkun W, Rukmanee P, Puangsa-Art S, Thanyavanich N, Koepfli C, Felger I, 
Sattabongkot J, Singhasivanon P. Very high carriage of gametocytes in asymptomatic low-density Plasmodium 
falciparum and P. vivax infections in western Thailand. Parasites & Vectors. 2017 10(1):512. PHI 

185.	 Nguyen TA, Smith BRC, Tate MD, Belz GT, Barrios MH, Elgass KD, Weisman AS, Baker PJ, Preston SP, Whitehead L, Garnham 
A, Lundie RJ, Smyth GK, Pellegrini M, O’Keeffe M, Wicks IP, Masters SL, Hunter CP, Pang KC. SIDT2 transports extracellular 
dsRNA into the cytoplasm for innate immune recognition. Immunity. 2017 47(3):498-509.e496. INFL MIMM SBPM BIO INF 

186.	 Nolan E, Savas P, Policheni AN, Darcy PK, Vaillant F, Mintoff CP, Dushyanthen S, Mansour M, Pang JB, Fox SB, 
Kathleen Cuningham Foundation Consortium for Research into Familial Breast Cancer, Perou CM, Visvader 
JE, Gray DHD, Loi S, Lindeman GJ. Combined immune checkpoint blockade as a therapeutic strategy for 
BRCA1-mutated breast cancer. Science Translational Medicine. 2017 9(393): eaal4922. SCC MGC 

187.	 Nottle MB, Salvaris EJ, Fisicaro N, McIlfatrick S, Vassiliev I, Hawthorne WJ, O’Connell PJ, Brady 
JL, Lew AM, Cowan PJ. Targeted insertion of an anti-CD2 monoclonal antibody transgene into 
the GGTA1 locus in pigs using FokI-dCas9. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):8383. IMM 

188.	 Ome-Kaius M, Karl S, Wangnapi RA, Bolnga JW, Mola G, Walker J, Mueller I, Unger HW, Rogerson SJ. Effects 
of Plasmodium falciparum infection on umbilical artery resistance and intrafetal blood flow distribution: 
a Doppler ultrasound study from Papua New Guinea. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):35. PHI 

189.	 Ong LT, Nachbur U, Rowczenio D, Ziegler JB, Fischer E, Lin MW. A novel nucleotide oligomerisation domain 2 
mutation in a family with Blau syndrome: Phenotype and function. Innate immunity. 2017 23(7):578-583. CSCD 

190.	 Ooi GJ, Burton PR, Doyle L, Wentworth JM, Bhathal PS, Sikaris K, Cowley MA, Roberts SK, Kemp 
W, Earnest A, O’Brien PE, Brown WA. Effects of bariatric surgery on liver function tests in patients 
with nonalcoholic fatty liver disease. Obesity Surgery. 2017 27(6):1533-1542. PHI 

191.	 Ooi GJ, Doyle L, Tie T, Wentworth JM, Laurie C, Earnest A, Cowley MA, Sikaris K, le Roux CW, Burton 
PR, O’Brien PE, Brown WA. Weight loss after laparoscopic adjustable gastric band and resolution of the 
metabolic syndrome and its components. International Journal of Obesity. 2017 41(6):902-908. PHI 

192.	 Ooi GJ, Earnest A, Doyle L, Laurie C, Wentworth JM, Sikaris K, le Roux CW, Burton PR, O’Brien PE, 
Brown WA. Detailed description of change in serum cholesterol profile with incremental weight loss 
after restrictive bariatric surgery. Obesity Surgery. 2017 Nov 21. (epub ahead of print) PHI

193.	 Ottina E, Peperzak V, Schoeler K, Carrington E, Sgonc R, Pellegrini M, Preston S, Herold MJ, Strasser 
A, Villunger A. DNA-binding of the Tet-transactivator curtails antigen-induced lymphocyte 
activation in mice. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):1028. IMM INF MGC 

194.	 Pal B, Chen Y, Vaillant F, Jamieson P, Gordon L, Rios AC, Wilcox S, Fu N, Liu KH, Jackling FC, Davis MJ, 
Lindeman GJ, Smyth GK, Visvader JE. Construction of developmental lineage relationships in the mouse 
mammary gland by single-cell RNA profiling. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):1627. SCC BIO SBPM 

195.	 Park HY, Tan PS, Kavishna R, Ker A, Lu J, Chan CEZ, Hanson BJ, MacAry PA, Caminschi I, Shortman K, Alonso S, Lahoud 
MH. Enhancing vaccine antibody responses by targeting Clec9A on dendritic cells. NPJ Vaccines. 2017 2:31. IMM 

196.	 Patchett AL, Tovar C, Corcoran LM, Lyons AB, Woods GM. The toll-like receptor ligands Hiltonol(R) 
(polyICLC) and imiquimod effectively activate antigen-specific immune responses in Tasmanian devils 
(Sarcophilus harrisii). Developmental and Comparative Immunology. 2017 76:352-360. MIMM 

197.	 Patel O, Griffin MDW, Panjikar S, Dai W, Ma X, Chan H, Zheng C, Kropp A, Murphy JM, Daly 
RJ, Lucet IS. Structure of SgK223 pseudokinase reveals novel mechanisms of homotypic and 
heterotypic association. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):1157. CBD SBD CSCD 

198.	 Pearson JS, Giogha C, Muhlen S, Nachbur U, Pham CL, Zhang Y, Hildebrand JM, Oates CV, Lung TW, Ingle 
D, Dagley LF, Bankovacki A, Petrie EJ, Schroeder GN, Crepin VF, Frankel G, Masters SL, Vince J, Murphy 
JM, Sunde M, Webb AI, Silke J, Hartland EL. EspL is a bacterial cysteine protease effector that cleaves RHIM 
proteins to block necroptosis and inflammation. Nature Microbiology. 2017 2:16258. CSCD SBPM INFL 

199.	 Piovesan D, Tempany J, Di Pietro A, Baas I, Yiannis C, O’Donnell K, Chen Y, Peperzak V, Belz GT, Mackay CR, 
Smyth GK, Groom JR, Tarlinton DM, Good-Jacobson KL. c-Myb regulates the T-bet-dependent differentiation 
program in B cells to coordinate antibody responses. Cell Reports. 2017 19(3):461-470. IMM BIO MIMM 

200.	 Pizzolla A, Wang Z, Groom JR, Kedzierska K, Brooks AG, Reading PC, Wakim LM. Nasal-associated lymphoid 
tissues (NALTs) support the recall but not priming of influenza virus-specific cytotoxic T cells. Proceedings 
of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(20):5225-5230. MIMM 



Annual Report 2017   113

201.	 Pleines I, Woods J, Chappaz S, Kew V, Foad N, Ballester-Beltran J, Aurbach K, Lincetto C, Lane RM, Schevzov G, Alexander WS, 
Hilton DJ, Astle WJ, Downes K, Nurden P, Westbury SK, Mumford AD, Obaji SG, Collins PW, Delerue F, Ittner LM, Bryce NS, 
Holliday M, Lucas CA, Hardeman EC, Ouwehand WH, Gunning PW, Turro E, Tijssen MR, Kile BT. Mutations in tropomyosin 4 
underlie a rare form of human macrothrombocytopenia. Journal of Clinical Investigation. 2017 127(3):814-829. CBD CHD MMD 

202.	 Poh AR, Love CG, Masson F, Preaudet A, Tsui C, Whitehead L, Monard S, Khakham Y, Burstroem L, Lessene G, 
Sieber O, Lowell C, Putoczki TL, O’Donoghue RJ, Ernst M. Inhibition of hematopoietic cell kinase activity suppresses 
myeloid cell-mediated colon cancer progression. Cancer Cell. 2017 31(4):563-575 e565. SBPM CBD INFL 

203.	 Putz EM, Guillerey C, Kos K, Stannard K, Miles K, Delconte RB, Takeda K, Nicholson SE, Huntington 
ND, Smyth MJ. Targeting cytokine signaling checkpoint CIS activates NK cells to protect from 
tumor initiation and metastasis. Oncoimmunology. 2017 6(2):e1267892. MIMM INFL 

204.	 Putz EM, Mayfosh AJ, Kos K, Barkauskas DS, Nakamura K, Town L, Goodall KJ, Yee DY, Poon IK, Baschuk 
N, Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F, Hulett MD, Smyth MJ. NK cell heparanase controls tumor invasion 
and immune surveillance. Journal of Clinical Investigation. 2017 127(7):2777-2788. MIMM 

205.	 Rabbolini DJ, Morel-Kopp MC, Chen Q, Gabrielli S, Dunlop LC, Chew LP, Blair N, Brighton TA, Singh N, Ng AP, Ward 
CM, Stevenson WS. Thrombocytopenia and CD34 expression is decoupled from α-granule deficiency with mutation of the 
first growth factor-independent 1B zinc finger. Journal of Thrombosis and Haemostasis. 2017 15(11):2245-2258. CHD 

206.	 Ramdzan YM, Trubetskov MM, Ormsby AR, Newcombe EA, Sui X, Tobin MJ, Bongiovanni MN, Gras SL, 
Dewson G, Miller JML, Finkbeiner S, Moily NS, Niclis J, Parish CL, Purcell AW, Baker MJ, Wilce JA, Waris S, 
Stojanovski D, Bocking T, Ang CS, Ascher DB, Reid GE, Hatters DM. Huntingtin inclusions trigger cellular 
quiescence, deactivate apoptosis, and lead to delayed necrosis. Cell Reports. 2017 19(5):919-927. CSCD 

207.	 Rashidi M, Bandala-Sanchez E, Lawlor KE, Zhang Y, Neale AM, Vijayaraj SL, O’Donoghue R, Wentworth JM, Adams 
TE, Vince JE, Harrison LC. CD52 inhibits Toll-like receptor activation of NF-kappaB and triggers apoptosis to 
suppress inflammation. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2018 25(2):392-405. (epub 2017 Dec 15) INFL PHI 

208.	 Redondo MJ, Geyer S, Steck AK, Sosenko J, Anderson M, Antinozzi P, Michels A, Wentworth J, Xu P, Pugliese 
A, and the Type 1 Diabetes TrialNet Study Group. TCF7L2 genetic variants contribute to phenotypic 
heterogeneity of type 1 diabetes. Diabetes Care. 2017 Oct 12. (epub ahead of print) PHI

209.	 Requena P, Arevalo-Herrera M, Menegon M, Martinez-Espinosa FE, Padilla N, Botto-Menezes C, Malheiro A, 
Hans D, Castellanos ME, Robinson L, Samol P, Kochar S, Kochar SK, Kochar DK, Desai M, Sanz S, Quinto L, 
Mayor A, Rogerson S, Mueller I, Severini C, Del Portillo HA, Bardaji A, Chitnis CC, Menendez C, Dobano C. 
Naturally acquired binding-inhibitory antibodies to Plasmodium vivax duffy binding protein in pregnant women 
are associated with higher birth weight in a multicenter study. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:163. PHI 

210.	 Richmond JM, Bangari DS, Essien KI, Currimbhoy SD, Groom JR, Pandya AG, Youd ME, Luster AD, Harris 
JE. Keratinocyte-derived chemokines orchestrate T-cell positioning in the epidermis during Vitiligo and may 
serve as biomarkers of disease. Journal of Investigative Dermatology. 2017 137(2):350-358. MIMM 

211.	 Robert R, Juglair L, Lim EX, Ang C, Wang CJH, Ebert G, Dolezal O, Mackay CR. A fully humanized IgG-like 
bispecific antibody for effective dual targeting of CXCR3 and CCR6. PLoS One. 2017 12(9):e0184278. INF 

212.	 Robinson SD, Li Q, Bandyopadhyay PK, Gajewiak J, Yandell M, Papenfuss AT, Purcell AW, Norton RS, Safavi-Hemami H. 
Hormone-like peptides in the venoms of marine cone snails. General and Comparative Endocrinology. 2017 244:11-18. BIO 

213.	 Rohr UP, Herrmann P, Ilm K, Zhang H, Lohmann S, Reiser A, Muranyi A, Smith J, Burock S, Osterland M, 
Leith K, Singh S, Brunhoeber P, Bowermaster R, Tie J, Christie M, Wong HL, Waring P, Shanmugam K, Gibbs 
P, Stein U. Prognostic value of MACC1 and proficient mismatch repair status for recurrence risk prediction in 
stage II colon cancer patients: the BIOGRID studies. Annals of Oncology. 2017 28(8):1869-1875. SBPM 

214.	 Roquilly A, McWilliam HEG, Jacqueline C, Tian Z, Cinotti R, Rimbert M, Wakim L, Caminschi I, Lahoud MH, Belz GT, Kallies 
A, Mintern JD, Asehnoune K, Villadangos JA. Local modulation of antigen-presenting cell development after resolution 
of pneumonia induces long-term susceptibility to secondary infections. Immunity. 2017 47(1):135-147 e135. MIMM 

215.	 Rubin AF, Gelman H, Lucas N, Bajjalieh SM, Papenfuss AT, Speed TP, Fowler DM. A statistical framework 
for analyzing deep mutational scanning data. Genome Biology. 2017 18(1):150. BIO 

216.	 Sadek MM, Barzegar Amiri Olia M, Nowell CJ, Barlow N, Schiesser CH, Nicholson SE, Norton RS. 
Characterisation of a novel coumarin-based fluorescent probe for monitoring nitric oxide production 
in macrophages. Bioorganic & Medicinal Chemistry. 2017 25(10):5743-5748. INFL 

217.	 Saelee P, Kearly A, Nutt SL, Garrett-Sinha LA. Genome-wide identification of target genes for the 
key B cell transcription factor Ets1. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:383. MIMM 

218.	 Sagulenko V, Vitak N, Vajjhala P, Vince JE, Stacey KJ. Caspase-1 is an apical caspase leading to caspase-3 cleavage in the AIM2 
inflammasome response, independent of caspase-8. Journal of Molecular Biology. 2018 430(2):238-247. (epub 2017 Oct 31) INFL 

219.	 Salman S, Baiwog F, Page-Sharp M, Griffin S, Karunajeewa HA, Mueller I, Rogerson SJ, Siba PM, Ilett KF, Davis TM. 
Optimal antimalarial dose regimens for sulfadoxine-pyrimethamine with and without azithromycin in pregnancy based 
on population pharmacokinetic modelling. Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy. 2017 61(5):pii: e02291-02216. PHI 

220.	 Salman S, Baiwog F, Page-Sharp M, Kose K, Karunajeewa HA, Mueller I, Rogerson SJ, Siba PM, Ilett KF, 
Davis TME. Optimal antimalarial dose regimens for chloroquine in pregnancy based on population 
pharmacokinetic modelling. International Journal of Antimicrobial Agents. 2017 50(4):542-551. PHI 

2017 Publications



114   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

221.	 Sampaio NG, Eriksson EM, Schofield L. Plasmodium falciparum PfEMP1 modulates monocyte/macrophage transcription 
factor activation, and cytokine and chemokine responses. Infection and Immunity. 2017 98(1):pii: e00447-00417. PHI 

222.	 Sandow JJ, Infusini G, Holik AZ, Brumatti G, Averink TV, Ekert PG, Webb AI. Quantitative proteomic 
analysis of EZH2 inhibition in acute myeloid leukemia reveals the targets and pathways that precede the 
induction of cell death. Proteomics Clinical Applications. 2017 11(9-10):1700013. SBPM SCC CSCD 

223.	 Sathe P, Pang SHM, Delconte R, Elwood N, Huntington ND. Identification of novel human NK cell 
progenitor subsets. International Journal of Molecular Sciences. 2017 18(12):pii: E2716. MIMM 

224.	 Saweri OP, Hetzel MW, Mueller I, Siba PM, Pulford J. The treatment of non-malarial febrile illness in Papua New Guinea: findings 
from cross sectional and longitudinal studies of health worker practice. BMC Health Services Research. 2017 17(1):10. PHI 

225.	 Scerri TS, Macpherson E, Martinelli A, Wa WC, Monaco AP, Stein J, Zheng M, Suk-Han Ho C, McBride 
C, Snowling M, Hulme C, Hayiou-Thomas ME, Waye MMY, Talcott JB, Paracchini S. The DCDC2 
deletion is not a risk factor for dyslexia. Translational Psychiatry. 2017 7(7):e1182. PHI 

226.	 Scerri TS, Quaglieri A, Cai C, Zernant J, Matsunami N, Baird L, Scheppke L, Bonelli R, Yannuzzi LA, Friedlander 
M, MacTel Project C, Egan CA, Fruttiger M, Leppert M, Allikmets R, Bahlo M. Genome-wide analyses identify 
common variants associated with macular telangiectasia type 2. Nature Genetics. 2017 49(4):559-567. PHI BIO 

227.	 Schafer S, Viswanathan S, Widjaja AA, Lim WW, Moreno-Moral A, DeLaughter DM, Ng B, Patone G, Chow K, Khin E, Tan J, 
Chothani SP, Ye L, Rackham OJL, Ko NSJ, Sahib NE, Pua CJ, Zhen NTG, Xie C, Wang M, Maatz H, Lim S, Saar K, Blachut S, 
Petretto E, Schmidt S, Putoczki T, Guimaraes-Camboa N, Wakimoto H, van Heesch S, Sigmundsson K, Lim SL, Soon JL, Chao 
VTT, Chua YL, Tan TE, Evans SM, Loh YJ, Jamal MH, Ong KK, Chua KC, Ong BH, Chakaramakkil MJ, Seidman JG, Seidman CE, 
Hubner N, Sin KYK, Cook SA. IL11 is a crucial determinant of cardiovascular fibrosis. Nature. 2017 552(7683):110-115. INFL 

228.	 Schenk RL, Tuzlak S, Carrington EM, Zhan Y, Heinzel S, Teh CE, Gray DH, Tai L, Lew AM, Villunger A, Strasser A, 
Herold MJ. Characterisation of mice lacking all functional isoforms of the pro-survival BCL-2 family member A1 reveals 
minor defects in the haematopoietic compartment. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(3):534-545. MGC IMM 

229.	 Schofield L, Ioannidis LJ, Karl S, Robinson LJ, Tan QY, Poole DP, Betuela I, Hill DL, Siba PM, Hansen DS, Mueller I, 
Eriksson EM. Synergistic effect of IL-12 and IL-18 induces TIM3 regulation of gammadelta T cell function and decreases 
the risk of clinical malaria in children living in Papua New Guinea. BMC Medicine. 2017 15(1):114. PHI INF 

230.	 Schroder J, Wirawan A, Schmidt B, Papenfuss AT. CLOVE: classification of genomic fusions 
into structural variation events. BMC Bioinformatics. 2017 18(1):346. BIO 

231.	 Scott NE, Giogha C, Pollock GL, Kennedy CL, Webb AI, Williamson NA, Pearson JS, Hartland EL. The 
bacterial arginine glycosyltransferase effector NleB preferentially modifies Fas-associated death domain 
protein (FADD). Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 Aug 31. (epub ahead of print) SBPM

232.	 Severson TM, Wolf DM, Yau C, Peeters J, Wehkam D, Schouten PC, Chin SF, Majewski IJ, Michaut M, Bosma 
A, Pereira B, Bismeijer T, Wessels L, Caldas C, Bernards R, Simon IM, Glas AM, Linn S, van ‘t Veer L. The 
BRCA1ness signature is associated significantly with response to PARP inhibitor treatment versus control 
in the I-SPY 2 randomized neoadjuvant setting. Breast Cancer Research. 2017 19(1):99. CHD 

233.	 Seymour JF, Ma S, Brander DM, Choi MY, Barrientos J, Davids MS, Anderson MA, Beaven AW, Rosen 
ST, Tam CS, Prine B, Agarwal SK, Munasinghe W, Zhu M, Lash LL, Desai M, Cerri E, Verdugo M, Kim SY, 
Humerickhouse RA, Gordon GB, Kipps TJ, Roberts AW. Venetoclax plus rituximab in relapsed or refractory 
chronic lymphocytic leukaemia: a phase 1b study. Lancet Oncology. 2017 18(2):230-240. CHD 

234.	 Sharp JA, Brennan AJ, Polekhina G, Ascher DB, Lefevre C, Nicholas KR. Dimeric but not monomeric 
alpha-lactalbumin potentiates apoptosis by up regulation of ATF3 and reduction of histone deacetylase 
activity in primary and immortalised cells. Cellular Signalling. 2017 33:86-97. BIO 

235.	 Sharp PP, Garnier JM, Hatfaludi T, Xu Z, Segal D, Jarman KE, Jousset H, Garnham A, Feutrill JT, Cuzzupe 
A, Hall P, Taylor S, Walkley CR, Tyler D, Dawson MA, Czabotar P, Wilks AF, Glaser S, Huang DCS, 
Burns CJ. Design, synthesis, and biological activity of 1,2,3-Triazolobenzodiazepine BET Bromodomain 
inhibitors. ACS Medicinal Chemistry Letters. 2017 8(12):1298-1303. CBD CHD SBPM BIO SBD 

236.	 Sheridan JM, Keown A, Policheni A, Roesley SNA, Rivlin N, Kadouri N, Ritchie ME, Jain R, Abramson 
J, Heng TSP, Gray DHD. Thymospheres are formed by mesenchymal cells with the potential to 
generate adipocytes, but not epithelial cells. Cell Reports. 2017 21(4):934-942. MGC MMD 

237.	 Sisquella X, Nebl T, Thompson JK, Whitehead L, Malpede BM, Salinas ND, Rogers K, Tolia NH, Fleig A, 
O’Neill J, Tham WH, David Horgen F, Cowman AF. Plasmodium falciparum ligand binding to erythrocytes 
induce alterations in deformability essential for invasion. eLife. 2017 6:e21083. INF SBPM 

238.	 Sisquella X, Ofir-Birin Y, Pimentel MA, Cheng L, Abou Karam P, Sampaio NG, Penington JS, Connolly 
D, Giladi T, Scicluna BJ, Sharples RA, Waltmann A, Avni D, Schwartz E, Schofield L, Porat Z, Hansen DS, 
Papenfuss AT, Eriksson EM, Gerlic M, Hill AF, Bowie AG, Regev-Rudzki N. Malaria parasite DNA-harbouring 
vesicles activate cytosolic immune sensors. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):1985. INF BIO PHI 

239.	 Skandarajah AR, Thomas S, Shackleton K, Chin-Lenn L, Lindeman GJ, Mann GB. Patient and medical barriers preclude 
uptake of tamoxifen preventative therapy in women with a strong family history. Breast. 2017 32:93-97. SCC 



Annual Report 2017   115

240.	 Skopkova M, Hennig F, Shin BS, Turner CE, Stanikova D, Brennerova K, Stanik J, Fischer U, Henden L, Muller U, 
Steinberger D, Leshinsky-Silver E, Bottani A, Kurdiova T, Ukropec J, Nyitrayova O, Kolnikova M, Klimes I, Borck G, 
Bahlo M, Haas SA, Kim JR, Lotspeich-Cole LE, Gasperikova D, Dever TE, Kalscheuer VM. EIF2S3 mutations associated 
with Severe X-Linked Intellectual Disability Syndrome MEHMO. Human Mutation. 2017 38(4):409-425. PHI 

241.	 Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes P, Guimaraes F, Natania De Souza-Araujo C, Maria Boldrini Leite L, Cristina 
Senegaglia A, Nishiyama A, Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F. Natural killer cell assessment in peripheral 
circulation and bronchoalveolar lavage fluid of patients with severe sepsis: a case control study. International 
Journal of Molecular Sciences. 2017 18(3):pii: E616. doi: 610.3390/ijms18030616. MIMM 

242.	 Speir M, Vogrin A, Seidi A, Abraham G, Hunot S, Han Q, Dorn GW, 2nd, Masters SL, Flavell RA, Vince JE, 
Naderer T. Legionella pneumophila strain 130b evades macrophage cell death independent of the effector 
SidF in the absence of Flagellin. Frontiers in Cellular and Infection Microbiology. 2017 7:35. INFL 

243.	 Spencer AJ, Longley RJ, Gola A, Ulaszewska M, Lambe T, Hill AV. The threshold of protection from 
liver-stage malaria relies on a fine balance between the number of infected hepatocytes and effector 
CD8+ T cells present in the liver. Journal of Immunology. 2017 198(5):2006-2016. PHI 

244.	 Srivastava A, Evans KJ, Sexton AE, Schofield L, Creek DJ. Metabolomics-based elucidation of active metabolic pathways 
in erythrocytes and HSC-derived reticulocytes. Journal of Proteome Research. 2017 16(4):1492-1505. PHI 

245.	 Sriwichai P, Karl S, Samung Y, Kiattibutr K, Sirichaisinthop J, Mueller I, Cui L, Sattabongkot J. 
Imported Plasmodium falciparum and locally transmitted Plasmodium vivax: cross-border malaria 
transmission scenario in northwestern Thailand. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):258. PHI 

246.	 Steck AK, Xu P, Geyer S, Redondo MJ, Antinozzi P, Wentworth JM, Sosenko J, Onengut-Gumuscu S, Chen WM, Rich SS, 
Pugliese A, Type 1 Diabetes TrialNet Study Group. Can non-HLA Single Nucleotide Polymorphisms help stratify risk in 
TrialNet relatives at risk for Type 1 diabetes? Journal of Clinical Endocrinology and Metabolism. 2017 102(8):2873-2880. PHI 

247.	 Sterzenbach U, Putz U, Low LH, Silke J, Tan SS, Howitt J. Engineered exosomes as vehicles for 
biologically active proteins. Molecular Therapy 2017 25(6):1269-1278. CSCD 

248.	 Stutterd C, Diakumis P, Bahlo M, Fanjul Fernandez M, Leventer RJ, Delatycki M, Amor D, Chow CW, Stephenson 
S, Meisler MH, McLean C, Lockhart PJ. Neuropathology of childhood-onset basal ganglia degeneration caused 
by mutation of VAC14. Annals of Clinical and Translational Neurology. 2017 4(12):859-864. PHI 

249.	 Stutz MD, Ojaimi S, Allison C, Preston S, Arandjelovic P, Hildebrand JM, Sandow JJ, Webb AI, Silke J, Alexander WS, Pellegrini M. 
Necroptotic signaling is primed in Mycobacterium tuberculosis-infected macrophages, but its pathophysiological consequence 
in disease is restricted. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 Dec 11. (epub ahead of print) INF CSCD SBPM CHD

250.	 Su S, Law CW, Ah-Cann C, Asselin-Labat ML, Blewitt ME, Ritchie ME. Glimma: interactive graphics 
for gene expression analysis. Bioinformatics. 2017 33(13):2050-2052. MMD SCC 

251.	 Sutherland RM, Londrigan SL, Brady JL, Carrington EM, Marchingo JM, Heinzel S, Hodgkin 
PD, Graham KL, Kay TW, Zhan Y, Lew AM. Cognate antigen engagement on parenchymal cells 
stimulates CD8+ T cell proliferation in situ. Nature Communications. 2017 8:14809. IMM 

252.	 Swearingen KE, Lindner SE, Flannery EL, Vaughan AM, Morrison RD, Patrapuvich R, Koepfli C, Muller I, Jex A, Moritz 
RL, Kappe SHI, Sattabongkot J, Mikolajczak SA. Proteogenomic analysis of the total and surface-exposed proteomes 
of Plasmodium vivax salivary gland sporozoites. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(7):e0005791. PHI 

253.	 Talaulikar D, Tam CS, Joshua D, Ho JP, Szer J, Quach H, Spencer A, Harrison S, Mollee P, Roberts AW, Horvath N, Lee C, 
Zannettino A, Brown R, Augustson B, Jaksic W, Gibson J, Kalff A, Johnston A, Trotman J, Kalro A, Grigoriadis G, Ward C, 
Prince HM. Treatment of patients with Waldenstrom macroglobulinaemia: clinical practice guidelines from the Myeloma 
Foundation of Australia Medical and Scientific Advisory Group. Internal Medicine Journal. 2017 47(1):35-49. CHD 

254.	 Taleo F, Taleo G, Graves PM, Wood P, Kim SH, Ozaki M, Joseph H, Chu B, Pavluck A, Yajima A, Melrose W, 
Ichimori K, Capuano C. Surveillance efforts after mass drug administration to validate elimination of lymphatic 
filariasis as a public health problem in Vanuatu. Tropical Medicine and Health. 2017 45:18. PHI 

255.	 Tanzer MC, Khan N, Rickard JA, Etemadi N, Lalaoui N, Spall SK, Hildebrand JM, Segal D, Miasari M, 
Chau D, Wong WL, McKinlay M, Chunduru SK, Benetatos CA, Condon SM, Vince JE, Herold MJ, Silke 
J. Combination of IAP antagonist and IFNgamma activates novel caspase-10- and RIPK1-dependent cell 
death pathways. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(3):481-491. CSCD CBD INFL MGC 

256.	 Teh BW, Harrison SJ, Allison CC, Slavin MA, Spelman T, Worth LJ, Thursky KA, Ritchie D, 
Pellegrini M. Predicting risk of infection in patients with newly diagnosed multiple myeloma: 
utility of immune profiling. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:1247. INF 

257.	 Teh TC, Nguyen NY, Moujalled DM, Segal D, Pomilio G, Rijal S, Jabbour A, Cummins K, Lackovic K, Blombery P, 
Thompson E, Ekert PG, Lessene G, Glaser SP, Huang DCS, Roberts AW, Guthridge MA, Wei AH. Enhancing venetoclax 
activity in acute myeloid leukemia by co-targeting MCL1. Leukemia. 2017 Jul 28. (epub ahead of print) CHD CBD

258.	 Tempany JC, Zhou JH, Hodgkin PD, Bryant VL. Superior properties of CellTrace Yellow as a division 
tracking dye for human and murine lymphocytes. Immunology & Cell Biology. 2017 IMM 

2017 Publications



116   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

259.	 Thirant C, Ignacimouttou C, Lopez CK, Diop M, Le Mouel L, Thiollier C, Siret A, Dessen P, Aid Z, Riviere 
J, Rameau P, Lefebvre C, Khaled M, Leverger G, Ballerini P, Petit A, Raslova H, Carmichael CL, Kile BT, 
Soler E, Crispino JD, Wichmann C, Pflumio F, Schwaller J, Vainchenker W, Lobry C, Droin N, Bernard OA, 
Malinge S, Mercher T. ETO2-GLIS2 hijacks transcriptional complexes to drive cellular identity and self-
renewal in pediatric acute megakaryoblastic leukemia. Cancer Cell. 2017 31(3):452-465. CBD 

260.	 Tovar C, Pye RJ, Kreiss A, Cheng Y, Brown GK, Darby J, Malley RC, Siddle HV, Skjodt K, Kaufman J, Silva A, Baz Morelli 
A, Papenfuss AT, Corcoran LM, Murphy JM, Pearse MJ, Belov K, Lyons AB, Woods GM. Regression of devil facial tumour 
disease following immunotherapy in immunised Tasmanian devils. Scientific Reports. 2017 7:43827. BIO MIMM CSCD 

261.	 Trigos AS, Pearson RB, Papenfuss AT, Goode DL. Altered interactions between unicellular and 
multicellular genes drive hallmarks of transformation in a diverse range of solid tumors. Proceedings of 
the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(24):6406-6411. BIO 

262.	 Trivedi PM, Graham KL, Scott NA, Jenkins MR, Majaw S, Sutherland RM, Fynch S, Lew AM, Burns CJ, 
Krishnamurthy B, Brodnicki TC, Mannering SI, Kay TW, Thomas HE. Repurposed JAK1/JAK2 inhibitor reverses 
established autoimmune insulitis in non-obese diabetic mice. Diabetes. 2017 66(6):1650-1660. IMM CBD 

263.	 Tsai F, Homan PJ, Agrawal H, Misharin AV, Abdala-Valencia H, Haines GK, 3rd, Dominguez S, Bloomfield 
CL, Saber R, Chang A, Mohan C, Hutcheson J, Davidson A, Budinger GRS, Bouillet P, Dorfleutner A, 
Stehlik C, Winter DR, Cuda CM, Perlman H. Bim suppresses the development of SLE by limiting myeloid 
inflammatory responses. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(12):3753-3773. MGC 

264.	 Tuzlak S, Schenk RL, Vasanthakumar A, Preston SP, Haschka MD, Zotos D, Kallies A, Strasser A, 
Villunger A, Herold MJ. The BCL-2 pro-survival protein A1 is dispensable for T cell homeostasis on 
viral infection. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(3):523-533. MIMM INF MGC 

265.	 Tyler DS, Vappiani J, Caneque T, Lam EYN, Ward A, Gilan O, Chan YC, Hienzsch A, Rutkowska A, Werner T, Wagner AJ, 
Lugo D, Gregory R, Ramirez Molina C, Garton N, Wellaway CR, Jackson S, MacPherson L, Figueiredo M, Stolzenburg 
S, Bell CC, House C, Dawson SJ, Hawkins ED, Drewes G, Prinjha RK, Rodriguez R, Grandi P, Dawson MA. Click 
chemistry enables preclinical evaluation of targeted epigenetic therapies. Science. 2017 356(6345):1397-1401. IMM 

266.	 Ubillos I, Campo JJ, Requena P, Ome-Kaius M, Hanieh S, Rose H, Samol P, Barrios D, Jimenez A, Bardaji A, Mueller 
I, Menendez C, Rogerson S, Moncunill G, Dobano C. Chronic exposure to malaria is associated with inhibitory and 
activation markers on atypical memory B cells and marginal zone-like B cells. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:966. PHI 

267.	 Unger HW, Wangnapi RA, Ome-Kaius M, Boeuf P, Karl S, Mueller I, Rogerson SJ. Azithromycin-containing 
intermittent preventive treatment in pregnancy affects gestational weight gain, an important predictor of birthweight 
in Papua New Guinea - an exploratory analysis. Maternal & Child Nutrition. 2016 12(4):699-712. PHI 

268.	 Uren RT, O’Hely M, Iyer S, Bartolo R, Shi MX, Brouwer JM, Alsop AE, Dewson G, Kluck RM. Disordered 
clusters of Bak dimers rupture mitochondria during apoptosis. eLife. 2017 6:e19944. MGC SBD CSCD 

269.	 van Lierop B, Ong SC, Belgi A, Delaine C, Andrikopoulos S, Haworth NL, Menting JG, Lawrence 
MC, Robinson AJ, Forbes BE. Insulin in motion: The A6-A11 disulfide bond allosterically modulates 
structural transitions required for insulin activity. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):17239. SBD 

270.	 Vasanthakumar A, Liao Y, Teh P, Pascutti MF, Oja AE, Garnham AL, Gloury R, Tempany JC, Sidwell T, Cuadrado 
E, Tuijnenburg P, Kuijpers TW, Lalaoui N, Mielke LA, Bryant VL, Hodgkin PD, Silke J, Smyth GK, Nolte MA, Shi 
W, Kallies A. The TNF receptor superfamily-NF-kappaB axis Is critical to maintain effector regulatory T cells 
in lymphoid and non-lymphoid tissues. Cell Reports. 2017 20(12):2906-2920. MIMM BIO IMM CSCD 

271.	 Vasanthakumar A, Xu D, Lun AT, Kueh AJ, van Gisbergen KP, Iannarella N, Li X, Yu L, Wang D, Williams BR, Lee 
SC, Majewski IJ, Godfrey DI, Smyth GK, Alexander WS, Herold MJ, Kallies A, Nutt SL, Allan RS. A non-canonical 
function of Ezh2 preserves immune homeostasis. EMBO Reports. 2017 18(4):619-631. MIMM BIO MGC CHD 

272.	 Viant C, Guia S, Hennessy RJ, Rautela J, Pham K, Bernat C, Goh W, Jiao Y, Delconte R, Roger M, Simon V, 
Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F, Grabow S, Belz GT, Kile BT, Strasser A, Gray D, Hodgkin PD, Beutler B, Vivier 
E, Ugolini S, Huntington ND. Cell cycle progression dictates the requirement for BCL2 in natural killer 
cell survival. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(2):491-510. IMM MIMM CBD MGC 

273.	 Vilcassim FS, Low M, Fedele P, Grigoriadis G. Periorbital papules as a presenting sign in multiple myeloma 
with AL amyloidosis. BMJ Case Reports. 2017 Feb 20: doi:10.1136/bcr-2016-219010 IMM MIMM 

274.	 Waibel M, Vervoort SJ, Kong IY, Heinzel S, Ramsbottom KM, Martin BP, Hawkins ED, Johnstone RW. 
Epigenetic targeting of Notch1 driven transcription using the HDACi panobinostat is a potential therapy 
against T cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Leukemia. 2018 32(1):237-241. (epub 2017 Sep 15) IMM 

275.	 Wallace R, Anderson MA, See K, Gorelik MA, Irving AL, Manser R. Venous thromboembolism 
management practices and knowledge of guidelines: a survey of Australian haematologists 
and respiratory physicians. Internal Medicine journal. 2017 47(4):436-446. CHD 

276.	 Wampfler R, Hofmann NE, Karl S, Betuela I, Kinboro B, Lorry L, Silkey M, Robinson LJ, Mueller 
I, Felger I. Effects of liver-stage clearance by Primaquine on gametocyte carriage of Plasmodium 
vivax and P. falciparum. PLoS Neglected Tropical Diseases. 2017 11(7):e0005753. PHI 



Annual Report 2017   117

277.	 Wang J, Mouradov D, Wang X, Jorissen RN, Chambers MC, Zimmerman LJ, Vasaikar S, Love CG, Li S, Lowes 
K, Leuchowius KJ, Jousset H, Weinstock J, Yau C, Mariadason J, Shi Z, Ban Y, Chen X, Coffey RJC, Slebos RJC, 
Burgess AW, Liebler DC, Zhang B, Sieber OM. Colorectal cancer cell line proteomes are representative of 
primary tumors and predict drug sensitivity. Gastroenterology. 2017 153(4):1082-1095. SBPM SBD 

278.	 Wang S, Corcilius L, Sharp PP, Payne RJ. Synthesis of a GlcNAcylated arginine building block for the solid phase 
synthesis of death domain glycopeptide fragments. Bioorganic & Medicinal Chemistry. 2017 25(11):2895-2900. CBD 

279.	 Wang S, Corcilius L, Sharp PP, Rajkovic A, Ibba M, Parker BL, Payne RJ. Synthesis of rhamnosylated arginine glycopeptides 
and determination of the glycosidic linkage in bacterial elongation factor P. Chemical Science. 2017 8(3):2296-2302. CBD 

280.	 Wang S, Zaitoun IS, Johnson RP, Jamali N, Gurel Z, Wintheiser CM, Strasser A, Lindner V, 
Sheibani N, Sorenson CM. Bim expression in endothelial cells and pericytes is essential for 
regression of the fetal ocular vasculature. PLoS One. 2017 12(5):e0178198. MGC 

281.	 Wanyonyi SS, Kumar A, Du Preez R, Lefevre C, Nicholas KR. Transcriptome analysis of mammary epithelial cell gene 
expression reveals novel roles of the extracellular matrix. Biochemistry and Biophysics Reports. 2017 12:120-128. BIO 

282.	 Ward-Hartstonge KA, McCall JL, McCulloch TR, Kamps AK, Girardin A, Cretney E, Munro FM, Kemp RA. 
Inclusion of BLIMP-1+ effector regulatory T cells improves the Immunoscore in a cohort of New Zealand 
colorectal cancer patients: a pilot study. Cancer Immunology Immunotherapy 2017 66(4):515-522. MIMM 

283.	 Weber GE, White MT, Babakhanyan A, Sumba PO, Vulule J, Ely D, John C, Angov E, Lanar D, Dutta S, Narum DL, 
Horii T, Cowman A, Beeson J, Smith J, Kazura JW, Dent AE. Sero-catalytic and antibody acquisition models to 
estimate differing malaria transmission intensities in Western Kenya. Scientific Reports. 2017 7(1):16821. INF 

284.	 Weeden CE, Chen Y, Ma SB, Hu Y, Ramm G, Sutherland KD, Smyth GK, Asselin-Labat ML. Lung basal stem cells rapidly repair 
DNA damage using the error-prone nonhomologous end-joining pathway. PLoS Biology. 2017 15(1):e2000731. SCC BIO 

285.	 Weeden CE, Holik AZ, Young RJ, Ma SB, Garnier JM, Fox SB, Antippa P, Irving LB, Steinfort DP, Wright GM, Russell PA, 
Ritchie ME, Burns CJ, Solomon B, Asselin-Labat ML. Cisplatin increases sensitivity to FGFR Inhibition in patient-derived 
xenograft models of lung squamous cell carcinoma. Molecular Cancer Therapeutics. 2017 16(8):1610-1622. SCC CBD MMD 

286.	 Weijman JF, Kumar A, Jamieson SA, King CM, Caradoc-Davies TT, Ledgerwood EC, Murphy JM, Mace 
PD. Structural basis of autoregulatory scaffolding by apoptosis signal-regulating kinase 1. Proceedings of the 
National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America. 2017 114(11):E2096-E2105. CSCD 

287.	 Wentworth JM, Burton P, Laurie C, Brown WA, O‘Brien PE. Five-year outcomes of a randomized trial of gastric 
band surgery in overweight but not obese people with type 2 diabetes. Diabetes Care. 2017 40(4):e44-e45. PHI 

288.	 Wentworth JM, Cheng C, Laurie C, Skinner S, Burton PR, Brown WA, O’Brien PE. Diabetes 
outcomes more than a decade following sustained weight loss after laparoscopic adjustable 
gastric band surgery. Obesity Surgery. 2017 Oct 03. (epub ahead of print) PHI

289.	 Wentworth JM, Dalziel KM, O’Brien PE, Burton P, Shaba F, Clarke PM, Laiteerapong N, Brown 
WA. Cost-effectiveness of gastric band surgery for overweight but not obese adults with type 2 
diabetes in the U.S. Journal of Diabetes and its Complications. 2017 31(7):1139-1144. PHI 

290.	 Wentworth JM, Zhang JG, Bandala-Sanchez E, Naselli G, Liu R, Ritchie M, Smyth GK, O’Brien PE, Harrison LC. Interferon-
gamma released from omental adipose tissue of insulin-resistant humans alters adipocyte phenotype and impairs response 
to insulin and adiponectin release. International Journal of Obesity. 2017 41(12):1782-1789. PHI CHD MMD BIO 

291.	 White M, Amino R, Mueller I. Theoretical implications of a pre-erythrocytic Plasmodium vivax 
vaccine for preventing relapses. Trends in Parasitology. 2017 33(4):260-263. PHI 

292.	 Wiede F, Dudakov JA, Lu KH, Dodd GT, Butt T, Godfrey DI, Strasser A, Boyd RL, Tiganis T. PTPN2 regulates T cell lineage 
commitment and alphabeta versus gammadelta specification. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(9):2733-2758. MGC 

293.	 Williams SP, Gould CM, Nowell CJ, Karnezis T, Achen MG, Simpson KJ, Stacker SA. Systematic high-content genome-
wide RNAi screens of endothelial cell migration and morphology. Scientific Data. 2017 4:170009. SBPM 

294.	 Williams SP, Odell AF, Karnezis T, Farnsworth RH, Gould CM, Li J, Paquet-Fifield S, Harris NC, Walter A, Gregory 
JL, Lamont SF, Liu R, Takano EA, Nowell CJ, Bower NI, Resnick D, Smyth GK, Coultas L, Hogan BM, Fox SB, Mueller 
SN, Simpson KJ, Achen MG, Stacker SA. Genome-wide functional analysis reveals central signaling regulators of 
lymphatic endothelial cell migration and remodeling. Science Signaling. 2017 10(499):eaal2987. SBPM BIO DCD 

295.	 Willis SN, Tellier J, Liao Y, Trezise S, Light A, O’Donnell K, Garrett-Sinha LA, Shi W, Tarlinton 
DM, Nutt SL. Environmental sensing by mature B cells is controlled by the transcription factors 
PU.1 and SpiB. Nature Communications. 2017 8(1):1426. MIMM BIO IMM 

296.	 Witkowski MT, Hu Y, Roberts KG, Boer JM, McKenzie MD, Liu GJ, Le Grice OD, Tremblay CS, Ghisi M, 
Willson TA, Horstmann MA, Aifantis I, Cimmino L, Frietze S, den Boer ML, Mullighan CG, Smyth GK, 
Dickins RA. Conserved IKAROS-regulated genes associated with B-progenitor acute lymphoblastic 
leukemia outcome. Journal of Experimental Medicine. 2017 214(3):773-791. MMD BIO 

297.	 Wittwer NL, Brumatti G, Marchant C, Sandow JJ, Pudney MK, Dottore M, D’Andrea RJ, Lopez AF, Ekert 
PG, Ramshaw HS. High CD123 levels enhance proliferation in response to IL-3, but reduce chemotaxis 
by downregulating CXCR4 expression. Blood Advances. 2017 1(15):1067-1079. CSCD SBPM

2017 Publications



118   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

298.	 Wong SQ, Raleigh JM, Callahan J, Vergara IA, Ftouni S, Hatzimihalis A, Colebatch AJ, Li J, Semple T, Doig 
K, Mintoff C, Sinha D, Yeh P, Silva MJ, Alsop K, Thorne H, Bowtell DD, Gyorki DE, Arnau GM, Cullinane C, 
Kee D, Brady B, Kelleher F, Dawson MA, Papenfuss AT, Shackleton M, Hicks RJ, McArthur GA, Sandhu S, 
Dawson S-J. Circulating tumor DNA analysis and functional imaging provide complementary approaches for 
comprehensive disease monitoring in metastatic melanoma. JCO Precision Oncology. 2017 1(1):1-14. BIO 

299.	 Wong W, Bai XC, Sleebs BE, Triglia T, Brown A, Thompson JK, Jackson KE, Hanssen E, Marapana DS, 
Fernandez IS, Ralph SA, Cowman AF, Scheres SH, Baum J. Mefloquine targets the Plasmodium falciparum 
80S ribosome to inhibit protein synthesis. Nature Microbiology. 2017 2:17031. INF CBD 

300.	 Woodcock JM, Goodwin KL, Sandow JJ, Coolen C, Perugini MA, Webb AI, Pitson SM, Lopez AF, Carver JA. 
Role of salt bridges in the dimer interface of 14-3-3zeta in dimer dynamics, N-terminal alpha-helical order, and 
molecular chaperone activity. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2018 293(1):89-99. (epub 2017 Nov 6) SBPM 

301.	 Wormald S, Lerch A, Mouradov D, O’Connor L. Somatic mutation footprinting reveals a unique tetra-nucleotide signature 
associated with intron-exon boundaries in lung cancer. Carcinogenesis. 2017 Dec 1. (epub ahead of print) SBPM

302.	 Writing Committee for the Type 1 Diabetes TrialNet Oral Insulin Study G, Krischer JP, Schatz DA, Bundy B, 
Skyler JS, Greenbaum CJ, includes Harrison LC. Effect of oral insulin on prevention of diabetes in relatives 
of patients with type 1 diabetes: a randomized clinical trial. JAMA. 2017 318(19):1891-1902. PHI 

303.	 Xin A, Lee MGY, Hu Y, Ignjatovic V, Shi WY, Shipp A, Praporski S, Kallies A, Weintraub RG, Monagle PT, Smyth 
GK, Konstantinov I. Identifying low-grade cellular rejection after heart transplantation in children using 
gene expression profiling. Physiological Genomics. 2017 Dec 20. (epub ahead of print) MIMM BIO

304.	 Yang AS, Lopaticki S, O’Neill MT, Erickson SM, Douglas DN, Kneteman NM, Boddey JA. AMA1 and MAEBL are important 
for Plasmodium falciparum sporozoite infection of the liver. Cellular Microbiology. 2017 19(9):10.1111/cmi.12745. INF 

305.	 Yang AS, O’Neill MT, Jennison C, Lopaticki S, Allison CC, Armistead JS, Erickson SM, Rogers KL, Ellisdon AM, 
Whisstock JC, Tweedell RE, Dinglasan RR, Douglas DN, Kneteman NM, Boddey JA. Cell traversal activity is important 
for Plasmodium falciparum liver infection in humanized mice. Cell Reports. 2017 18(13):3105-3116. INF SBPM 

306.	 Yeh P, Hunter T, Sinha D, Ftouni S, Wallach E, Jiang D, Chan YC, Wong SQ, Silva MJ, Vedururu R, Doig K, Lam E, 
Arnau GM, Semple T, Wall M, Zivanovic A, Agarwal R, Petrone P, Jones K, Westerman D, Blombery P, Seymour 
JF, Papenfuss AT, Dawson MA, Tam CS, Dawson SJ. Circulating tumour DNA reflects treatment response 
and clonal evolution in chronic lymphocytic leukaemia. Nature Communications. 2017 8:14756. BIO 

307.	 Young A, Ngiow SF, Madore J, Reinhardt J, Landsberg J, Chitsazan A, Rautela J, Bald T, Barkauskas D, Ahern E, 
Huntington N, Schadendorf D, Long GV, Boyle GM, Holzel M, Scolyer RA, Smyth MJ. Targeting adenosine in BRAF-
mutant melanoma reduces tumor growth and metastasis. Cancer Research. 2017 77(17):4684-4696. MIMM 

308.	 Yuan Y, Alwis I, Wu MCL, Kaplan Z, Ashworth K, Bark D, Jr., Pham A, McFadyen J, Schoenwaelder 
SM, Josefsson EC, Kile BT, Jackson SP. Neutrophil macroaggregates promote widespread pulmonary 
thrombosis after gut ischemia. Science Translational Medicine. 2017 9(409):eaam5861. CHD CBD 

309.	 Zabara A, Meikle TG, Trenker R, Yao S, Newman J, Peat TS, Separovic F, Conn CE, Call MJ, Call ME, Landau EM, 
Drummond CJ. Lipidic cubic phase-induced membrane protein crystallization: interplay between lipid molecular structure, 
mesophase structure and properties, and crystallogenesis. Crystal Growth & Design. 2017 17(11):5667-5674. SBD 

310.	 Zaid A, Hor JL, Christo SN, Groom JR, Heath WR, Mackay LK, Mueller SN. Chemokine receptor-dependent control 
of skin tissue-resident memory T cell formation. Journal of Immunology. 2017 199(7):2451-2459. MIMM 

311.	 Zhang P, Lee JS, Gartlan KH, Schuster IS, Comerford I, Varelias A, Ullah MA, Vuckovic S, Koyama M, Kuns RD, Locke 
KR, Beckett KJ, Olver SD, Samson LD, Montes de Oca M, de Labastida Rivera F, Clouston AD, Belz GT, Blazar BR, 
MacDonald KP, McColl SR, Thomas R, Engwerda CR, Degli-Esposti MA, Kallies A, Tey SK, Hill GR. Eomesodermin 
promotes the development of type 1 regulatory T (TR1) cells. Science Immunology. 2017 2(10):pii: eaah7152. MIMM 

312.	 Zipin-Roitman A, Aqaqe N, Yassin M, Biechonski S, Amar M, van Delft MF, Gan OI, McDermott SP, Buzina A, Ketela 
T, Shlush L, Xie S, Voisin V, Moffat J, Minden MD, Dick JE, Milyavsky M. SMYD2 lysine methyltransferase regulates 
leukemia cell growth and regeneration after genotoxic stress. Oncotarget. 2017 8(10):16712-16727. CHD 

313.	 Zurzolo GA, Peters RL, Koplin JJ, de Courten M, Mathai ML, Tye-Din JA, Tang ML, Campbell DE, Ponsonby AL, 
Prescott SL, Gurrin L, Dharmage SC, Allen KJ. The practice and perception of precautionary allergen labelling by 
the Australasian food manufacturing industry. Clinical and Experimental Allergy. 2017 47(7):961-968. IMM 



Annual Report 2017   119

Review/Book/Chapter
314.	 Adams JH, Mueller I. The biology of Plasmodium vivax. Cold Spring Harbor Perspectives in Medicine. 2017 7(9):pii: a025585. PHI 

315.	 Adams JM, Cory S. The BCL-2 arbiters of apoptosis and their growing role as cancer targets. 
Cell Death and Differentiation. 2018 25(1):27-35. (epub  2017 Nov 3) MGC 

316.	 Ameratunga R, Lehnert K, Woon ST, Gillis D, Bryant VL, Slade CA, Steele R. Review: Diagnosing 
common variable immunodeficiency disorder in the era of genome sequencing. Clinical 
Reviews in Allergy & Immunology. 2017 Oct 14. (epub ahead of print) IMM

317.	 Au AE, Lebois M, Pleines I, Josefsson EC. Regulation of Megakaryocyte and Platelet Survival. In: 
Schulze H, Italiano J. ed. Molecular and Cellular Biology of Platelet Formation: Implications in Health and 
Disease. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International Publishing; 2016. 193-220.  CHD CBD

318.	 Aubrey BJ, Kelly GL, Janic A, Herold MJ, Strasser A. How does p53 induce apoptosis and how does this relate to p53-
mediated tumour suppression? Cell Death and Differentiation. 2018 25(1):104-113. (epub 2017 Nov 17) MGC 

319.	 Baker PJ, De Nardo D, Moghaddas F, Tran LS, Bachem A, Nguyen T, Hayman T, Tye H, Vince JE, Bedoui 
S, Ferrero RL, Masters SL. Posttranslational modification as a critical determinant of cytoplasmic 
innate immune recognition. Physiological Reviews. 2017 97(3):1165-1209. INFL 

320.	 Baker PJ, Masters SL. Generation of genetic knockouts in myeloid cell lines using a lentiviral CRISPR/Cas9 system. In: 
De Nardo D, De Nardo C. ed. Methods Molecular Biology, vol 1714. New York, NY: Humana Press; 2018. 41-55.  INFL

321.	 Belfiore A, Malaguarnera R, Vella V, Lawrence MC, Sciacca L, Frasca F, Morrione A, Vigneri R. Insulin receptor 
isoforms in physiology and disease: an updated view. Endocrine Reviews. 2017 38(5):379-431. SBD 

322.	 Belz GT. Monocyte-Derived Dendritic Cells: A transendothelial trip launches the quest to understand 
heterogeneity in the APC family. Journal of Immunology. 2017 198(11):4189-4190. MIMM 

323.	 Belz GT, Almeida FF. Unusual suspects: dancing with stromal cells. Nature Immunology. 2017 18(6):601-602. MIMM 

324.	 Berry R, Call ME. Modular activating receptors in innate and adaptive immunity. Biochemistry. 2017 56(10):1383-1402. SBD 

325.	 Birkinshaw RW, Czabotar PE. The BCL-2 family of proteins and mitochondrial outer membrane 
permeabilisation. Seminars in Cell & Developmental Biology. 2017 72(152-162)SBD 

326.	 Boddey JA. Plasmepsins on the antimalarial hit list. Science. 2017 358(6362):445-446. INF 

327.	 Brown LM, Hanna DT, Khaw SL, Ekert PG. Dysregulation of BCL-2 family proteins by leukaemia 
fusion genes. Journal of Biological Chemistry. 2017 292(35):14325-14333. CHD 

328.	 Brumatti G, Lalaoui N, Wei AH, Silke J. ‘Did he who made the lamb make thee?’ new developments in treating the 
‘fearful symmetry’ of acute myeloid leukemia. Trends in Molecular Medicine. 2017 23(3):264-281. CSCD 

329.	 Bryant VL, Hodgkin PD. Life, death, and antibodies. Science. 2017 358(6360):171-172. IMM 

330.	 Burgess AW. Bispecific protein targets prostate cancer. Oncotarget. 2017 8(22):35484-35485. SBD 

331.	 Cardona Gloria Y, Latz E, De Nardo D. Generation of innate immune reporter cells using retroviral transduction. In: 
De Nardo D, De Nardo C. ed. Methods Molecular Biology vol 1714. New York: Humana Press; 2018. 97-117.  INFL

332.	 Carrington EM, Tarlinton DM, Gray DH, Huntington ND, Zhan Y, Lew AM. The life and death of immune cell types: 
the role of BCL-2 anti-apoptotic molecules. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(10):870-877. MGC IMM MIMM 

333.	 Chen K, Blewitt ME. How do mutations in epigenetic regulators contribute to disease? Biochemist. 2017 39(5):20-23. MMD 

334.	 Conos SA, Lindqvist LM, Vince JE. Simultaneous detection of cellular viability and interleukin-
1beta secretion from single cells by ELISpot. In: De Nardo D, De Nardo C. ed. Methods Molecular 
Biology, vol 1714. New York, NY: Humana Press; 2018. 229-236.  CSCD INFL

335.	 Cowman AF, Tonkin CJ, Tham WH, Duraisingh MT. The molecular basis of erythrocyte 
invasion by malaria parasites. Cell Host & Microbe. 2017 22(2):232-245. INF 

336.	 Daley SR, Teh C, Hu DY, Strasser A, Gray DHD. Cell death and thymic tolerance. Immunological Reviews. 2017 277(1):9-20. MGC 

337.	 Daveson AJM, Varney M, Jackson KE, Tye-Din JA. Discrepancies in genetic testing results for coeliac disease: 
call for standardised testing and reporting. Medical Journal of Australia. 2017 207(4):179-180. IMM 

338.	 De Nardo D. Activation of the innate immune receptors: guardians of the micro galaxy : activation and functions of the innate 
immune receptors. In: Xu D. ed. Advances in Experimental Medicine and Biology vol 1024. Singapore: Springer; 2017. 1-35.  INFL

339.	 De Nardo D, De Nardo CM. ed. Innate immune activation: Methods in Molecular 
Biology vol 1714. New York NY: Humana Press; 2018 INFL

340.	 Delbridge AR, Grabow S, Strasser A. Loss of BIM augments resistance of ATM-deficient thymocytes to DNA damage-induced 
apoptosis but does not accelerate lymphoma development. Cell Death & Differentiation. 2017 24(11):1987-1988. MGC 

341.	 Feltham R, Silke J. The small molecule that packs a punch: ubiquitin-mediated regulation of RIPK1/
FADD/caspase-8 complexes. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(7):1196-1204. INFL CSCD 

342.	 Feltham R, Vince JE, Lawlor KE. Caspase-8: not so silently deadly. Clinical & Translational Immunology. 2017 6(1):e124. INFL 

2017 Publications



120   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

343.	 Fitzsimmons L, Kelly GL. EBV and apoptosis: the viral master regulator of cell fate? Viruses. 2017 9(11):339. MGC 

344.	 Foers AD, Cheng L, Hill AF, Wicks IP, Pang KC. Review: extracellular vesicles in joint 
inflammation. Arthritis & Rheumatology. 2017 69(7):1350-1362. INFL 

345.	 Gild ML, Topliss DJ, Learoyd D, Parnis F, Tie J, Hughes B, Walsh JP, McLeod DS, Clifton-Bligh RJ, Robinson BG. Clinical guidance 
for radioiodine refractory differentiated thyroid cancer. Clinical Endocrinology. 2017 Nov 02. (epub ahead of print) SBPM

346.	 Glab JA, Doerflinger M, Puthalakath H. BH3-only proteins: the thorny end of the 
ER stress response. Cell Death & Disease. 2017 8(6):e2889. INF 

347.	 Goddard-Borger ED, Williams SJ. Sulfoquinovose in the biosphere: occurrence, metabolism 
and functions. Biochemical Journal. 2017 474(5):827-849. CBD 

348.	 Goh W, Huntington ND. Regulation of murine natural killer cell development. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:130. MIMM 

349.	 Greening DW, Kapp EA, Simpson RJ. The peptidome comes of age: mass spectrometry-based 
characterization of the circulating cancer peptidome. Enzymes. 2017 42:27-64. SBPM 

350.	 Hansen EP, Kringel H, Thamsborg SM, Jex A, Nejsum P. Corrigendum to “Profiling circulating miRNAs in serum from pigs 
infected with the porcine whipworm, Trichuris suis” [Vet. Parasitol. 223 (2016) 30-33]. Veterinary Parasitology. 2018 249:1. PHI 

351.	 Hawkins ED. Advanced microscopy and imaging techniques in immunology and cell 
biology. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(6):499-500. IMM 

352.	 Healer J, Cowman AF. Vaccine development. In: Walochnik J, Duchêne M. ed. Molecular Parasitology: 
Protozoan Parasites and their Molecules. Vienna: Springer; 2016. 509-525.  INF

353.	 Healer J, Cowman AF, Kaslow DC, Birkett AJ. Vaccines to accelerate malaria elimination and eventual 
eradication. Cold Spring Harbor Perspectives in Medicine. 2017 7(9):pii: a025627. INF 

354.	 Hercus TR, Kan WLT, Broughton SE, Tvorogov D, Ramshaw HS, Sandow JJ, Nero TL, Dhagat U, Thompson EJ, 
Shing K, McKenzie DR, Wilson NJ, Owczarek CM, Vairo G, Nash AD, Tergaonkar V, Hughes T, Ekert PG, Samuel 
MS, Bonder CS, Grimbaldeston MA, Parker MW, Lopez AF. Role of the beta Common (betac) family of cytokines 
in health and disease. Cold Spring Harbor Perspectives in Biology. 2017 Jul 17. (epub ahead of print) SBPM

355.	 Hill DL, Schofield L, Wilson DW. IgG opsonization of merozoites: multiple immune mechanisms for 
malaria vaccine development. International Journal for Parasitology. 2017 47(10-11):585-595. PHI 

356.	 Huang Q, Seillet C, Belz GT. Shaping innate lymphoid cell diversity. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:1569. MIMM 

357.	 Hyslop SR, Josefsson EC. Undercover agents: targeting tumours with modified 
platelets. Trends in Cancer. 2017 3(3):235-246. CHD 

358.	 Jacobsen AV, Murphy JM. The secret life of kinases: insights into non-catalytic signalling functions 
from pseudokinases. Biochemical Society Transactions. 2017 45(3):665-681. CSCD 

359.	 Jansz N, Chen K, Murphy JM, Blewitt ME. The epigenetic regulator SMCHD1 in development 
and disease. Trends in Genetics 2017 33(4):233-243. MMD CSCD 

360.	 Kallies A, Good-Jacobson KL. Transcription factor T-bet orchestrates lineage development and 
function in the immune system. Trends in Immunology. 2017 38(4):287-297. MIMM 

361.	 Kan A. Machine learning applications in cell image analysis. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(6):525-530. IMM 

362.	 Kerdiles YM, Almeida FF, Thompson T, Chopin M, Vienne M, Bruhns P, Huntington ND, Raulet 
DH, Nutt SL, Belz GT, Vivier E. Natural-killer-like B cells display the phenotypic and functional 
characteristics of conventional B cells. Immunity. 2017 47(2):199-200. MIMM 

363.	 Koepfli C, Mueller I. Malaria epidemiology at the clone level. Trends in Parasitology. 2017 33(12):974-985. PHI 

364.	 Korn T, Kallies A. T cell responses in the central nervous system. Nature Reviews Immunology. 2017 17(3):179-194. MIMM 

365.	 Kueh AJ, Pal M, Tai L, Liao Y, Smyth GK, Shi W, Herold MJ. An update on using CRISPR/Cas9 in the one-cell stage mouse 
embryo for generating complex mutant alleles. Cell Death and Differentiation. 2017 24(10):1821-1822. MGC BIO 

366.	 Lacey D, Strasser A, Bouillet P. TNF-induced chronic inflammation does not affect 
tumorigenesis driven by p53 loss. Cell Death & Disease. 2017 8(1):e2550. MGC 

367.	 Laffont S, Seillet C, Guery JC. Estrogen receptor-dependent regulation of dendritic cell 
development and function. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:108. MIMM 

368.	 Lalaoui N, Brumatti G. Relevance of necroptosis in cancer. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(2):137-145. CSCD 

369.	 Lalaoui N, Silke J. Jekyll & Hyde: The other life of the death ligand TRAIL. Molecular Cell. 2017 65(4):585-587. CSCD 

370.	 Lawrence MC, Colman PM. Vale Colin Ward-A leader in receptor structural biology. Frontiers in Endocrinology. 2017 8:95. SBD 

371.	 Lee B, Hutchinson R, Wong HL, Tie J, Putoczki T, Tran B, Gibbs P, Christie M. Emerging biomarkers 
for immunomodulatory cancer treatment of upper gastrointestinal, pancreatic and hepatic 
cancers. Seminars in Cancer Biology. 2017 Dec 16. (epub ahead of print) SBPM INFL

372.	 Lessene G. Close encounter of the covalent kind: Inhibiting MCL1’s proapoptotic activity 
with covalent inhibitors. Cell Death Discovery. 2017 3:16094. CBD 



Annual Report 2017   121

373.	 Liau NP, Laktyushin A, Babon JJ. Purification of SOCS (Suppressor of Cytokine Signaling) SH2 
domains for structural and functional studies. In: Machida K, Liu B. ed. Methods Molecular 
Biology, vol 1555. New York NY: Humana Press; 2017. 173-182.  SBD CHD

374.	 Lindqvist LM, Tandoc K, Topisirovic I, Furic L. Cross-talk between protein synthesis, energy metabolism 
and autophagy in cancer. Current Opinion in Genetics & Development. 2017 48:104-111. CSCD 

375.	 Liston A, Masters SL. Homeostasis-altering molecular processes as mechanisms of 
inflammasome activation. Nature Reviews Immunology. 2017 17(3):208-214. INFL 

376.	 Lucas M, Kallies A, Klenerman P. The immune system of the liver: 50 years of strangeness. 
Clinical & Translational Immunology. 2017 6(12):e164. MIMM 

377.	 Lucet IS, Murphy JM. Characterization of ligand binding to pseudokinases using a thermal shift assay. In: Tan A, 
Huang P. ed. Methods Molecular Biology, vol 1636. New York NY: Humana Press; 2017. 91-104.  CBD SBD CSCD

378.	 Michalak EM. The mammary stem cell field wakes up to hibernating cells. Stem Cell Investigation. 2017 4:45. SCC 

379.	 Murphy JM, Farhan H, Eyers PA. Bio-Zombie: the rise of pseudoenzymes in biology. 
Biochemical Society Transactions. 2017 45(2):537-544. CSCD 

380.	 Murphy JM, Mace PD, Eyers PA. Live and let die: insights into pseudoenzyme mechanisms 
from structure. Current Opinion in Structural Biology. 2017 47:95-104. CSCD 

381.	 Nesic K, Wakefield M, Kondrashova O, Scott CL, McNeish IA. Targeting DNA repair: the genome as 
a potential biomarker. Journal of Patholgy. 2017 Dec 27. (epub ahead of print) SCC BIO

382.	 Ng AP, Alexander WS. Haematopoietic stem cells: past, present and future. Cell Death Discovery. 2017 3:17002. CHD 

383.	 Nguyen TA, Whitehead L, Pang KC. Detection and quantification of MAVS aggregation via confocal microscopy. In: De 
Nardo D, De Nardo C. ed. Methods Molecular Biology, vol 1714. New York NY: Humana Press; 2018. 237-247.  INFL

384.	 Nicholson SE, Keating N, Belz GT. Natural killer cells and anti-tumor immunity. 
Molecular immunology. 2017 Dec 9. (epub ahead of print) INFL MIMM

385.	 Nolan E, Lindeman GJ, Visvader JE. Out-RANKing BRCA1 in mutation carriers. Cancer Research. 2017 77(3):595-600. SCC 

386.	 Nolan E, Vaillant F, Visvader JE, Lindeman GJ. RE: Bilateral oophorectomy and breast cancer risk in BRCA1 and 
BRCA2 mutation carriers. Journal of the National Cancer Institute. 2017 109(10):doi: 10.1093/jnci/djx1038. SCC 

387.	 Ortega-Pierres MG, Jex AR, Ansell BRE, Svard SG. Recent advances in the genomic and 
molecular biology of Giardia. Acta Tropica. 2017 Sep 6. (epub ahead of print) PHI

388.	 Papenfuss AT, Cameron D, Schroeder J, Vergara I. Bioinformatics analysis of sequence data. In: Lakhani SR, Fox 
SB. ed. Molecular Pathology in Cancer Research. New York, NY: Springer New York; 2016. 317-333.  BIO

389.	 Paracchini S, Scerri T. Genetics of human handedness and laterality. Neuromethods. 2017 122:523-552. PHI 

390.	 Parakh S, Gan HK, Parslow AC, Burvenich IJG, Burgess AW, Scott AM. Evolution of anti-
HER2 therapies for cancer treatment. Cancer Treatment Reviews. 2017 59:1-21. SBD 

391.	 Patel MN, Carroll RG, Galvan-Pena S, Mills EL, Olden R, Triantafilou M, Wolf AI, Bryant CE, Triantafilou K, Masters SL. 
Inflammasome priming in sterile inflammatory disease. Trends in Molecular Medicine. 2017 23(2):165-180. INFL 

392.	 Pearson JS, Murphy JM. Down the rabbit hole: Is necroptosis truly an innate response to 
infection? Cellular Microbiology. 2017 19(8):10.1111/cmi.127501. CSCD 

393.	 Pellegrini M, Hartland E. Editorial overview: Offence is the best defense: host-pathogen interactions driving 
evolution of human immunity and the germs we live with. Current Opinion in Immunology. 2017 48:x-xi. INF 

394.	 Pellegrini M, Ohashi P. Interleukin-7. In: Marshall JL. ed. Cancer Therapeutic 
Targets. New York, NY: Springer New York; 2017. 335-343.  INF

395.	 Pelka K, De Nardo D. Emerging concepts in innate immunity. In DeNardo D, DeNardo C, ed.  Methods in 
Molecular Biology. Vol 1714. New York, NY: Humana Press; 2018. 1-18. (epub 2017 Nov 25) INFL 

396.	 Petrie EJ, Hildebrand JM, Murphy JM. Insane in the membrane: a structural perspective of MLKL 
function in necroptosis. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(2):152-159. CSCD 

397.	 Phillips JE, Couper JJ, Penno MAS, Harrison LC, Endia Study Group. Type 1 diabetes: a 
disease of developmental origins. Pediatric Diabetes. 2017 18(6):417-421. PHI 

398.	 Roberts AW. Venetoclax: a primer. Blood Advances. 2017 1(7):467. CHD 

399.	 Roberts AW, Stilgenbauer S, Seymour JF, Huang DC. Venetoclax in patients with previously treated 
chronic lymphocytic leukemia. Clinical Cancer Research. 2017 23(16):4527-4533. CHD 

400.	 Sampaio NG, Cheng L, Eriksson EM. The role of extracellular vesicles in malaria 
biology and pathogenesis. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):245. PHI 

401.	 Schenk RL, Strasser A, Dewson G. BCL-2: Long and winding path from discovery to therapeutic target. 
Biochemical and Biophysical Research Communications. 2017 482(3):459-469. MGC CSCD 

402.	 Silke J, Vince J. IAPs and cell death. Current Topics in Microbiology and Immunology. 2017 403(95-117)CSCD 

2017 Publications



122   Walter and Eliza Hall Institute

403.	 Souza-Fonseca-Guimaraes F, Huntington ND. A new checkpoint for Natural Killer cell 
activation. Immunology Cell Biology. 2018 96(1):5-7. (epub Dec 15 2017) MIMM 

404.	 Stintzing S, Tejpar S, Gibbs P, Thiebach L, Lenz HJ. Understanding the role of primary tumour localisation 
in colorectal cancer treatment and outcomes. European Journal of Cancer. 2017 84:69-80. SBPM 

405.	 Strasser A, Vaux DL. Viewing BCL2 and cell death control from an evolutionary perspective. 
Cell Death and Differentiation. 2018 25(1):13-20. (epub 2017 Nov 3) MGC CSCD 

406.	 Stutz MD, Clark MP, Doerflinger M, Pellegrini M. Mycobacterium tuberculosis: Rewiring host cell signaling 
to promote infection. Journal of Leukocyte Biology. 2017 Dec 15. (epub ahead of print) INF

407.	 Tellier J, Nutt SL. Standing out from the crowd: how to identify plasma cells. 
European Journal of Immunology. 2017 47(8):1276-1279. MIMM

408.	 The malERA Refresh Consultative Panel on Basic Science Enabling Technologies, includes 
Cowman AF. malERA: An updated research agenda for basic science and enabling technologies 
in malaria elimination and eradication. PLoS Medicine. 2017 14(11):e1002451. INF 

409.	 The malERA Refresh Consultative Panel on Basic Science Enabling Technologies, includes 
Cowman AF. malERA: An updated research agenda for basic science and enabling technologies 
in malaria elimination and eradication. PLoS Medicine. 2017 14(11):e1002451. INF 

410.	 Thriemer K, Ley B, Bobogare A, Dysoley L, Alam MS, Pasaribu AP, Sattabongkot J, Jambert E, Domingo GJ, Commons R, 
Auburn S, Marfurt J, Devine A, Aktaruzzaman MM, Sohel N, Namgay R, Drukpa T, Sharma SN, Sarawati E, Samad I, Theodora 
M, Nambanya S, Ounekham S, Mudin RN, Da Thakur G, Makita LS, Deray R, Lee SE, Boaz L, Danansuriya MN, Mudiyanselage 
SD, Chinanonwait N, Kitchakarn S, Nausien J, Naket E, Duc TN, Do Manh H, Hong YS, Cheng Q, Richards JS, Kusriastuti R, 
Satyagraha A, Noviyanti R, Ding XC, Khan WA, Swe Phru C, Guoding Z, Qi G, Kaneko A, Miotto O, Nguitragool W, Roobsoong 
W, Battle K, Howes RE, Roca-Feltrer A, Duparc S, Bhowmick IP, Kenangalem E, Bibit JA, Barry A, Sintasath D, Abeyasinghe 
R, Sibley CH, McCarthy J, von Seidlein L, Baird JK, Price RN. Challenges for achieving safe and effective radical cure of 
Plasmodium vivax: a round table discussion of the APMEN Vivax Working Group. Malaria Journal. 2017 16(1):141. PHI 

411.	 Tie J, Semira C, Gibbs P. Circulating tumor DNA as a biomarker to guide therapy in post-operative locally advanced 
rectal cancer: the best option? Expert Review of Molecular Diagnostics. 2018 18(1):1-3. (epub 2017 Oct 6) SBPM 

412.	 Torresi J, Ebert G, Pellegrini M. Vaccines licensed and in clinical trials for the prevention of 
dengue. Human Vaccines & Immunotherapeutics. 2017 13(5):1059-1072. INF 

413.	 Tye-Din JA. Editorial: a novel approach to monitor mucosal healing in coeliac disease—as simple as 
shifting goalposts? Alimentary Pharmacology and Therapeutics. 2017 46(9):894-895. IMM 

414.	 Uren RT, Iyer S, Kluck RM. Pore formation by dimeric Bak and Bax: an unusual pore? Philosophical Transactions 
of the Royal Society of London. Series B, Biological Sciences. 2017 372(1726): pii: 20160218. MGC 

415.	 van de Moosdijk AA, Fu NY, Rios AC, Visvader JE, van Amerongen R. Lineage tracing of mammary stem and progenitor cells. 
In: Martin F, Stein T, Howlin J. ed. Methods Molecular Biology, vol 1501. Humana Press, New York, NY; 2017. 291-308.  SCC

416.	 Vasanthakumar A, Kallies A. Interleukin (IL)-33 and the IL-1 Family of Cytokines-Regulators of Inflammation and 
Tissue Homeostasis. Cold Spring Harbor Perspectives in Biology. 2017 Nov 03. (epub ahead of print) MIMM

417.	 Vince JE. Necroptotic death signaling: evolution, mechanisms and disease relevance. 
Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(2):129-130. INFL 

418.	 Watson EC, Grant ZL, Coultas L. Endothelial cell apoptosis in angiogenesis and vessel 
regression. Cellular and Molecular Life Sciences 2017 74(24):4387-4403. DCD 

419.	 Weeden CE, Asselin-Labat ML. Mechanisms of DNA damage repair in adult stem cells and implications 
for cancer formation. Biochimica et Biophysica Acta. 2017 1864(1):89-101. SCC 

420.	 Whitehead LW, McArthur K, Geoghegan ND, Rogers KL. The reinvention of twentieth century microscopy 
for three-dimensional imaging. Immunology and Cell Biology. 2017 95(6):520-524. SBPM 

421.	 Wong W. A weak spot in multiple protozoan parasites. Structure. 2017 25(11):1641-1643. INF 

422.	 Yu CH, Moecking J, Geyer M, Masters SL. Mechanisms of NLRP1-mediated autoinflammatory disease in 
humans and mice. Journal of Molecular Biology. 2018 430(2):142-152. (epub 2017 Jul 19) INFL 

423.	 Zhan Y, Carrington EM, Zhang Y, Heinzel S, Lew AM. Life and death of activated T cells: how 
are they different from naive T cells? Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 8:1809. IMM 

424.	 Zulkifli AA, Tan FH, Putoczki TL, Stylli SS, Luwor RB. STAT3 signaling mediates tumour resistance to 
EGFR targeted therapeutics. Molecular and Cellular Endocrinology. 2017 451:15-23. INFL 



Below: Ms Ashleigh Kropp (centre) is a PhD student study ing 
proteins such as DCLK1 that are involved in the develop ment 
o�  cancer. She is supervised by Dr Onisha Patel (lef ) and 
Dr Isabelle Lucet.

Cover image

Te cover shows three awardees in the Walter and Eliza Hall 
Institute’s 2017 Art o� Science competition, �rom lef: Ms 
Ashleigh Kropp, Dr Stephen Mieruszynski and Ms Casey 
Ah-Cann. Tey are shown with Ms Kropp’s Art o� Science 
image, , which depicts the protein DCLK1. Tis 
protein is o� particular interest �or its role in cell division, too 
much o� which can lead to cancer. 

Using modelling sofware, Ms Kropp was able to construct 
and observe a blueprint �or DCLK1 in 3D. Coloured to evoke 
rising plumes o� mauve and pink smoke, this image is a 
snapshot o� the model, showing all the atoms and bonds that 
make up the structure o� DCLK1. 

Being able to visualise a protein’s shape and sur�ace area 
gives researchers vital clues about how di�erent proteins 
interact within the body and what goes wrong with these 
interactions in cancer. Such interactions are signi�cant 
because too little or too much can o�set the balance that 
needs to be maintained �or good health. 

Te 2017 Art o� Science �nalist images and movies can be 
viewed at . 

Protein smoke

www.wehi.edu.au/arto�science




